
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 


the following applicants: 


 


Name      Place of Business 


  Angela Dunn      


  Michael Hosler    Viking Lanes 


   


           


    


 


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 


Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above named 


applicants. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 


 


 


 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


Action: 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-165-2020 


 
Date Introduced:   November 10, 2020 








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\10-27-2020\Ordinance - Metering.docx  
1023201035 


 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


To amend Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and create Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City of 


Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the placement of water metering facilities and the replacement 


of inaccessible metering facilities. 


Committee Action:    The Utilities Committee recommends approval by a vote of 7 - 0.   


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O-22 -2020 First Reading: 


Second Reading: 


October 27, 2020 


November 10, 2020 


 


RECITALS 


WHEREAS,  Stoughton Utilities is aware of numerous water metering plumbing arrangements 


inside customers’ homes and businesses, or underground outside of the structure, that would not 


comply with current plumbing codes; and 


WHEREAS,  these installations can not only pose accessibility issues when servicing the water 


meter, but also potential danger to servicing technicians; and 


WHEREAS,  on October 19, 2020 the Utilities Committee recommended the amendment of 


Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and the creation of Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City of 


Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the placement of water metering facilities and the 


replacement of inaccessible metering facilities, as provided in Exhibit A; 


ORDINANCE 


NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, ordains as follows: 
 


1. Chapter 74 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is amended as provided in 


Exhibit A. 


 


2. This ordinance will take effect upon adoption and publication or posting pursuant to law. 


 


  







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\10-27-2020\Ordinance - Metering.docx  
1023201035 


 


 


The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a 


meeting held on November 10, 2020. 


 


APPROVED: 


 


 


       


Timothy Swadley, Mayor 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


       


Holly Licht, City Clerk 


Posted:      


 


Published:   ____________ 


 


Attest: ____________________ 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 19, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  2 


Business:  


1. Wastewater 2019 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) 


2. Naming the Stoughton Utilities Director and/or the Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller as 
Authorized Representatives to File Applications for Financial Assistance from the State of Wisconsin 
Environmental Improvement Fund 


Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2021 Budget and Five Year (2021 – 2025) Capital Improvement Projects 


(CIP) Plan:  Stoughton Utilities and City staff presented and discussed the proposed 2021 Stoughton Utilities 


budget.  Discussion followed.  Stoughton Utilities and City staff presented and discussed the proposed 2021 


five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2021 budget and the 


Stoughton Utilities 2021 five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan and recommend 


approval to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 


Ordinance to Amend Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and Create Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City 


of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Relating to the Placement of Water Metering Facilities and the 


Replacement of Inaccessible Metering Facilities:   Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a draft 


ordinance that would require the standardization of existing water metering plumbing arrangements that would 


not meet current plumbing codes.  This ordinance is being proposed in preparation for our upcoming lead service 


line replacement program.  Inaccessible metering locations not only pose accessibility concerns when servicing 


the meter, but can also pose potential dangers to servicing technicians.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve amending Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and 


creating Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the placement 


of water metering facilities and the replacement of inaccessible metering facilities, and recommend approval of 


the adopting ordinance to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 


Ordinance to Amend Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and Create Sections 74-2 (g) through (h) of the City of 


Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Relating to the Replacement of Indirect Service Lateral Connections:   


Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a draft ordinance that would require privately-owned service 


connection lines be connected directly to the public system, and where any indirect service connections are 


discovered, provides a method to require such indirect connections be relocated  to directly connect to the public 


system.  This ordinance is intended to address scenarios where a home or building on one parcel has a water 


or sanitary sewer service line that connects to service line that provides service to a home or building on a 


neighboring parcel.  Utilities staff is aware of several locations where such connections exist, and examples of 


the issues that can arise from such indirect connections were given.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve amending Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and Create 


Sections 74-2 (g) through (h) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the replacement of indirect 


service lateral connections, and recommend approval of the adopting ordinance to the Stoughton Common 


Council.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:    October 13, 2020 


To:      Stoughton Utilities Committee   


From:    Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:   Ordinance to Amend Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and Create Sections 74-15 (c) 


through (e) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Relating to the Placement of 


Water Metering Facilities and the Replacement of Inaccessible Metering Facilities 


Stoughton Utilities is aware of numerous water metering plumbing arrangements inside customers’ 


homes and businesses, or underground outside of the structure, that would not comply with current 


plumbing codes.  These installations can not only pose accessibility issues when servicing the water 


meter, but also potential danger to servicing technicians.   


Currently, we have no enforcement mechanism to require property owners to correct these plumbing 


issues.  As part of any lead service line replacement program, we will be working with customers to 


require replacement of lead service lines, and this poses an opportunity for us to have them correct any 


metering issues as well by having the new service line brought into an acceptable location.  


The City Attorney has reviewed this draft ordinance and the suggested redlines and additions reflect the 


attorney recommendations. 


An updated ordinance relating to the placement of water metering facilities and the replacement of 


inaccessible metering facilities has been drafted and is being presented to the committee for your review 


and approval.  We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve the ordinance to amend 


Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and create Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City of Stoughton Code 


of Ordinances, relating to the placement of water metering facilities and the replacement of inaccessible 


metering facilities, and recommend approval of the adopting ordinance to the Stoughton Common 


Council. 







U:\Utilities Committee Packets\Working\2020\10\2020-10-13 3.2 74.15 Water Meters - Ordinance.docx  
1020200931 


 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


To amend Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and create Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City of 


Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the placement of water metering facilities and the replacement 


of inaccessible metering facilities. 


Committee Action:    The Utilities Committee recommends approval by a vote of 7 - 0.   


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O-xxxx-2020 First Reading: 


Second Reading: 


October 27, 2020 


November 10, 2020 


 


RECITALS 


WHEREAS,  Stoughton Utilities is aware of numerous water metering plumbing arrangements 


inside customers’ homes and businesses, or underground outside of the structure, that would not 


comply with current plumbing codes; and 


WHEREAS,  these installations can not only pose accessibility issues when servicing the water 


meter, but also potential danger to servicing technicians; and 


WHEREAS,  on October 19, 2020 the Utilities Committee recommended the amendment of 


Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and the creation of Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City of 


Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the placement of water metering facilities and the 


replacement of inaccessible metering facilities, as provided in Exhibit A; 


ORDINANCE 


NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, ordains as follows: 
 


1. Chapter 74 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is amended as provided in 


Exhibit A. 


 


2. This ordinance will take effect upon adoption and publication or posting pursuant to law. 


 


  







U:\Utilities Committee Packets\Working\2020\10\2020-10-13 3.2 74.15 Water Meters - Ordinance.docx  
1020200931 


 


 


The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a 


meeting held on November 10, 2020. 


 


APPROVED: 


 


 


       


Timothy Swadley, Mayor 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


       


Holly Licht, City Clerk 


Posted:      


 


Published:   ____________ 


 


Attest: ____________________ 







1 
 


EXHIBIT A 


Sec. 74-15. - Water meters. 


 


(a) The utilities committeeutilities director shall prescribe and regulate the kind of water 


meters to be used in the city and.  The utilities committee shall, in accordance with 74-


15(c) to (e), prescribe and regulate the manner of attaching and connectinginstalling the 


water meters, and may in like manner make such other rules for the use and control of 


water meters attached and connected as provided in this chapter as shall be necessary to 


secure reliable and just measurement of the quantity of water used; and also make rules 


to regulate the use of soil pipe, wastewater or sanitary sewer or water pipes which are 


proposed to be connected with the city water or wastewater or sanitary sewer system; 


and may alter and amend such rules from time to time as shall be necessary for the 


purposes named. 


(b) If the owner or occupant of any premises, where the attaching and connection of a 


water meter may lawfully be required, shall neglect or fail to attach and connect such 


water meter, as is required according to All premises served by the public water system 


shall have a water meter installed in accordance with this section if required by the rate 


and rules tariffs established by the utilities committeeWisconsin Public Service 


Commission.  The utilities director shall provide written notice of violation to the 


owner or occupant of any premises that does not have a water meter installed as 


required.  If the owner or occupant who receives such notice fails to install a water 


meter as required within 30 days of receiving the notice, then , for 30 days after the 


expiration of the time within which such owner or occupant shall have been notified by 


such utilities committee to attach and connect such meter, the utilities committeethe 


utilities director may cause the water supply by the city to be cut off from the premises.  


Any water supply so cut off , and it shall not be restored except upon such terms and 


conditions as the utilities committeeutilities director shall prescribe. 


(c) Except as provided in section 74-15(d), all meters shall be placed on the service pipe a 


minimum of two (2) feet, vertical, above the floor, not to exceed two (2) feet, horizontal, 


from the intrusion point into the building, with a minimum of six (6) inches of separation 


from any wall to the edge of the meter.  


(d) Water meters shall not be installed below plumbing fixtures, in or under stairwells 


including landings, nor shall any water meter be installed in bathroom facilities. 


(c)(e) Meter configuration requirements under sections 74-15(c) and (d) apply to new 


construction resulting from any private-side water service line modification or 


replacement commenced on or after the effective date of this ordinance, except that the 


building inspector, or such person as may be directed by the utilities director, may order 


that any noncompliant water meter be relocated in conformance with sections 74-15(c) 


and (d) if the water meter’s location poses a safety concern. Locations that pose a safety 


concern include confined spaces and areas that are extremely difficult to access. 


 







1 
 


EXHIBIT A 


Sec. 74-15. - Water meters. 


 


(a) The utilities director shall prescribe the kind of water meters to be used in the city.  The 


utilities committee shall, in accordance with 74-15(c) to (e), prescribe and regulate the 


manner of installing the water meters, and may in like manner make such other rules for 


the use and control of water meters attached and connected as provided in this chapter 


as shall be necessary to secure reliable and just measurement of the quantity of water 


used; and also make rules to regulate the use of soil pipe, wastewater or sanitary sewer 


or water pipes which are proposed to be connected with the city water or wastewater or 


sanitary sewer system; and may alter and amend such rules from time to time as shall 


be necessary for the purposes named. 


(b) All premises served by the public water system shall have a water meter installed in 


accordance with this section if required by the rate and rules tariffs established by the 


Wisconsin Public Service Commission.  The utilities director shall provide written 


notice of violation to the owner or occupant of any premises that does not have a water 


meter installed as required.  If the owner or occupant who receives such notice fails to 


install a water meter as required within 30 days of receiving the notice, then the utilities 


director may cause the water supply by the city to be cut off from the premises.  Any 


water supply so cut off shall not be restored except upon such terms and conditions as 


the utilities director shall prescribe. 


(c) Except as provided in section 74-15(d), all meters shall be placed on the service pipe a 


minimum of two (2) feet, vertical, above the floor, not to exceed two (2) feet, horizontal, 


from the intrusion point into the building, with a minimum of six (6) inches of separation 


from any wall to the edge of the meter.  


(d) Water meters shall not be installed below plumbing fixtures, in or under stairwells 


including landings, nor shall any water meter be installed in bathroom facilities. 


(e) Meter configuration requirements under sections 74-15(c) and (d) apply to new 


construction resulting from any private-side water service line modification or 


replacement commenced on or after the effective date of this ordinance, except that the 


building inspector, or such person as may be directed by the utilities director, may order 


that any noncompliant water meter be relocated in conformance with sections 74-15(c) 


and (d) if the water meter’s location poses a safety concern. Locations that pose a safety 


concern include confined spaces and areas that are extremely difficult to access. 


 





		05a-Ordinance - Metering

		05b-Utilities - Metering






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\10-27-2020\06a-Ordinance - Connections.docx 
1023201333 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


To amend Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and create Sections 74-2 (g) of the City of Stoughton Code of 


Ordinances, relating to the replacement of indirect service lateral connections. 


 


Committee Action: 


 


The Utilities Committee recommends approval by a vote of 7 - 0. 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 
  


File Number: O-23-2020 First Reading: 


Second Reading: 


October 27, 2020 


November 10, 2020 


 
RECITALS 


 
WHEREAS, numerous privately-owned water and sanitary sewer service lines that would not 


comply with current installation requirements due to the fact that they are not directly connected 


to the public utility system, instead connecting to the service line owned by a neighboring property 


owner; and 


 
WHEREAS, currently there is no enforcement mechanism to require property owners to correct 


these indirect connections; and 


 
WHEREAS, there is a need to correct these issues and require the direct connection of any water 


and sanitary sewer service lines; and 


 
WHEREAS, on October 19, 2020 the Utilities Committee recommended the amendment of 


Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and the creation of Sections 74-2 (g) of the City of Stoughton Code 


of Ordinances, relating to the replacement of indirect service lateral connections, as provided in 


Exhibit A; 


 
ORDINANCE 


 
NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, ordains as follows: 
 


1. Chapter 74 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is amended as provided in 


Exhibit A. 


 


2. This ordinance will take effect upon adoption and publication or posting pursuant to law. 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2020 PACKETS\10-27-2020\06a-Ordinance - Connections.docx 
1023201333 


 


The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a 


meeting held on November 10, 2020. 
 


APPROVED: 
 


 


 


Timothy Swadley, Mayor 
 


ATTEST: 
 


 


 


Holly Licht, City Clerk 
Posted:    


 


Published:    
 


Attest:    







 


DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 19, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No. 2 


 
Business: 


1. Wastewater 2019 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) 


2. Naming the Stoughton Utilities Director and/or the Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller as 
Authorized Representatives to File Applications for Financial Assistance from the State of Wisconsin 
Environmental Improvement Fund 


Discussion followed. 


 
Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2021 Budget and Five Year (2021 – 2025) Capital Improvement Projects 


(CIP) Plan: Stoughton Utilities and City staff presented and discussed the proposed 2021 Stoughton Utilities 


budget. Discussion followed. Stoughton Utilities and City staff presented and discussed the proposed 2021 


five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2021 budget and the 


Stoughton Utilities 2021 five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan and recommend 


approval to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 


 
Ordinance to Amend Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and Create Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City 


of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Relating to the Placement of Water Metering Facilities and the 


Replacement of Inaccessible Metering Facilities: Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a draft 


ordinance that would require the standardization of existing water metering plumbing arrangements that would 


not meet current plumbing codes. This ordinance is being proposed in preparation for our upcoming lead service 


line replacement program. Inaccessible metering locations not only pose accessibility concerns when servicing 


the meter, but can also pose potential dangers to servicing technicians.  Discussion followed. 


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve amending Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and 


creating Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the placement 


of water metering facilities and the replacement of inaccessible metering facilities, and recommend approval of 


the adopting ordinance to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 


 
Ordinance to Amend Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and Create Sections 74-2 (g) through (h) of the City of 


Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Relating to the Replacement of Indirect Service Lateral Connections: 


 Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a draft ordinance that would require privately-owned   service 


 connection lines be connected directly to the public system, and where any indirect service connections are 


 discovered, provides a method to require such indirect connections be relocated to directly connect to the public 


 system.  This ordinance is intended to address scenarios where a home or building on one parcel has a  water 


 or sanitary sewer service line that connects to service line that provides service to a home or building on a 


 neighboring parcel.  Utilities staff is aware of several locations where such connections exist, and examples  of 


 the issues that can arise from such indirect connections were given.  Discussion followed. 


 Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve amending Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and Create 


 Sections 74-2 (g) through (h) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the replacement of indirect 


 service  lateral connections,  and recommend approval of  the adopting  ordinance to the Stoughton   Common 


 Council.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 







 


 


600 South Fourth Street 
P.O. Box 383 


Stoughton, WI 53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 
Date: October 13, 2020 


To: Stoughton Utilities Committee 


From: Jill M. Weiss, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject: Ordinance to Amend Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and Create Sections 74-2 (g)  through 


(h) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Relating to the Replacement of Indirect 


Service Lateral Connections 
 
 


Stoughton Utilities is aware of numerous privately-owned water and sanitary sewer service lines that 


would not comply with current installation requirements due to the fact that they are not directly 


connected to the public utility system. These indirectly service connections instead connect to the service 


line owned by a neighboring property owner. 


These indirect connections are typically found in older neighborhoods, and are not always legally 


recorded through an easement or agreement with the neighboring property owner. In some cases, one  


or both property owners may be unaware of the improper connection. This can result in unexpected 


service interruptions or disconnections to customers when work is being done on one property. In the 


past it has also created basement sewer backups, loss of water, and neighbor disputes. 


Currently, we have no enforcement mechanism to require property owners to correct these indirect 


connections. As part of any lead service line replacement program, we be required to work with 


customers to correct these issues and require the direct connection of any new water service lines. We 


also anticipate future needs to work with customers to correct indirect sanitary sewer service lines to 


provide a direct connections to the public system. 


The City Attorney has reviewed this draft ordinance and the suggested redlines and additions reflect the 


attorney recommendations. 


An updated ordinance relating to the replacement of indirect service lateral connections has been drafted 


and is being presented to the committee for your review and approval. We are requesting that the 


Stoughton Utilities Committee approve the ordinance to amend Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and create 


Sections 74-2 (g) through (h) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the replacement 


of indirect service lateral connections, and recommend approval of the adopting ordinance to the 


Stoughton Common Council. 







U:\Utilities Committee Packets\Working\2020\10\2020-10-13 4.2 74.2 Indirect Connections - Ordinance.docx 
1020200932 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


To amend Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and create Section 74-2 (g) of the City of Stoughton Code of 


Ordinances, relating to the replacement of indirect service lateral connections. 


 


Committee Action: 


 


The Utilities Committee recommends approval by a vote of 7 - 0. 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 
  


File Number: O-xxxx-2020 First Reading: 


Second Reading: 


October 27, 2020 


November 10, 2020 


 
RECITALS 


 
WHEREAS, numerous privately-owned water and sanitary sewer service lines that would not 


comply with current installation requirements due to the fact that they are not directly connected 


to the public utility system, instead connecting to the service line owned by a neighboring property 


owner; and 


 
WHEREAS, currently there is no enforcement mechanism to require property owners to correct 


these indirect connections; and 


 
WHEREAS, there is a need to correct these issues and require the direct connection of any water 


and sanitary sewer service lines; and 


 
WHEREAS, on October 19, 2020 the Utilities Committee recommended the amendment of 


Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and the creation of Section 74-2 (g) of the City of Stoughton Code 


of Ordinances, relating to the replacement of indirect service lateral connections, as provided in 


Exhibit A; 


 
ORDINANCE 


 
NOW THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, 


Wisconsin, ordains as follows: 
 


1. Chapter 74 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is amended as provided in 


Exhibit A. 


 


2. This ordinance will take effect upon adoption and publication or posting pursuant to law. 







U:\Utilities Committee Packets\Working\2020\10\2020-10-13 4.2 74.2 Indirect Connections - Ordinance.docx 
1020200932 


 


The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a 


meeting held on November 10, 2020. 


 


APPROVED: 
 


 


 


Timothy Swadley, Mayor 
 


ATTEST: 
 


 


 


Holly Licht, City Clerk 
Posted:    


 


Published:    
 


Attest:    







1  


EXHIBIT A 


 
Sec. 74-2. - Compulsory connection to wastewater or sanitary sewer and water. 


 
(a) Notice to connect to wastewater or sanitary sewer. Whenever wastewater or sanitary 


sewer becomes available to any building used for human habitation, the building 


inspectorutilities director shall notify in writing the owner, agent or occupant thereof to    


connect facilities thereto as required by the building inspector within 12 months. If such person 


to whom the notice has been given shall fail to comply in a timely manner, the building  


inspector shall cause the necessary connections to be made and the expense thereof shall be 


assessed as a special tax against the property pursuant to Wis. Stats. §  281.45. 
 


(b) Notice to connect water. Whenever water becomes available to any building used for 


human habitation, the building inspectorutilities director shall notify in writing the owner,    


agent or occupant thereof to extend a water lateral to the building within 12 months. If such 


person to whom the notice has been given shall fail to timely comply, the building inspector  


shall cause the necessary installations to be made and the expense thereof shall be assessed as a 


special tax against the property pursuant to Wis. Stats. §  281.45. 
 


(c) Abatement of private sewer systems. After connection to a water main and public 


sanitary sewer, no private sewer system shall be constructed or maintained upon such lot or 


parcel and shall be abated upon 60 days' written notice for such abatement by the building 


inspector. If not so abated, the building inspector shall cause the work to be done and the cost 


thereof assessed as a special tax against the  property. 
 


(d) Where wastewater or sanitary sewer mains not available. Where wastewater or sanitary 


sewer mains are not available, private sewer systems shall be constructed with a permit granted 


by the county environmental health department. 
 


(e) Where water mains not available. Where water mains are not available, existing private 


wells shall be permitted if in compliance with Wis. Adm. Code. NR ch.  812. 
 


(f) Notice to relocate sewer connection. If the City constructs a new sewer main to replace 


an existing sewer main (the “old main”), in a manner that would require the installation of a new 


building sewer lateral connection to be served by the new sewer main, the Utilities 


Directorutilities director shall determine whether and when to discontinue use of the old main. 


In deciding the use of the old main will be discontinued, the Utilities Directorutilities director 


shall consider whether continued use of the old main poses a risk of harm to public health or the 


environment, the cost to the City of continuing to provide service using the old main, the cost to 


property owners of relocating their sewer laterals, and such other factors as the Utilities 


Directorutilities director finds relevant to such determination. Before discontinuing service using 


the old main, the Utilities Directorutilities director shall give written notice to the owner, agent 


or occupant of any building connected to the old sewer main to connect a building sewer lateral 


to the new sewer main and to abandon the building sewer lateral connected to the old sewer 


main.  The notice shall specify the date by which the work must be completed, which shall be not 







2  


less than 90 days after the date of the notice, unless environmental or other circumstances 


require an earlier discontinuance of the existing sewer main, as determined by the Utilities 


Directorutilities director. If the person to whom the notice has been given fails to comply in a 


timely manner, the Utilities Directorutilities director shall cause the necessary connection and 


abandonment to be made and the expense thereof shall be assessed as a special tax against the 


property pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 281.45. 


(g) Indirect water connections prohibited. No building shall connect to the public water 


system through the private water lateral servicing another parcel (an “indirect connection”). If 


an indirect connection is discovered, the utilities director shall determine whether and when to 


require that the water lateral be relocated to directly connect to the public water system. In 


deciding if an indirectly connected water lateral must be relocated to directly connect to the 


public water system, the utilities director shall consider whether continued use of the existing 


indirect connection poses a risk of harm to public health or the environment, the ability of the 


City to isolate service to any building on the parcel using the existing indirect connection 


without impacting neighboring parcels, the cost to property owners of relocating their lateral 


and such other factors as the utilities director finds relevant to such determination. When the 


utilities director determines that an indirectly connected water lateral must be relocated to 


directly connect to the public water system, the utilities director shall give written notice to the 


owner, agent or occupant of the building indirectly connected to the public water system of the 


requirement to connect the building water lateral directly to the public water main and to 


abandon the indirectly connected building water lateral. The notice shall specify the date by 


which the work must be completed, which shall be not less than 90 days after the date of the 


notice, unless environmental or other circumstances require an earlier discontinuance of the 


indirect connection, as determined by the utilities director. If the person to whom the notice has 


been given fails to comply in a timely manner, the building inspector shall cause the necessary 


connection and abandonment to be made and the expense thereof shall be assessed as a special 


tax against the property pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 281.45. 







1  


EXHIBIT A 


 
Sec. 74-2. - Compulsory connection to wastewater or sanitary sewer and water. 


 
(a) Notice to connect to wastewater or sanitary sewer. Whenever wastewater or sanitary 


sewer becomes available to any building used for human habitation, the utilities director shall 


notify in writing the owner, agent or occupant thereof to connect facilities thereto within 12 


months. If such person to whom the notice has been given shall fail to comply in a timely 


manner, the building inspector shall cause the necessary connections to be made and the 


expense thereof shall be assessed as a special tax against the property pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 


281.45. 
 


(b) Notice to connect water. Whenever water becomes available to any building used for 


human habitation, the utilities director shall notify in writing the owner, agent or occupant 


thereof to extend a water lateral to the building within 12 months. If such person to whom the 


notice has been given shall fail to timely comply, the building inspector shall cause the 


necessary installations to be made and the expense thereof shall be assessed as a special tax 


against the property pursuant to Wis. Stats. §  281.45. 
 


(c) Abatement of private sewer systems. After connection to a water main and public 


sanitary sewer, no private sewer system shall be constructed or maintained upon such lot or 


parcel and shall be abated upon 60 days' written notice for such abatement by the building 


inspector. If not so abated, the building inspector shall cause the work to be done and the cost 


thereof assessed as a special tax against the  property. 
 


(d) Where wastewater or sanitary sewer mains not available. Where wastewater or sanitary 


sewer mains are not available, private sewer systems shall be constructed with a permit granted 


by the county environmental health  department. 
 


(e) Where water mains not available. Where water mains are not available, existing private 


wells shall be permitted if in compliance with Wis. Adm. Code. NR ch.  812. 
 


(f) Notice to relocate sewer connection.  If the City constructs a new sewer main to replace 


an existing sewer main (the “old main”), in a manner that would require the installation of a new 


building sewer lateral connection to be served by the new sewer main, the utilities director shall 


determine whether and when to discontinue use of the old main. In deciding the use of the old 


main will be discontinued, the utilities director shall consider whether continued use of the old 


main poses a risk of harm to public health or the environment, the cost to the City of continuing 


to provide service using the old main, the cost to property owners of relocating their sewer 


laterals, and such other factors as the utilities director finds relevant to such determination. 


Before discontinuing service using the old main, the utilities director shall give written notice to 


the owner, agent or occupant of any building connected to the old sewer main to connect a 


building sewer lateral to the new sewer main and to abandon the building sewer lateral connected 


to the old sewer main. The notice shall specify the date by which the work must be completed, 


which shall be not less than 90 days after the date of the notice, unless environmental or other 







2  


circumstances require an earlier discontinuance of the existing sewer main, as determined by the 


utilities director. If the person to whom the notice has been given fails to comply in a timely 


manner, the utilities director shall cause the necessary connection and abandonment to be made 


and the expense thereof shall be assessed as a special tax against the property pursuant to Wis. 


Stat. § 281.45. 


(g) Indirect water connections prohibited. No building shall connect to the public water 


system through the private water lateral servicing another parcel (an “indirect connection”). If an 


indirect connection is discovered, the utilities director shall determine whether and when to 


require that the water lateral be relocated to directly connect to the public water system. In 


deciding if an indirectly connected water lateral must be relocated to directly connect to the 


public water system, the utilities director shall consider whether continued use of the existing 


indirect connection poses a risk of harm to public health or the environment, the ability of the 


City to isolate service to any building on the parcel using the existing indirect connection without 


impacting neighboring parcels, the cost to property owners of relocating their lateral and such 


other factors as the utilities director finds relevant to such determination. When the utilities 


director determines that an indirectly connected water lateral must be relocated to directly 


connect to the public water system, the utilities director shall give written notice to the owner, 


agent or occupant of the building indirectly connected to the public water system of the 


requirement to connect the building water lateral directly to the public water main and to 


abandon the indirectly connected building water lateral. The notice shall specify the date by 


which the work must be completed, which shall be not less than 90 days after the date of the 


notice, unless environmental or other circumstances require an earlier discontinuance of the 


indirect connection, as determined by the utilities director. If the person to whom the notice has 


been given fails to comply in a timely manner, the building inspector shall cause the necessary 


connection and abandonment to be made and the expense thereof shall be assessed as a special 


tax against the property pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 281.45. 








         NOTICE OF PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON


Notice is hereby given that on Tuesday, November 10, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. the Common Council will meet virtually


 for the purpose of holding a PUBLIC HEARING on the PROPOSED BUDGET for 2021.


You can join the meeting from this link: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/171226893. 


You can also call in using a phone: United States: +1 (571) 317-3129 Access Code: 171-226-893. 


The proposed budget is available for inspection by appointment at City Hall, 207 S Forrest St, Stoughton, WI.


The following is a summary of the Proposed 2021 Budget.


Published:  October 22, 2020


2020 2021 % $


General Fund Budget  Proposed Budget Change Change


       REVENUES


Taxes 10,141,534       10,214,770        0.72% 73,236


Intergovernmental Revenues 2,280,126         2,393,631          4.98% 113,505


Licenses and Permits 199,075            200,500             0.72% 1,425


Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 155,000            147,000             -5.16% (8,000)


Public Charges for Services 608,894            583,199             -4.22% (25,695)


Intergovernmental Charges 64,000              82,000               28.13% 18,000


Miscellaneous Revenue 442,505            332,339             -24.90% (110,166)


Other Financing Sources 45,000              175,000             0.00% 130,000


       TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 13,936,134       14,128,439        1.38% 192,305


       EXPENDITURES:


General Government 1,803,257         1,829,350          1.45% 26,093


Public Safety 3,757,497         3,785,696          0.75% 28,199


Public Works 1,786,828         1,793,066          0.35% 6,238


Health and Human Services 611,749            636,861             4.10% 25,112


Culture, Recreation and Education 1,131,955         1,190,137          5.14% 58,182


Conservation and Development 252,415            294,038             16.49% 41,623


Other Financing Uses 4,583,613         4,590,536          0.15% 6,923


       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 13,927,314       14,119,684        1.38% 192,370


FUND BALANCES


Estimated Estimated Property


Estimated Fund Balances Fund Balance Fund Balance Tax


All Governmental Funds 1/1/2021 Revenues Expenditures 12/31/2021 Contribution


General Fund 6,725,443           14,128,439       14,119,684        6,734,198         9,462,070         


TID #3 358,939              528,272            894,000             (6,789)               -                    


TID #4 78,598                182,725            105,500             155,823            -                    


TID #5 (695,523)             89,750              116,938             (722,711)           -                    


TID #6 1,019,372           150,250            138,731             1,030,891         125,000            


TID #7 671,431              805,800            544,725             932,506            -                    


TID #8 (53,665)               990,241            984,741             (48,165)             24,741              


Safety Building -                      42,000              42,000               -                    -                    


Library 14,083                908,247            908,251             14,079              -                    


Library Special 222,476              65,250              55,000               232,726            -                    


Fire Equipment 20,784                -                    -                     20,784              -                    


Park Development 440,204              15,200              20,043               435,361            -                    


Storm Sewer 3,178,233           917,658            1,029,288          3,066,603         -                    


Cemetery 28,743                -                    200                    28,543              -                    


EMS Truck 75,388                185                   -                     75,573              -                    


EMS Equipment 102,743              194,315            210,000             87,058              -                    


Senior Center Wood Shop 7,317                  2,525                2,500                 7,342                -                    


Township Outreach 8,917                  10,525              8,508                 10,934              -                    


Seniors in Need 53,891                25,050              25,000               53,941              -                    


Senior Center Special 485,542              12,000              10,000               487,542            -                    


Food Pantry 178,614              75,500              75,000               179,114            -                    


Landmarks (5,284)                 15,015              10,000               (269)                  -                    


Tree Commission 4,286                  1,000                1,500                 3,786                -                    


Stoughton Arts Council 3,281                  3,500                3,500                 3,281                -                    


EMS Trust 15,001                10,045              8,230                 16,816              -                    


Fire Department Special 50,157                22,250              23,400               49,007              -                    


Fire Pension 867,691              16,700              -                     884,391            -                    


Opera House (271,679)             1,125,294         1,112,103          (258,488)           -                    


Tourism 25,861                72,100              72,000               25,961              -                    


Revolving Loan 116,734              110,035            4,000                 222,769            -                    


Refuse/Recycling Fund 615                     817,200            817,171             644                   -                    


Sick Leave 68,707                100,000            105,000             63,707              -                    


Affordable Housing Fund 515,000            250,000             265,000            -                    


K9 17,772                8,000                8,160                 17,612              -                    


Economic Development (9,630)                 -                    -                     (9,630)               -                    


Redevelopment Authority (64,366)               8,000                8,000                 (64,366)             -                    


Special Assessment 299,028              104,100            85,000               318,128            -                    


Debt Service 561,997              4,356,545         4,457,730          460,812            -                    


Capital Construction 2,142,562           1,668,565         1,666,066          2,145,061         -                    


Capital Outlay 1,258,432           991,218            989,518             1,260,132         -                    


Building Maintenance 458,313              195,458            255,576             398,195            -                    


Equipment Replacement 225,069              278,098            280,520             222,647            -                    


Technology Fund 76,394                -                    25,000               51,394              -                    


EMS 1,058,332           711,050            688,017             1,081,365         -                    


Water 15,223,140          2,393,027         2,068,087          15,548,080       -                    


Electric 21,458,401          15,027,251       14,770,174        21,715,478       -                    


Sanitary Sewer 17,861,756          2,216,402         2,119,364          17,958,794       -                    


Total 74,364,100          49,909,785       49,118,225        75,155,660       9,611,811         


2021 Revenues 2021 Expenditures


Park Impact Fees Imposed 10,000                10,000              








 


 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to adopt the 2021 City of Stoughton Budget  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Committee of the Whole recommends approval 12-0 


 
Fiscal Impact: General Fund - $14,119,684  


EMS - $715,907        


Storm Water - $1,318,705 


Library - $889,018 


Opera House - $1,009,597 


     
File Number:  R-166-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 


 
November 10, 2020 


 


RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2021 ANNUAL CITY BUDGET 


WHEREAS, the Mayor has prepared and the Council Committee of the Whole has reviewed the 


proposed budgets of the City of Stoughton for the year 2021; and 


WHEREAS, a Summary of the Budget and Notice of Public Hearing was published on 


October 15, 2020; and 


WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the budget on the 10th day of November, 2020 


by the Common Council; and 


WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2021 


City of Stoughton General Fund Operating Budget to the Common Council on October 22, 2020; 


and 


 


 WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2021 


Stoughton Emergency Medical Services (EMS) budget to the Common Council on October 22, 2020; and 


 


 WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2021 


Stoughton Storm Water Utility budget to the Common Council on October 22, 2020; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2021 


Library budget to the Common Council on October 22, 2020; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2021 Opera 


House budget to the Common Council on October 22, 2020; and 


WHEREAS, the Common Council has examined the budget and various items therein and finds 


the budget as presented and amended to date of this Resolution to represent the income anticipated 


and the expenditures for the various departments by major category as set forth therein;  







 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane 


County, Wisconsin does approve the following: 


SECTION 1. 2021 Budget Adopted. 


There is hereby adopted the 2021 City of Stoughton budget and appropriated out of the 


receipts of the City of Stoughton for the year 2021, including monies received from the general 


property tax levy, special assessments and other sources of revenue as therein provided, for the 


various purposes therein specified, the amounts set forth in said Budget presented, or attached 


thereto or referenced by it. 


SECTION 2. Tax Levy Adopted. 


There is hereby certified to the City Clerk, a general property tax levy in the amount of 


$9,611,811 on all of the taxable property within the City of Stoughton for the year 2020 for the uses 


and purposes set forth as expenditures in the Budget hereby adopted. 


SECTION 3. City Clerk Directed to Spread Tax on Roll. 


The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to spread the tax levied herein on the tax roll 


of the City of Stoughton for the year 2020. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to publish this resolution as a 


Class 1 Notice in the Stoughton Courier Hub. 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Timothy Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Published: 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     







 


 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to adopt the 2021 City of Stoughton Budget  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Committee of the Whole recommends approval 12-0  


Fiscal Impact: General Fund - $14,119,684  
EMS - $715,907        
Storm Water - $1,318,705 
Library - $889,018 
Opera House - $1,009,597 
     


File Number:  R- -2020 
 
Date Introduced: 
 


 
November 10, 2020 
 


RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2021 ANNUAL CITY BUDGET 


WHEREAS, the Mayor has prepared and the Council Committee of the Whole has reviewed the 
proposed budgets of the City of Stoughton for the year 2021; and 


WHEREAS, a Summary of the Budget and Notice of Public Hearing was published on 
October 15, 2020; and 


WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the budget on the 10th day of November, 2020 
by the Common Council; and 


WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2021 
City of Stoughton General Fund Operating Budget to the Common Council on October 22, 2020; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2021 
Stoughton Emergency Medical Services (EMS) budget to the Common Council on October 22, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2021 
Stoughton Storm Water Utility budget to the Common Council on October 22, 2020; and 
 


WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2021 
Library budget to the Common Council on October 22, 2020; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Committee of the Whole recommended the approval of the proposed 2021 Opera 


House budget to the Common Council on October 22, 2020; and 


WHEREAS, the Common Council has examined the budget and various items therein and finds 
the budget as presented and amended to date of this Resolution to represent the income anticipated 
and the expenditures for the various departments by major category as set forth therein;  







 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane 
County, Wisconsin does approve the following: 


SECTION 1. 2021 Budget Adopted. 
There is hereby adopted the 2021 City of Stoughton budget and appropriated out of the 


receipts of the City of Stoughton for the year 2021, including monies received from the general 
property tax levy, special assessments and other sources of revenue as therein provided, for the 
various purposes therein specified, the amounts set forth in said Budget presented, or attached 
thereto or referenced by it. 


SECTION 2. Tax Levy Adopted. 
There is hereby certified to the City Clerk, a general property tax levy in the amount of 


$9,611,811 on all of the taxable property within the City of Stoughton for the year 2020 for the uses 
and purposes set forth as expenditures in the Budget hereby adopted. 


SECTION 3. City Clerk Directed to Spread Tax on Roll. 
The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to spread the tax levied herein on the tax roll 


of the City of Stoughton for the year 2020. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is directed to publish this resolution as a 
Class 1 Notice in the Stoughton Courier Hub. 
 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                             
Timothy Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 


Published: 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     







City of Stoughton 2021 
Budget Executive 
Summary







2021 Budget Highlights
 Employee Compensation
 2% wage increase for non-union employees exceeding 12 month Consumer Price Index 


increase of 1.4% 
 2% wage increase for union employees pending completion of the bargaining process


 Final decisions on School Resource Officer and add’l State Road Aid are still 
pending 


 2.5% increase in premium cost for health insurance
 Staffing requests approved by the Personnel Committee
 Full-Time Equipment Operator in the Public Works Department


 Total debt service levy increase of $89,314
 Utilized $25,000 in excess debt service fund balance and $35,000 in special 


assessments to smooth impact on mil rate
 Had these amounts not been utilized, the average homeowner in Stoughton would 


have seen a 1.25% increase on their City taxes versus .60%


 Anticipating ~ $130,000 cash inflow from TIF No. 3 termination and $550,000 
towards newly created Affordable Housing Program







2021 Budget Highlights
 Net New Construction = 1.837% resulting in $135,000 increase to base tax levy or 


1% of total operating revenues







2021 Budget Highlights
 Earmarked an additional $200,000 towards the City’s Revolving Loan Fund 


Program in an effort to help downtown business owners
 $100,000 set aside as a contingency in an attempt to mitigate any lingering 


COVID-19 impacts
 The ongoing pandemic has created a significant amount of uncertainty with the 2021 


budget and the Council may need to reverse course in 2021 in relation to the decisions 
made during the budget workshops


 $4.225 million in planned 2021 capital improvements
 $2.7 million of these projects (approximately 65%) will require debt funding
 $.5 million of these projects will be funded through the City’s sinking funds (equipment 


replacement, building maintenance and technology funds)
 $.7 million of these projects will be funded through grants
 $.325 million these projects will be funded through either the City’s General Fund 


contributions, Township Fire contributions, Special Assessment Fund transfers or Storm 
Water rates







2021 Budget Highlights
 2021 capital improvement projects in excess of $75,000 include the following:







Staffing Requests that could not be accommodated







2021 General Fund Operating 
Budget - Condensed







2021 General Fund Revenues







2021 General Fund Revenue Changes
 Net New Construction $135,000
 Debt Service ($60,000)


– Does not take into account the $150,000 levied for TIF debt


 TIF No. 3 Termination $130,000


 Intergovernmental Revenues $113,000
– Includes transportation aids, state shared revenues, etc.


 Interest Income ($78,000)
 Senior Center Township Donations ($16,000)
 Public Charges for Service ($18,000)







2021 General Fund Expenditures by Category







2021 General Fund Expenditures by Classification







2021 General Fund Expenditure Changes Compared to 2020 
Budget


 Non-Labor Expenditures $63,000 or 2.6% increase


 Wages/Salaries $107,000 or 2.1% increase


 Employee Benefits $16,000 or 1.0% increase


 Debt Service ($60,000) or 1.8% decrease


 Transfers (operating, capital, etc.) $67,000 or 5.4% increase







2021 General Fund Wage Summary







2021 General Fund Employee Benefits Summary







2020 General Fund Health/Dental Summary 







Expenditure Restraint Program (ERP) Results


 The ERP provides unrestricted aid to 
qualifying municipalities that limit 
growth in spending (approx. $235,000 
per year) 


 Stoughton’s allowed increase in 
expenditures for 2021 is 2.5%


 The 2021 budget resulted in a 2.4% 
increase in expenditures


 The remaining amount to 2.5% is 
$12,700







2020 Levy Bottom Line (2021 Budget Year)


 2020 tax levy has 1.84% Net New 
Construction = $135,000


 Levy increase includes City mil rate 
decrease of 1.10%


 Total mil rate decrease of $0.09


 Impact on average residential 
homeowner is an approximate increase 
of .60% over the 2019 levy







Mil Rate History







City of Stoughton 2021 Budget


QUESTIONS?







  


 
 


 
 
 


                                                                            


 


    


 
2021 MAYOR’S ANNUAL BUDGET DOCUMENT 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 



https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwj1lry10a3lAhWhIzQIHUz3CvsQjRx6BAgBEAQ&url=https://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/&psig=AOvVaw3XUZYfvi73QU1FW8WnLuPZ&ust=1571757038968553





  


2021 BUDGET MESSAGE FROM THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
 


After months of planning and consultation with city staff and council members, the Mayor has submitted the budget for 


calendar year 2021 for consideration and approval. We believe this budget achieves many of the city’s objectives, with a 


nominal tax increase to our residents.  


 


In recent months, our city has not been exempt to the economic impacts of the COVID-19 health pandemic. However, thanks 


to smart planning during previous years we have been able to mitigate many of those impacts, keep taxes low for our 


residents, and maintain healthy fund balances. The city also experienced continued growth in both residential and 


commercial development resulting in a net new construction increase of 1.84%, or $22.6 million.  


 
Here are a few highlights from the Mayor’s Budget: 


• Total budgeted general fund operating expenditures are $14.1 million, including transfers. This represents an increase from 


last year’s budget of $192,000 and is mainly the result of wage increases and increased staffing levels. 


• General fund budgeted expenditures increased approximately 1.4%. This increase is below the city’s net new construction 


increase, and is a testament to the careful stewardship exhibited by our elected officials and employees for public funds. 


• Garbage and Recycling fees are anticipated to increase by approximately 3% or $5.60 per unit annualized. 


• Storm Water fees are anticipated to increase approximately 6.39% or $4.64 per unit annualized. 


• In order to support the downtown business community we have earmarked an additional $200,000 from TID No. 4 to be 


used for the city’s Revolving Loan Fund Program. 


• An extension to TIF No. 3 will result in approximately $550,000 additional funding to the city’s newly created Affordable 


Housing Program. 


• There is approximately $4.2 million committed this year towards capital projects. 


o This budget includes $1.4 million in road maintenance and construction. The largest anticipated road expense 


will be $500,000 for the Roby Road West payment replacement projected. 


o This budget also includes approximately $1.1 million in riverfront improvements. Nearly $700,000 of this cost will 


be funded with grants. 


o In addition, this budget includes approximately $350,000 in playground and park upgrades, $490,000 in 


equipment replacement, and $210,000 in city building maintenance projects.  


• While we have once again minimized the borrowing needed for the city’s 2021 capital projects (approximately $2.7 million), 


Moody’s continues to state the city has a high debt burden. To keep the city on strong financial footing in these uncertain 


times, we continue to recommend dissuading the city from excessive borrowing and prioritize its future projects. 


 


Despite the uncertainty 2021 is sure to bring, we believe our city is well situated to endure any unforeseen challenges, and 


well positioned to continue delivering the essential services our residents rely upon. With that said, challenges will continue 


to arise as we work through this difficult time, but rest assured that the Finance Department will continue to diligently monitor 


the city’s financials and maintain an open dialogue with the Finance Committee as this situation continues to unfold. We are 


grateful for the dedicated work of our city council. Their vision and dedication to the city have greatly aided in our city’s 


progress over these last few years. We are grateful for their unrelenting support and dedication to serving our great 


residents. 







CITY OF STOUGHTON   2021 BUDGET 
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS 


 


 


 
 
 
 


 


Elected Officials 
 
 


CITY COUNCIL 
 


Term of Office Expires 
Mayor 


Timothy Swadley 2022 
Council Members  


Regina Hirsch – Council President 2021 
Greg Jensen – Council Vice President 2023 
Brett Schumacher 2022 
Joyce Tikalsky 2021 
Sid Boersma 2021 
Phil Caravello 2021 
Leonard Doom 2022 
Ben Heili 2021 
Tom Majewski 2022 
Jean Ligocki 2022 
Lisa Reeves 2023 
Fred Hundt 2023 


 
 
 


Department Heads 
 


City Clerk Holly Licht 
EMS Director Lisa Schimelpfenig 
Fire Chief Josh Ripp 
Director of Human Resources Amy Jo Gillingham 
Director of IT/Media Services John Montgomery 
Opera House Director Bill Brehm 
Director of Planning and Development Rodney Scheel 
Police Chief Greg Leck 
Director of Public Works Brett Hebert 
Library Director Jim Ramsey 
Director of Parks and Recreation Dan Glynn 
Utilities Director Jill Weiss 
Senior Center Director Cindy McGlynn 
Director of Finance Jamin Friedl 
 


    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON   2021 BUDGET 
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS 


 


 


 
Introduction 
The city maintains a number of funds for recording the fiscal transactions and to meet legal accounting requirements.  
Budgets for all funds of the city, which are listed below, are legally adopted on an annual basis. 


 
Below are general descriptions of the fund-types and a brief description of each fund within each type. 


 
Fund Type: General Fund 
Fund Number: 100 
Description: The General Fund provides for accounting of general governmental functions related to the city’s statutory 
obligations. Those functions include, public works, fire services, police services, City Council, city administration, 
finance, insurance and legal. 


Fund Type: Debt Service 
Fund Number: 300 
Description:  The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the payment of debt on all general obligation debt. Payments 
on general obligation debt issued for general government purposes are funded primarily by the property tax levy.  


 
Fund Type: Construction/Capital Projects and Outlay 
Fund Number: 400 and 410 


 
Description: Funds for the construction and replacement of city facilities, equipment, infrastructure and other capital 
assets. 


 
Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 3 
Fund Number: 203 
Description: Tax Incremental Financing District (TID) No. 3 is used to account for all project costs related to Business 
Park North. The last year this TID will be collecting increment is 2021. The city is anticipating an approximate cash 
inflow in 2021 of $130,000 and $550,000 towards the newly created Affordable Housing Program. 


 
Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 4 
Fund Number: 204 
Description: Tax Incremental Financing District (TID) No. 4 is used to account for all project costs related to Downtown 
improvements. This TID was able to fund nearly $1 million in downtown improvements in 2020. 


 
Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 5 
Fund Number: 205 
Description: Tax Incremental Financing District (TID) No. 5 is used to account for all project costs related to the Railroad 
Corridor. 


 
Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 6 
Fund Number: 206 
Description: Tax Incremental Financing District (TID) No. 6 is used to account for all project costs related to the 
Business Park North Expansion Area. While this TID continues to struggle financially, the city saw great strides in 2020 
in terms of land sales and hopes to see this trend continue into 2021. 
 
Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 7 
Fund Number: 207 
Description: Tax Incremental Financing District (TID) No. 7 is used to account for all project costs related to Kettle Park 
West (KPW). KPW Phase II was approved by the City Council in 2020 and is planned to add an additional $66 million 
in incremental value to this TID. 
 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON   2021 BUDGET 
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS 


 


 


 
Fund Name: Tax Incremental District No. 8 
Fund Number: 208 
Description: Tax Incremental Financing District (TID) No. 8 is used to account for all project costs related to the 
Riverfront Development Area. Discussions continue with a potential developer for this site and the hope is for Phase I 
to begin spring of 2021. 


 
Fund Type: Major Enterprise Funds  
 
7450 - Water Utility - Accounts for operations and capital needs of the water system 
7460 - Wastewater Utility - Accounts for operations and capital needs of the wastewater system 
7430 - Electric Utility - Accounts for operations and capital needs of the electric system 
 
Fund Type: Non-Major Governmental Funds  
 
Description: Funds used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to 
expenditure for capital outlays. 
 


   221 - Fire Equipment   223 - Park Development 
   411 - Building Maintenance  412 - Equipment Replacement 
   413 - Technology    


 
Fund Type: Non-Major Enterprise Funds  
 
Description: Funds used to account for and report any activity for which a fee is charged to external uses for goods or 
services. 
 


   603 - EMS    224 - Storm Water 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON   2021 BUDGET 
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS 


 


 


 
 
 
 Other funds maintained by the city and not specifically defined above are as follows: 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
OVERVIEW OF ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS, LEGAL AND POLICY 


REQUIREMENTS 


 


 


 


 
 
Budget Process (General) 
The formal budget process begins in May of each year. At that time the budget materials and guidelines are distributed 
to the various department heads. Informally, aspects of upcoming budgets are discussed throughout the year with the 
City Council and staff. 


 
The departmental budgets are compiled, clarified and put into a format for the Mayor’s review. The Mayor meets with 
the Finance Director and individual department heads to follow up on questioned items and clarify explanations. When 
the final review is completed, the proposed budget document is prepared and provided to the Committee of the Whole 
annual Budget Workshops. All department heads are required to attend the Budget Workshops of the Committee of the 
Whole. At this time, committee members pose questions and make recommendations and comments regarding the 
overall budget. The Committee of the Whole then approves the budget to be taken before the City Council. Citizens are 
also invited to participate in the annual Budget Workshops as well. 


 
 
 
 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
OVERVIEW OF ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS, LEGAL AND POLICY 


REQUIREMENTS 


 


 


 
The City Council must then conduct a public hearing and take a formal action to approve the final budget and levy at 
the first City Council meeting in November. 
 


 
 


Budget Monitoring 
The budget is monitored throughout the year to ensure city departments remain within budget and complete planned 
activities. The Finance Committee and City Council receives monthly updates and a full financial report each quarter.  


Budget Amendments 
Periodically, during an operating year, it becomes necessary to modify the adopted budget. Modifications that affect the 
total budget on a fund basis are only approved by the action of the City Council. The City Council, under Wisconsin 
State Statutes Section 65.06, can modify or amend the budget if unappropriated funds are available. Budget 
appropriations are approved at the function level. 


 
Examples of such budget amendments would include requests for additional or emergency expenditures where reserve 
balances are available or additional revenues have been received. 


Fund Accounting 
The accounts of the city are organized into funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The 
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, 
liabilities, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, net position/fund balance, revenues, and expenditures, or expenses, 
as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes 
for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped 
in the annual financial statements into two broad fund categories and five generic fund types as follows: 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
OVERVIEW OF ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS, LEGAL AND POLICY 


REQUIREMENTS 


 


 


 


Governmental Funds Subject to Financial Planning and Appropriation 
General Fund -The General fund is the primary operating fund of the city. It is used to account for and report all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 


 
Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of certain specific 
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 


 
Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to account for and report the accumulation of resources for, and the 
payment of general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs. 


 
Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds. 


Other Funds Subject to Financial Planning but not Subject to Appropriation (Enterprise Funds) 
Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for and report operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises. With these, the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, 
including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges. The city has five (5) Enterprise Funds: Water Utility, Electric Utility, Sewer 
Utility, EMS and Storm Water.  


Basis of Accounting 


The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed by the governmental funds and agency funds. Under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable 
and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period. The city defines this period to be sixty-five days. Expenditures are recorded when 
the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on long- term debt, claims, judgments, 
compensated absences, and pension expenditures, which are recorded as a fund liability when expected to be 
paid with expendable available financial resources. 


 
Property taxes are recorded in the year levied as receivables and deferred inflows of resources. They are 
recognized as revenues in the succeeding year when services financed by the levy are being provided. In addition 
to property taxes for the city, taxes are collected for and remitted to the state and county governments as well 
as the local school district and technical college district. Taxes for all state and local governmental units billed in 
the current year for the succeeding year are reflected as deferred revenues and due to other taxing units on the 
accompanying balance sheet. Taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. 


 
Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenues in the period the related expenditures are incurred, if 
applicable, or when the city is entitled to the aids. 


 
Special assessments are recorded as revenues when collected. Annual installments due in future years are reflected 
as receivables and deferred inflows of resources. 


 
Revenues susceptible to accrual include property taxes, miscellaneous taxes, public charges for services and 
interest. 


 
Other general revenues such as fines and forfeitures, inspection fees, recreation fees, and miscellaneous 
revenues are recognized when received in cash or when measurable and available under the criteria described 
above. 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
OVERVIEW OF ANNUAL BUDGET PROCESS, LEGAL AND POLICY 


REQUIREMENTS 


 


 


 


Basis of Accounting (cont.) 
 


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 


Basis of Budgeting 


The city adopts an annual budget for the general, special revenue, debt service and capital project funds that 
are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting and the proprietary funds budgets are prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting, which are the same methods as the basis of accounting. The adopted budget 
indicates the amount that can be expended by each fund based on detailed budget estimates for individual 
expenditure accounts. Management may make budget modifications within the department level. All budget 
revisions at the function level must be authorized by the City Council. The Council, under Wisconsin Statutes, 
can modify or amend the budget if unappropriated funds are available. All supplemental appropriations are 
financed either by transfers from the contingency section of the general fund budget or by revenues received in 
excess of the budgeted amounts. All budget amounts lapse at the end of the year to the extent they have not 
been expended. The level which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is at the function level. The 
basis of budgeting for the city’s funds is the same as the basis used for the fund statements in the city’s annual 
financial report. 


Long Range Planning (Capital Improvement Program (CIP)) Overview 
As part of the annual budget and the long-range planning process, the city also updates a 5-year Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP). 


 
The Capital Improvement Process is ongoing throughout the year, as the City Council studies and approves various 
projects. The document preparation is an affirmation of those approvals as well as a projection of potential projects that 
may be approved within the 5-year period. 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
SUMMARY 


 


 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
SUMMARY 


 


 


 
 
 
 


 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 
The following is a summary of the 2021 general fund budget: 


 
 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 


MAJOR REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
General Fund Revenues and Expenditures Overview 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 
Description of Major General Fund Revenues 
A description of the major revenue categories and a discussion related to the revenue trend for the major revenue 
category can be found below. 


Category – Taxes – The tax category includes two types of major revenues. These include General Property and Utility 
Payment in Lieu of Tax. 


 


 
 


Property Taxes 
 


It has been the city council’s objective to keep tax rate increases to a minimum. The large increase in tax revenue 
in 2019 and 2020 was due to debt service requirements caused by capital projects in 2018 and prior years.  
The State of Wisconsin limits increases in property taxes to the greater of 0% or the percentage increase due 
to new construction (1.84% for 2020) plus increases in debt service requirements. The 2021 budget proposes 
to increase general fund property taxes by 0.6%. 


 
In recent years, the city has seen growth that has lagged behind the Dane County average. 
 
Property taxes are calculated by taking net expenditures and comparing to the state imposed levy limit. If the 
levy is under the limit, the City Council authorizes the amount to be taxed to city property owners based upon a 
calculated mil rate applied to taxpayer property values. Forecasted amounts are dependent upon net new 
construction within the city. 
 
Utility Payment In Lieu of Tax 


 


The Utility Payment in Lieu of Tax is tax calculated on utility property within the city limits. 
 


Growth in utility payment in lieu of tax revenue is dependent upon additions to the water and electric utility 
plant. This revenue does not increase greatly unless significant new plant is added to the city’s systems. The 
city generally budgets conservatively on this line item. 


 
The Utility Payment in Lieu of Tax is calculated by taking the water and electric utility plant within in the city limits 
as of January 1 of the current year multiplied by the mil rate of the city, school, and technical college. 


 $8,200,000
 $8,400,000
 $8,600,000
 $8,800,000
 $9,000,000
 $9,200,000
 $9,400,000
 $9,600,000
 $9,800,000


 $10,000,000
 $10,200,000
 $10,400,000


2017 2018


2019


2020
Budget


2021
Budget







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 


Category – Intergovernmental Revenues – The major sources of intergovernmental revenues for the city includes 
state shared revenues and transportation aids. 
 


 
 


State Shared Revenue 
 


State shared revenues have increased steadily over the past few years. 
 


The trend for shared revenues is that they remain relatively stable going forward. 
 


 
Year Amount % Change 


2017 Actual  $                831,109    
2018 Actual  $                826,359  -0.57% 
2019 Actual  $                875,783  5.98% 
2020 Budget  $                894,895  2.18% 
2021 Budget  $                890,400  -0.50% 


 
The city budgets for the amount that the state sends out to be included in the budget during September of the 
current year. The city will qualify for expenditure restraint in 2021. The non-expenditure restraint portion of state 
shared revenues is expected to remain stable in the future. 


 
The State of Wisconsin has indicated thus far that there will be no reductions to State Aids resulting from COVID-
19. This situation will continue to be monitored closely and if any changes occur, they will be communicated to 
the Finance Committee and City Council immediately. 


  


 $-


 $500,000


 $1,000,000


 $1,500,000


 $2,000,000


 $2,500,000


2017 2018
2019


2020 
Budget


2021
Budget







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 


General Transportation Aids 
 


The state awards funds for transportation based upon a formula called the “Share of Costs Calculation.” This 
uses a six-year average multiplied by a share of cost percentage determined by the state. 


 
Transportation aids are expected to continue their upwards trend in the coming years. 


 


 
 


The city budgets for the amount that the state sends out to be included in the budget during September of the 
current year.  


 
 


Category – Public Charges for Services – Charges for services within the general governmental funds assists in 
providing a diversity of revenue sources. Over the years, the city has instituted user fees for services where appropriate. 
A majority of the user fees for governmental services are collected from fire department fees, cable franchise fees, yard 
waste fees and recreation fees. The chart below does not include past activity related to the city’s garbage collection 
and recycling fees due to the fact it will be classified as a special revenue fund in 2020. The revenue has seen a slight 
decline over the years, but the overall decrease is immaterial in the city’s opinion. 


 


 


 $300,000


 $400,000


 $500,000


 $600,000


 $700,000


 $800,000


 $900,000


 $1,000,000


 $1,100,000


2017
2018


2019


2020
Budget


2021
Budget


 $300,000


 $350,000


 $400,000


 $450,000


 $500,000


 $550,000


 $600,000


 $650,000


2017 2018 2019 2020
Budget


2021
Budget







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 


 
Description of Major General Governmental Expenditures 


 


Category – General Government – Administration, legal and finance make up the majority of this category. The 2021 
budget increases are primarily due to re-categorizing the new 2020 custodian positions and an increase in the taxi 
service expenditures (offset mostly by revenues). 


 


 
 
 


Category – Public Safety – The city’s police and fire departments have moderate increases forecasted for 2021. 
Expenditures can vary year-to-year due to vacancies, retirements, overtime requirements, etc. 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 $1,650,000


 $1,700,000


 $1,750,000


 $1,800,000


 $1,850,000


 $1,900,000


 $1,950,000


 $2,000,000


 $2,050,000


 $2,100,000


 $2,150,000


2017


2018 2019


2020
Budget


2021
Budget


 $3,400,000


 $3,450,000


 $3,500,000


 $3,550,000


 $3,600,000


 $3,650,000


 $3,700,000


 $3,750,000


 $3,800,000


 $3,850,000


 $3,900,000


2017


2018
2019


2020
Budget


2021
Budget







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 
Category – Public Works – Maintenance of city infrastructure has seen increases in cost of service over the past four 
years. This category includes engineering, street maintenance, street lighting, and snow removal as its major 
components. The decrease in the 2020 budget is a result of classifying city’s garbage collection and recycling activities 
as a special revenue fund effective January 1, 2020. 
 


 
 


 
Category – Human Services, Culture, Recreation and Leisure Activities – The city offers robust recreation and 
senior center programs throughout the year. The city’s commitment to retaining these services is evidenced by the 
steady growth in the annual costs appropriated to these services and additional staffing in both 2020 and 2021. 


 


      


 $1,000,000


 $1,200,000


 $1,400,000


 $1,600,000


 $1,800,000


 $2,000,000


 $2,200,000


 $2,400,000


2017 2018


2019


2020
Budget


2021
Budget


 $-


 $200,000


 $400,000


 $600,000


 $800,000


 $1,000,000


 $1,200,000


 $1,400,000


 $1,600,000


 $1,800,000


 $2,000,000


2017 2018 2019


2020
Budget


2021
Budget







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 


Category – Debt Service – The city has been involved in many community enhancing projects including park 
improvements, street reconstructions and building projects. With these types of projects ongoing, the city has 
experienced an increase in debt service. The city has policies related to debt that can be found on the city’s website. 


 


 
 
Category – Other General Fund Transfers – This category consists of transfers out to the following funds: 
 


Opera House 
 


The Opera House has been significantly impacted by COVID-19 and the city increased the 2021 transfer amount by 
$13,000 in an attempt to mitigate any additional financial impacts in 2021. 


 


 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 $-


 $500,000


 $1,000,000


 $1,500,000


 $2,000,000


 $2,500,000


 $3,000,000


 $3,500,000


2017
2018


2019


2020
Budget


2021
Budget


 $150,000


 $155,000


 $160,000


 $165,000


 $170,000


 $175,000


 $180,000


 $185,000


 $190,000


 $195,000


2017 2018


2019


2020
Budget


2021
Budget







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 


 


 


 
 


Library 
 


The Library chose to eliminate fines in 2021 resulting in a slight increase to the city’s transfer over 2020. 
 
 


 
 


EMS 
 


EMS made its final debt service payment in 2020 eliminating the need for city funding in 2021. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 


 $-


 $100,000


 $200,000


 $300,000


 $400,000


 $500,000


 $600,000


 $700,000


2017


2018 2019


2020
Budget


2021
Budget


 $-


 $10,000


 $20,000


 $30,000


 $40,000


 $50,000


 $60,000


 $70,000


 $80,000


 $90,000


2017 2018 2019


2020
Budget


2021
Budget







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 


 


 


 
 


EQUALIZED AND ASSESSED VALUE – LAST TEN YEARS  
 


          
         Ratio of Assessed 


 Levy   Budget  Equalized   Assessed   to Equalized 
 Year  Year  Value   Value   Value 
 2011  2012   $        963,480,600    $        932,264,960   96.76% 


 2012  2013   $        918,270,600    $        911,725,683   99.28% 
 2013  2014   $        894,125,500    $        909,159,183   101.68% 
 2014  2015   $        913,080,500    $        912,344,800   99.92% 
 2015  2016   $        954,262,000    $        948,202,600   99.36% 
 2016  2017   $      1,000,796,500    $        996,893,100   99.57% 
 2017  2018   $      1,065,541,100    $      1,054,034,100   98.75% 
 2018  2019   $      1,163,261,500    $      1,130,807,600   97.21% 
 2019  2020   $      1,233,724,300    $      1,201,415,140   97.37% 
 2020  2021   $      1,268,041,900    $      1,255,575,395   99.02% 


 
 


 
 
 


 


 $-


 $200,000,000


 $400,000,000


 $600,000,000


 $800,000,000


 $1,000,000,000


 $1,200,000,000


 $1,400,000,000


2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021


Equalized Value Assessed Value







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 


 


 


 


LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION  
 


 


 
 


 
Note: In accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the city may not exceed five percent of the equalized value of taxable property 


within the city’s jurisdiction. 







CITY OF STOUGHTON


EQUALIZED VALUE CONSTRUCTION PERCENT
FITCHBURG 3,419,112,900$ 167,048,400$ 4.89%
WAUNAKEE 2,070,712,600$ 55,307,500$ 2.67%
MIDDLETON 3,829,510,100$ 99,918,400$ 2.61%
WINDSOR 1,000,157,500$ 24,148,400$ 2.41%
OREGON 1,232,395,400$ 25,846,500$ 2.10%
VERONA 3,072,163,900$ 61,495,500$ 2.00%
MADISON 30,910,698,000$ 614,493,900$ 1.99%
STOUGHTON 1,233,724,300$ 22,658,900$ 1.84%
MONONA 1,386,302,300$ 24,814,200$ 1.79%
MOUNT HOREB 793,824,100$ 13,383,600$ 1.69%
SUN PRAIRIE 3,634,094,300$ 52,562,200$ 1.45%
SHOREWOOD HILLS 635,370,300$ 7,526,800$ 1.18%
EDGERTON * 25,158,400$ 241,500$ 0.96%
ROCKDALE 16,260,700$ 112,000$ 0.69%


2020 DANE COUNTY 
NET NEW CONSTRUCTION 


MUNICIPALITY







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON MILL RATE HISTORY







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 CONDENSED GENERAL FUND BUDGET


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)


REVENUES
TAXES 9,572,362$            9,562,229$            10,141,534$          9,442,273$            10,214,770$          73,236$                  
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 2,063,980$            2,028,126$            2,280,126$            1,528,543$            2,393,631$            113,505$               
LICENSES & PERMITS 221,900$               229,789$               199,075$               175,557$               200,500$               1,425$                    
FINES, FORFEITS & PENALTIES 127,500$               149,398$               155,000$               73,228$                  147,000$               (8,000)$                  
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 1,351,660$            1,386,756$            588,894$               346,770$               571,199$               (17,695)$                
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR 82,000$                  82,000$                  64,000$                  64,000$                  82,000$                  18,000$                  
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 393,066$               633,560$               442,505$               323,521$               332,339$               (110,166)$              
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 110,000$               196,169$               65,000$                  18,900$                  187,000$               122,000$               
     TOTAL REVENUES 13,922,468$          14,268,027$          13,936,134$          11,972,792$          14,128,439$          192,305$               


EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,061,493$            1,923,418$            2,055,672$            1,485,698$            2,123,388$            67,716$                  
PUBLIC SAFETY 3,791,389$            3,711,387$            3,867,662$            2,595,585$            3,883,219$            15,557$                  
PUBLIC WORKS 2,264,371$            2,343,945$            1,676,663$            1,099,234$            1,695,543$            18,880$                  
HUMAN SERVICES 35,000$                  37,421$                  36,000$                  23,836$                  36,000$                  -$                        
RECREATION-SENIOR SERVICES 1,582,411$            1,569,207$            1,707,704$            1,081,116$            1,790,998$            83,294$                  
TRANSFERS 4,187,430$            4,180,052$            4,583,613$            4,600,038$            4,590,536$            6,923$                    
     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 13,922,094$          13,765,430$          13,927,314$          10,885,507$          14,119,684$          192,370$               


EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
      OVER EXPENDITURES


374$                       502,597$               8,820$                    1,087,285$            8,755$                    (65)$                        







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON PUBLIC HEARING RECONCILIATION


PUBLIC 
HEARING 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND NOTICE PROPOSED (DECREASE)


REVENUES
TAXES 10,214,770$         10,214,770$         -$                       
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 2,393,631$            2,393,631$            -$                       
LICENSES & PERMITS 200,500$               200,500$               -$                       
FINES, FORFEITS & PENALTIES 147,000$               147,000$               -$                       
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 583,199$               571,199$               (12,000)$                Note A
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR 82,000$                 82,000$                 -$                       
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 332,339$               332,339$               -$                       
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 175,000$               187,000$               12,000$                 Note A
     TOTAL REVENUES 14,128,439$         14,128,439$         -$                       


EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT 1,829,350$            2,123,388$            294,038$               Note A
PUBLIC SAFETY 3,785,696$            3,883,219$            97,523$                 Note A
PUBLIC WORKS 1,793,066$            1,695,543$            (97,523)$                Note A
HUMAN SERVICES 636,861$               36,000$                 (600,861)$              Note A
RECREATION-SENIOR SERVICES 1,190,137$            1,790,998$            600,861$               Note A
CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT 294,038$               -$                       (294,038)$              Note A
TRANSFERS 4,590,536$            4,590,536$            -$                       Note A
     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 14,119,684$         14,119,684$         -$                       


EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
      OVER EXPENDITURES


8,755$                   8,755$                   -$                       


Note A - All variances between the 2021 budget and the public hearing notice simply relate
to different category classifications between the budget amounts presented here and the 







                                                                                                                                  


                     CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND REVENUES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND REVENUES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
TAXES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES 9,032,362$           9,032,362$           9,384,714$           9,383,714$           9,462,070$           77,356$                 
41210 ROOM TAXES 6,500$                   5,485$                   8,120$                   1,536$                   7,200$                   (920)$                     
41310 UTILITY PILOT AND DIVIDENDS 476,500$               465,969$               689,000$               -$                       688,000$               (1,000)$                  
41320 SHA PILOT 48,000$                 47,232$                 48,500$                 47,595$                 47,500$                 (1,000)$                  
41321 DCHA PILOT 9,000$                   11,181$                 11,200$                 9,428$                   10,000$                 (1,200)$                  
     TOTAL TAXES 9,572,362$           9,562,229$           10,141,534$         9,442,273$           10,214,770$         73,236$                 


INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
43410 STATE SHARED TAXES 559,550$               523,592$               539,975$               80,997$                 539,950$               (25)$                       
43411 STATE UTILITY AID -$                       20,900$                 20,070$                 3,010$                   22,350$                 2,280$                   
43415 EXPENDITURE RESTRAINT PAYMENT 231,250$               231,263$               238,150$               238,146$               235,200$               (2,950)$                  
43420 FIRE INSURANCE REBATE 42,000$                 49,512$                 49,500$                 50,368$                 51,400$                 1,900$                   
43430 EXEMPT COMPUTER AID 59,000$                 59,960$                 60,000$                 59,960$                 59,500$                 (500)$                     
43431 PERSONAL PROPERTY AID 40,000$                 40,068$                 36,700$                 36,760$                 33,400$                 (3,300)$                  
43521 STATE GRANTS-POLICE 3,680$                   -$                       23,700$                 1,455$                   2,000$                   (21,700)$                
43522 FEDERAL AID: POLICE 1,000$                   -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
43531 STATE ROAD ALLOTMENT 760,000$               760,213$               874,000$               655,683$               1,005,000$           131,000$               
43533 STATE AID - STREETS 51,500$                 51,860$                 51,700$                 38,798$                 51,900$                 200$                      
43537 TAXI GRANT 190,000$               148,453$               190,800$               196,977$               203,000$               12,200$                 
43545 RECYCLING GRANT 34,000$                 34,075$                 34,100$                 34,071$                 34,100$                 -$                       
4571 VIDEO SERVICE PROVIDERS AID -$                       -$                       13,815$                 28,031$                 28,031$                 
43693 SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 60,000$                 62,202$                 64,000$                 45,665$                 32,000$                 (32,000)$                
43790 COUNTY FUNDING - OUTREACH 32,000$                 46,028$                 97,431$                 63,629$                 51,800$                 (45,631)$                
43791 GRANTS -$                       -$                       -$                       9,209$                   44,000$                 44,000$                 
     TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 2,063,980$           2,028,126$           2,280,126$           1,528,543$           2,393,631$           113,505$               


LICENSES & PERMITS
44110 LIQUOR & MALT BEVERAGE 18,000$                 39,579$                 18,000$                 20,471$                 18,000$                 -$                       
44111 OPERATORS 11,000$                 11,870$                 12,000$                 8,610$                   11,000$                 (1,000)$                  
44120 CIGARETTE 1,600$                   1,575$                   1,575$                   1,600$                   1,600$                   25$                        
44150 MISC. LICENSE 6,800$                   6,583$                   7,000$                   5,587$                   6,500$                   (500)$                     
44210 DOG 2,500$                   3,440$                   3,500$                   1,182$                   3,400$                   (100)$                     







                                                                                                                                  


                     CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND REVENUES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND REVENUES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
44300 BUILDING 90,000$                 67,360$                 75,000$                 51,347$                 75,000$                 -$                       
44310 ELECTRICAL 30,000$                 25,105$                 25,000$                 19,741$                 25,000$                 -$                       
44320 PLUMBING 18,000$                 17,002$                 15,000$                 10,414$                 15,000$                 -$                       
44330 HEATING 15,000$                 13,580$                 12,000$                 15,316$                 12,000$                 -$                       
44340 FIRE PROTECTION FEES 4,000$                   5,865$                   5,000$                   4,417$                   5,000$                   -$                       
44900 MISC 25,000$                 37,830$                 25,000$                 36,872$                 28,000$                 3,000$                   
     TOTAL LICENSES & PERMITS 221,900$               229,789$               199,075$               175,557$               200,500$               1,425$                   


FINES, FORFEITS & PENALTIES
45100 COURT PENALTIES/COSTS 100,000$               107,915$               120,000$               53,796$                 112,000$               (8,000)$                  
45130 PARKING FINES 27,500$                 41,483$                 35,000$                 19,432$                 35,000$                 -$                       
     TOTAL FINES, FORFEITS & PENALTIES 127,500$               149,398$               155,000$               73,228$                 147,000$               (8,000)$                  


PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE
46110 MISC. REVENUE 5,000$                   9,809$                   5,000$                   2,285$                   5,000$                   -$                       
46150 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ADMIN FEES 11,500$                 11,865$                 11,500$                 7,735$                   11,500$                 -$                       
46210 POLICE DEPT FEES 16,000$                 25,341$                 1,000$                   1,186$                   1,000$                   -$                       
46220 FIRE DEPT FEES 164,000$               167,110$               170,000$               162,854$               175,000$               5,000$                   
46290 MVD FEES 10,000$                 6,387$                   6,000$                   25,310$                 6,500$                   500$                      
46309 ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEES 6,000$                   7,140$                   6,000$                   3,800$                   4,000$                   (2,000)$                  
46310 PUBLIC WORKS CHARGES-MECHANIC 12,000$                 19,807$                 -$                       309$                      500$                      500$                      
46312 INSPECTION-MOW/SNOW CHARGES 2,500$                   1,736$                   1,000$                   1,870$                   2,000$                   1,000$                   
46420 GARBAGE COLLECTION FEES 745,000$               747,803$               -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
46430 STREET OPENING INCUMBERANCE 5,000$                   21,936$                 8,000$                   14,276$                 10,000$                 2,000$                   
46435 YARD WASTE SITE FEES 11,000$                 18,805$                 21,000$                 20,265$                 21,000$                 -$                       
46540 CEMETERY FEES 12,000$                 12,781$                 12,000$                 6,356$                   11,000$                 (1,000)$                  
46590 TAXABLE CRAFT SALES -$                       1,368$                   1,500$                   60$                        1,500$                   -$                       
46595 MISC TAXABLE SALES -$                       167$                      -$                       (131)$                     -$                       -$                       
46610 NEWSLETTER -$                       412$                      -$                       228$                      -$                       -$                       
46720 PARK RESERVATIONS 7,000$                   8,438$                   7,000$                   950$                      7,000$                   -$                       
46750 RECREATION 48,273$                 64,607$                 47,470$                 17,425$                 48,389$                 919$                      
46751 SWIM POND 65,000$                 49,366$                 70,000$                 -$                       70,000$                 -$                       
46752 REC INSTRUCTION FEES 87,887$                 64,402$                 75,924$                 18,281$                 76,310$                 386$                      







                                                                                                                                  


                     CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND REVENUES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND REVENUES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
46755 CABLE FRANCHISE FEE 138,000$               140,156$               138,000$               63,273$                 115,000$               (23,000)$                
46756 UNDERWRITING 3,000$                   4,625$                   5,000$                   -$                       3,000$                   (2,000)$                  
46757 CABLE - TAXABLE SALES 500$                      540$                      500$                      288$                      500$                      -$                       
46759 VIDEO PRODUCTION SERVICES 2,000$                   2,155$                   2,000$                   150$                      2,000$                   -$                       
     TOTAL PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 1,351,660$           1,386,756$           588,894$               346,770$               571,199$               (17,695)$                


INTERGOVERNMENTAL ADMIN FEES
47410 SEWER UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 15,400$                 15,400$                 15,400$                 15,400$                 15,400$                 -$                       
47420 ELECTRIC UTILITY ADMINISTRATIO 35,400$                 35,400$                 35,400$                 35,400$                 35,400$                 -$                       
47430 WATER UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 13,200$                 13,200$                 13,200$                 13,200$                 13,200$                 -$                       
47440 EMS ADMINISTRATION 18,000$                 18,000$                 -$                       -$                       18,000$                 18,000$                 
     TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL ADMIN FEES 82,000$                 82,000$                 64,000$                 64,000$                 82,000$                 18,000$                 


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
48100 OTHER REIMBURSEMENTS -$                       2,450$                   -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
48110 INTEREST 90,000$                 222,707$               90,000$                 76,451$                 12,000$                 (78,000)$                
48111 INTEREST: LONG TERM INVESTMENT -$                       -$                       -$                       10,548$                 -$                       
48112 INTEREST ON TAXES -$                       701$                      -$                       476$                      -$                       -$                       
48113 REBATE 5,000$                   12,803$                 10,000$                 8,095$                   10,000$                 -$                       
48114 DIVIDENDS 16,000$                 28,428$                 30,000$                 -$                       31,000$                 1,000$                   
48130 INTEREST - ASSESSMENTS -$                       813$                      -$                       1,006$                   750$                      750$                      
48220 RENTAL INCOME -$                       10,000$                 10,000$                 7,000$                   10,000$                 -$                       
48221 RENTAL INCOME 10,000$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
48309 SALE OF CITY PROPERTY -$                       5,297$                   -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
48400 INSURANCE RECOVERIES-PROPERTY -$                       5,123$                   3,000$                   2,742$                   3,000$                   -$                       
48410 INSURANCE RECOVERIES-WORKCOMP -$                       1,058$                   -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
48420 INSURANCE- REBATE -$                       9,526$                   15,000$                 16,076$                 14,600$                 (400)$                     
48500 DONATIONS -$                       (168)$                     -$                       3,000$                   -$                       -$                       
48501 DC NUTRITION CONTRACT 30,000$                 32,073$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
48503 DONATIONS- KITCHEN FUND 8,000$                   18,208$                 12,000$                 12,731$                 12,000$                 -$                       
48504 DONATIONS - TOWNSHIPS 45,000$                 40,250$                 50,856$                 14,750$                 35,000$                 (15,856)$                
48505 DONATIONS - CENTER 29,000$                 29,547$                 29,000$                 26,394$                 29,500$                 500$                      
48507 DONATIONS - SEN CNTR CASE MGMT -$                       20$                        -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       







                                                                                                                                  


                     CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND REVENUES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND REVENUES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
48509 DONATIONS - SPECIAL GIFT (FOUN -$                       38,000$                 40,000$                 38,000$                 25,000$                 (15,000)$                
48519 FSAYC CONTRIBUTION 121,070$               130,601$               115,038$               60,430$                 116,499$               1,461$                   
48522 DONATIONS - YOUTH CENTER 1,000$                   450$                      700$                      350$                      700$                      -$                       
48523 DANE COUNTY DONATIONS 8,996$                   9,311$                   9,311$                   7,193$                   -$                       (9,311)$                  
48524 UNITED WAY DONATIONS 4,000$                   3,230$                   2,600$                   2,516$                   2,600$                   -$                       
48540 POLICE SAFETY CAMP 5,000$                   500$                      5,000$                   5,000$                   -$                       (5,000)$                  
48541 DONATIONS-POLICE-NATIONAL NIGHT OUT 20,000$                 28,352$                 20,000$                 29,690$                 29,690$                 9,690$                   
48542 SHOP WITH A COP -$                       895$                      -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
48543 PAUL KRABY MEMORIAL -$                       3,385$                   -$                       1,073$                   -$                       -$                       
     TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 393,066$               633,560$               442,505$               323,521$               332,339$               (110,166)$             


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
42321 TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER 20,000$                 14,865$                 20,000$                 18,900$                 12,000$                 (8,000)$                  
49214 TRANSFER IN -BLDG MAINT -$                       -$                       45,000$                 -$                       45,000$                 -$                       
49223 TRANSFER IN - TIF #3 10,000$                 181,304$               -$                       -$                       130,000$               130,000$               
49300 SURPLUS 80,000$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
     TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 110,000$               196,169$               65,000$                 18,900$                 187,000$               122,000$               


     TOTAL REVENUES 13,922,468$         14,268,027$         13,936,134$         11,972,792$         14,128,439$         192,305$               







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Dept 51100 - LEGISLATIVE
50110 SALARIES 43,200$                 44,520$                 43,200$                 30,180$                 43,200$                 -$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3,305$                    3,406$                    3,300$                    2,309$                    3,305$                    5$                            
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 500$                       -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
  Totals for dept 51100 - LEGISLATIVE 47,005$                 47,926$                 46,500$                 32,489$                 46,505$                 5$                            


Dept 51200 - JUDICIAL
50110 SALARIES 12,500$                 12,596$                 12,500$                 9,280$                    13,000$                 500$                       
50120 WAGES 28,655$                 27,992$                 31,308$                 21,746$                 31,866$                 558$                       
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 4,997$                    5,087$                    5,662$                    3,944$                    5,758$                    96$                         
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,600$                    1,511$                    2,000$                    908$                       2,000$                    -$                        
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 450$                       222$                       450$                       145$                       500$                       50$                         
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 10,000$                 7,529$                    9,850$                    7,455$                    9,800$                    (50)$                        
  Totals for dept 51200 - JUDICIAL 58,202$                 54,937$                 61,770$                 43,478$                 62,924$                 1,154$                    


Dept 51300 - LEGAL
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 120,000$               133,126$               130,000$               81,395$                 130,000$               -$                        
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 10,000$                 4,152$                    10,000$                 3,327$                    10,000$                 -$                        
  Totals for dept 51300 - LEGAL 130,000$               137,278$               140,000$               84,722$                 140,000$               -$                        


Dept 51400 - MAYOR
50110 SALARIES 62,992$                 63,444$                 63,927$                 44,978$                 64,626$                 699$                       
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 9,304$                    9,196$                    9,574$                    6,595$                    9,628$                    54$                         
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 14,877$                 14,884$                 14,937$                 11,203$                 15,282$                 345$                       
50210 TELEPHONE 650$                       633$                       700$                       483$                       700$                       -$                        
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,700$                    746$                       1,700$                    426$                       1,700$                    -$                        
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 7,500$                    7,437$                    7,700$                    7,891$                    8,000$                    300$                       
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 2,700$                    1,062$                    2,700$                    1,231$                    2,700$                    -$                        
  Totals for dept 51400 - MAYOR 99,723$                 97,402$                 101,238$               72,807$                 102,636$               1,398$                    


Dept 51420 - CLERK
50110 SALARIES 66,671$                 67,112$                 69,639$                 49,015$                 71,181$                 1,542$                    
50120 WAGES 66,744$                 68,194$                 69,276$                 48,972$                 70,888$                 1,612$                    
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 16,635$                 16,440$                 17,605$                 12,073$                 17,997$                 392$                       
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 37,512$                 18,454$                 18,502$                 13,876$                 18,934$                 432$                       
50210 TELEPHONE 4,500$                    3,131$                    3,000$                    2,190$                    3,000$                    -$                        
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 2,800$                    880$                       2,800$                    236$                       2,600$                    (200)$                      







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 10,650$                 7,693$                    8,050$                    4,423$                    7,950$                    (100)$                      
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 3,500$                    2,613$                    2,900$                    1,609$                    2,900$                    -$                        
50341 OPERATING EXPENSES-MUNICIPAL CODE 4,000$                    6,808$                    6,500$                    2,146$                    6,500$                    -$                        
  Totals for dept 51420 - CLERK 213,012$               191,325$               198,272$               134,540$               201,950$               3,678$                    


Dept 51440 - ELECTION
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 10,500$                 3,846$                    26,000$                 10,425$                 10,500$                 (15,500)$                
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 2,500$                    1,761$                    3,000$                    2,925$                    2,500$                    (500)$                      
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 3,750$                    5,293$                    14,225$                 29,724$                 7,000$                    (7,225)$                  
  Totals for dept 51440 - ELECTION 16,750$                 10,900$                 43,225$                 43,074$                 20,000$                 (23,225)$                


Dept 51510 - FINANCE DIRECTOR
50110 SALARIES 104,069$               105,629$               104,820$               74,492$                 107,115$               2,295$                    
50120 WAGES 100,478$               105,445$               111,212$               77,571$                 113,525$               2,313$                    
50126 OVERTIME -$                        96$                         -$                        41$                         -$                        -$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 29,244$                 29,939$                 31,410$                 22,205$                 32,223$                 813$                       
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 66,343$                 65,588$                 66,522$                 48,434$                 68,101$                 1,579$                    
50200 MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES -$                        5,320$                    -$                        2,285$                    3,100$                    3,100$                    
50211 POSTAGE 3,000$                    875$                       2,000$                    759$                       1,000$                    (1,000)$                  
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 3,000$                    1,235$                    3,000$                    1,661$                    2,000$                    (1,000)$                  
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 60,900$                 62,281$                 72,000$                 63,387$                 72,000$                 -$                        
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/BANK FEES 3,000$                    1,498$                    2,500$                    1,196$                    1,500$                    (1,000)$                  
50219 TAXI GRANT 209,000$               151,453$               191,000$               106,174$               206,000$               15,000$                 
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 24,200$                 19,433$                 19,000$                 10,281$                 24,000$                 5,000$                    
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 3,000$                    1,326$                    2,000$                    595$                       2,000$                    -$                        
  Totals for dept 51510 - FINANCE DIRECTOR 606,234$               550,118$               605,464$               409,081$               632,564$               27,100$                 


Dept 51530 - ASSESSOR
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 44,000$                 44,000$                 44,000$                 44,000$                 40,000$                 (4,000)$                  
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 3,500$                    3,809$                    3,900$                    -$                        4,200$                    300$                       
  Totals for dept 51530 - ASSESSOR 47,500$                 47,809$                 47,900$                 44,000$                 44,200$                 (3,700)$                  


Dept 51550 - HR/RISK MANAGEMENT
50110 SALARIES 91,338$                 92,090$                 93,269$                 65,430$                 95,177$                 1,908$                    
50120 WAGES 37,942$                 38,428$                 38,948$                 27,224$                 42,732$                 3,784$                    
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 18,698$                 18,533$                 19,385$                 13,263$                 20,300$                 915$                       
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 8,018$                    8,142$                    21,916$                 16,552$                 22,426$                 510$                       
50190 TRAINING 3,000$                    508$                       3,000$                    181$                       3,000$                    -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50210 TELEPHONE 750$                       609$                       480$                       690$                       600$                       120$                       
50211 POSTAGE 100$                       21$                         -$                        -$                        50$                         50$                         
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,950$                    465$                       2,000$                    -$                        -$                        (2,000)$                  
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,000$                    3,559$                    2,000$                    1,099$                    2,000$                    -$                        
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 10,000$                 864$                       1,000$                    99$                         1,000$                    -$                        
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 13,790$                 3,781$                    9,290$                    7,615$                    9,290$                    -$                        
  Totals for dept 51550 - HR/RISK MANAGEMENT 187,586$               167,000$               191,288$               132,153$               196,575$               5,287$                    


Dept 51900 - OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT
50153 SELF INSURED LOSSES 70,000$                 20,216$                 31,000$                 -$                        35,000$                 4,000$                    
50300 MISC EXPENSES 53,000$                 54,502$                 57,000$                 56,815$                 57,700$                 700$                       
  Totals for dept 51900 - OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 123,000$               74,718$                 88,000$                 56,815$                 92,700$                 4,700$                    


Dept 51930 - INSURANCE
50510 PROPERTY/LIABILITY INSURANCE 31,764$                 27,643$                 28,000$                 28,153$                 28,716$                 716$                       
50511 EXCESS LIABILITY INSURANCE 1,540$                    2,038$                    2,100$                    2,088$                    2,506$                    406$                       
50512 EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY 7,214$                    5,265$                    6,000$                    5,313$                    6,110$                    110$                       
50513 AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE INSURANCE 42,000$                 37,947$                 41,000$                 42,403$                 46,304$                 5,304$                    
50514 BOILER/MACHINERY INSURANCE 2,000$                    830$                       1,500$                    1,891$                    2,085$                    585$                       
50515 PROPERTY INSURANCE 27,152$                 26,428$                 28,000$                 32,404$                 38,599$                 10,599$                 
50516 CRIME INSURANCE 839$                       925$                       1,000$                    703$                       773$                       (227)$                      
50519 VOLUNTEER WORKERS COMP INSURANCE 600$                       348$                       500$                       929$                       703$                       203$                       
50520 WORKERS COMP. INSURANCE 164,655$               155,467$               165,000$               102,987$               155,000$               (10,000)$                
50523 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 8,500$                    5,953$                    6,500$                    8,882$                    8,500$                    2,000$                    
  Totals for dept 51930 - INSURANCE 286,264$               262,844$               279,600$               225,753$               289,296$               9,696$                    


Dept 56300 - PLANNING
50110 SALARIES 88,433$                 99,855$                 90,143$                 71,427$                 103,314$               13,171$                 
50120 WAGES 68,929$                 92,336$                 77,379$                 64,757$                 95,512$                 18,133$                 
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 22,488$                 26,728$                 24,213$                 18,897$                 27,999$                 3,786$                    
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 38,117$                 37,177$                 31,930$                 26,090$                 35,713$                 3,783$                    
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 3,000$                    2,377$                    3,000$                    1,376$                    3,000$                    -$                        
50330 VEHICLE EXPENSE 1,000$                    562$                       1,000$                    1,181$                    1,500$                    500$                       
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 2,000$                    2,342$                    2,000$                    2,551$                    3,000$                    1,000$                    
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES - PLANNING DEPARTMENT 22,250$                 19,784$                 22,750$                 20,507$                 24,000$                 1,250$                    
  Totals for dept 56300 - PLANNING 246,217$               281,161$               252,415$               206,786$               294,038$               41,623$                 


Total - Function GENERAL GOVERNMENT 2,061,493$            1,923,418$            2,055,672$            1,485,698$            2,123,388$            67,716$                 







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)


PUBLIC SAFETY
Dept 52100 - LAW ENFORCEMENT
50110 SALARIES 104,900$               105,783$               107,132$               75,042$                 95,824$                 (11,308)$                
50120 WAGES 1,483,607$            1,489,425$            1,528,318$            1,050,989$            1,551,220$            22,902$                 
50122 WAGES - DISPATCH 313,757$               325,923$               321,320$               207,434$               320,355$               (965)$                      
50123 WAGES - COMMUNITY SERVICE OFFICER 21,404$                 26,744$                 21,852$                 13,967$                 22,362$                 510$                       
50125 OVERTIME - DISPATCH 13,000$                 11,330$                 13,000$                 7,878$                    11,500$                 (1,500)$                  
50126 OVERTIME 123,000$               116,350$               123,000$               89,394$                 123,000$               -$                        
50127 WAGES - PART TIME-CROSSING GUARDS 20,600$                 15,261$                 20,600$                 3,865$                    20,600$                 -$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 343,114$               355,167$               380,667$               259,389$               385,811$               5,144$                    
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 436,743$               420,028$               417,599$               289,127$               400,437$               (17,162)$                
50190 TRAINING 31,260$                 24,906$                 31,260$                 19,239$                 34,760$                 3,500$                    
50210 TELEPHONE 26,000$                 24,432$                 15,600$                 13,209$                 16,500$                 900$                       
50214 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 1,800$                    1,704$                    1,800$                    1,752$                    2,000$                    200$                       
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 44,000$                 15,484$                 43,500$                 36,660$                 45,500$                 2,000$                    
50217 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3 1,500$                    950$                       1,500$                    85$                         2,000$                    500$                       
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 23,400$                 18,321$                 23,400$                 16,584$                 23,400$                 -$                        
50241 DANE COM FEES 24,000$                 12,972$                 26,000$                 17,500$                 26,000$                 -$                        
50330 VEHICLE EXPENSE 17,000$                 15,365$                 17,200$                 6,346$                    17,200$                 -$                        
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 30,000$                 34,437$                 30,000$                 17,583$                 30,000$                 -$                        
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES-NATIONAL NIGHT OUT 50,500$                 64,974$                 50,500$                 62,225$                 50,500$                 -$                        
50390 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 34,200$                 27,412$                 31,200$                 16,980$                 31,200$                 -$                        
50394 BUDDY BENCHES -$                        -$                        -$                        625$                       -$                        
50395 POLICE SAFETY CAMP 5,000$                    -$                        5,000$                    2,091$                    5,000$                    -$                        
50396 GRANT EXPENDITURES -$                        1,700$                    -$                        -$                        15,000$                 15,000$                 
50397 SHOP WITH A COP -$                        313$                       -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50398 PAUL KRABY MEMORIAL -$                        1,005$                    -$                        170$                       -$                        -$                        
  Totals for dept 52100 - LAW ENFORCEMENT 3,148,785$            3,109,986$            3,210,448$            2,208,134$            3,230,169$            19,721$                 


Dept 52200 - FIRE PROTECTION
50110 SALARIES 87,353$                 86,346$                 89,165$                 67,276$                 87,672$                 (1,493)$                  
50120 WAGES 103,105$               105,560$               109,663$               76,888$                 107,618$               (2,045)$                  
50124 WAGES - VOLUNTEERS 117,000$               85,686$                 110,000$               19,288$                 110,000$               -$                        
50127 WAGES - PART TIME -$                        2,220$                    -$                        940$                       -$                        -$                        
50129 LONGEVITY - VOLUNTEERS 9,000$                    7,025$                    7,500$                    -$                        7,800$                    300$                       
50130 FIRE PENSION BENEFIT 40,000$                 38,467$                 42,000$                 6,500$                    42,000$                 -$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 42,712$                 41,884$                 46,153$                 26,466$                 45,442$                 (711)$                      







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 51,868$                 51,887$                 53,818$                 33,116$                 45,126$                 (8,692)$                  
50190 TRAINING 3,100$                    2,167$                    2,500$                    1,122$                    7,720$                    5,220$                    
50210 TELEPHONE 2,400$                    4,371$                    3,000$                    1,279$                    2,500$                    (500)$                      
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,425$                    911$                       1,600$                    127$                       2,500$                    900$                       
50217 OUTSIDE SERVICES - CLEANING 5,000$                    4,304$                    -$                        3,588$                    500$                       500$                       
50220 UTILITIES 23,000$                 23,470$                 23,000$                 14,089$                 23,000$                 -$                        
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 15,000$                 14,577$                 16,000$                 35,531$                 19,875$                 3,875$                    
50241 DANE CAD 3,300$                    2,966$                    2,500$                    2,233$                    5,974$                    3,474$                    
50245 BUILDING & GROUNDS 14,000$                 13,087$                 10,000$                 10,521$                 10,000$                 -$                        
50300 MISC EXPENSES 300$                       34$                         300$                       2,306$                    300$                       -$                        
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 350$                       49$                         1,550$                    1,412$                    1,550$                    -$                        
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 2,850$                    3,470$                    6,150$                    5,383$                    9,700$                    3,550$                    
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 6,000$                    6,955$                    8,350$                    3,999$                    8,950$                    600$                       
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 10,800$                 10,474$                 10,800$                 6,349$                    10,800$                 -$                        
50342 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2 1,000$                    1,262$                    1,000$                    331$                       1,000$                    -$                        
50390 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 2,000$                    94$                         2,000$                    687$                       5,500$                    3,500$                    
  Totals for dept 52200 - FIRE PROTECTION 541,563$               507,266$               547,049$               319,431$               555,527$               8,478$                    


Dept 52400 - INSPECTION
50120 WAGES 72,696$                 66,147$                 80,476$                 46,165$                 68,365$                 (12,111)$                
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 9,850$                    9,704$                    11,152$                 6,850$                    10,276$                 (876)$                      
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 14,495$                 14,884$                 14,937$                 11,203$                 15,282$                 345$                       
50215 WEIGHTS & MEASURES 4,000$                    3,200$                    3,600$                    3,600$                    3,600$                    -$                        
50216 INSPECTION-MOW/SNOW CHARGES -$                        200$                       -$                        475$                       -$                        -$                        
  Totals for dept 52400 - INSPECTION 101,041$               94,135$                 110,165$               68,293$                 97,523$                 (12,642)$                


Total - Function PUBLIC SAFETY 3,791,389$            3,711,387$            3,867,662$            2,595,858$            3,883,219$            15,557$                 


PUBLIC WORKS
Dept 53200 - CITY BUILDINGS
50110 SALARIES 10,879$                 -$                        11,096$                 -$                        -$                        (11,096)$                
50120 WAGES 71,187$                 56,761$                 109,418$               42,183$                 116,177$               6,759$                    
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 11,438$                 8,307$                    16,683$                 6,211$                    16,134$                 (549)$                      
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 25,954$                 22,121$                 45,542$                 16,631$                 29,844$                 (15,698)$                
50200 MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES -$                        308$                       -$                        202$                       -$                        -$                        
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-CITY HALL 15,000$                 13,053$                 7,708$                    7,588$                    6,000$                    (1,708)$                  
50220 UTILITIES - CITY HALL 30,000$                 30,002$                 30,000$                 19,699$                 30,000$                 -$                        
50221 UTILITIES-SENIOR CENTER ANNEX 1,000$                    484$                       500$                       295$                       500$                       -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50222 UTILITIES & MAINTENANCE - DEPOT 6,000$                    3,974$                    6,000$                    2,934$                    6,000$                    -$                        
50223 UTILITIES & MAINTENANCE - FOOD PANTRY 2,750$                    5,991$                    1,900$                    5,122$                    2,000$                    100$                       
50224 UTILITIES - MSB PROPERTY -$                        21,080$                 30,000$                 11,190$                 22,000$                 (8,000)$                  
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 10,000$                 12,455$                 13,000$                 8,194$                    13,000$                 -$                        
50341 OPERATING EXPENSES-MSB PROPERTY -$                        5,086$                    7,280$                    4,653$                    7,000$                    (280)$                      
50350 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 7,000$                    10,114$                 7,000$                    7,420$                    7,000$                    -$                        
50351 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE - MSB PROPERTY -$                        1,556$                    5,000$                    4,643$                    5,000$                    -$                        
  Totals for dept 53200 - CITY BUILDINGS 191,208$               191,292$               291,127$               136,965$               260,655$               (30,472)$                


Dept 53300 - HIGHWAY & STREET MAINT/CONST
50110 SALARIES 59,309$                 59,117$                 58,869$                 41,069$                 60,078$                 1,209$                    
50120 WAGES 526,113$               549,297$               534,189$               384,532$               554,811$               20,622$                 
50126 OVERTIME 16,500$                 24,653$                 16,800$                 13,770$                 20,500$                 3,700$                    
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 21,442$                 28,730$                 22,085$                 23,464$                 23,365$                 1,280$                    
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 85,875$                 92,367$                 90,478$                 64,477$                 94,395$                 3,917$                    
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 126,624$               144,776$               150,375$               118,266$               162,639$               12,264$                 
50210 TELEPHONE 3,500$                    11,505$                 3,200$                    2,120$                    3,000$                    (200)$                      
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 4,000$                    4,451$                    4,000$                    2,262$                    4,000$                    -$                        
50215 CONTRACTED SERVICES/URBAN FORESTRY 56,000$                 68,670$                 55,000$                 28,737$                 60,000$                 5,000$                    
50220 UTILITIES 37,500$                 51,158$                 50,000$                 28,779$                 50,000$                 -$                        
50290 CONTRACTED SERVICES/GRINDING 13,000$                 13,913$                 16,000$                 10,844$                 17,000$                 1,000$                    
50300 MISC EXPENSES 20,000$                 11,783$                 20,000$                 15,600$                 20,000$                 -$                        
50302 PPE - PUBLIC WORKS 3,000$                    2,933$                    3,000$                    2,551$                    3,000$                    -$                        
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,500$                    4,566$                    3,500$                    2,915$                    3,500$                    -$                        
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 38,500$                 42,745$                 38,500$                 25,702$                 38,500$                 -$                        
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 83,000$                 90,896$                 73,000$                 46,361$                 73,000$                 -$                        
50350 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 8,000$                    9,932$                    3,440$                    5,895$                    4,000$                    560$                       
50360 TREE PURCHASES - STREETS 30,000$                 34,861$                 30,000$                 4,258$                    32,000$                 2,000$                    
50390 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 7,300$                    5,324$                    6,100$                    3,754$                    6,100$                    -$                        
50391 TOOL ALLOWANCE 1,000$                    1,000$                    1,000$                    1,000$                    1,000$                    -$                        
50392 VIRGIN LAKE BOARDWALK -$                        260$                       -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
  Totals for dept 53300 - HIGHWAY & STREET MAINT/CONST 1,144,163$            1,252,937$            1,179,536$            826,356$               1,230,888$            51,352$                 


Dept 53310 - SNOW REMOVAL
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES-SALT 68,000$                 59,527$                 68,000$                 55,609$                 68,000$                 -$                        
  Totals for dept 53310 - SNOW REMOVAL 68,000$                 59,527$                 68,000$                 55,609$                 68,000$                 -$                        


Dept 53400 - SIGNS AND MARKINGS







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 18,000$                 14,442$                 18,000$                 18,694$                 18,000$                 -$                        
  Totals for dept 53400 - SIGNS AND MARKINGS 18,000$                 14,442$                 18,000$                 18,694$                 18,000$                 -$                        


Dept 53420 - STREET LIGHTING
50340 STREET LIGHTING - ELECTRIC 128,000$               109,217$               120,000$               61,610$                 118,000$               (2,000)$                  
  Totals for dept 53420 - STREET LIGHTING 128,000$               109,217$               120,000$               61,610$                 118,000$               (2,000)$                  


Dept 53620 - SANITATION
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 530,000$               536,613$               -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 185,000$               179,917$               -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
  Totals for dept 53620 - SANITATION 715,000$               716,530$               -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        


Total - Function PUBLIC WORKS 2,264,371$            2,343,945$            1,676,663$            1,099,234$            1,695,543$            18,880$                 


HUMAN SERVICES
Dept 54910 - CEMETERY
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 19,000$                 19,000$                 20,000$                 14,250$                 20,000$                 -$                        
50300 MISC EXPENSES 16,000$                 18,421$                 16,000$                 9,586$                    16,000$                 -$                        
  Totals for dept 54910 - CEMETERY 35,000$                 37,421$                 36,000$                 23,836$                 36,000$                 -$                        


Total - Function HUMAN SERVICES 35,000$                 37,421$                 36,000$                 23,836$                 36,000$                 -$                        


RECREATION-SENIOR SERVICES
Dept 54600 - SENIOR CENTER
50110 SALARIES 73,277$                 74,011$                 74,970$                 51,796$                 76,488$                 1,518$                    
50120 WAGES 139,358$               144,111$               153,731$               122,610$               156,667$               2,936$                    
50121 WAGES - SENIOR CASE MGMT. 119,250$               98,514$                 121,621$               68,216$                 124,278$               2,657$                    
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 43,997$                 45,286$                 49,513$                 33,561$                 50,596$                 1,083$                    
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 75,069$                 87,276$                 93,764$                 70,968$                 104,832$               11,068$                 
50202 FOUNDATION GRANT -$                        36,289$                 16,000$                 11,022$                 19,000$                 3,000$                    
50204 KITCHEN FUND 8,000$                    16,061$                 13,000$                 11,894$                 15,000$                 2,000$                    
50210 TELEPHONE 2,500$                    2,293$                    700$                       777$                       1,100$                    400$                       
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 3,000$                    3,571$                    3,000$                    884$                       3,000$                    -$                        
50220 UTILITIES 21,000$                 20,777$                 21,000$                 11,868$                 21,000$                 -$                        
50240 BUILDING  MAINTENANCE 19,000$                 22,331$                 10,550$                 16,681$                 10,000$                 (550)$                      
50313 PROGRAMS/PUBLICITY 4,000$                    3,477$                    4,000$                    586$                       4,000$                    -$                        
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 3,000$                    2,445$                    3,000$                    1,318$                    3,000$                    -$                        
50325 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE 1,100$                    -$                        500$                       -$                        500$                       -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 10,000$                 11,770$                 10,000$                 5,550$                    11,000$                 1,000$                    
50342 OPERATING EXPENSES-SALES TAX -$                        84$                         -$                        3$                            -$                        -$                        
50350 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 400$                       400$                       400$                       -$                        400$                       -$                        
  Totals for dept 54600 - SENIOR CENTER 522,951$               568,696$               575,749$               407,734$               600,861$               25,112$                 


Dept 55100 - COMMUNITY COMMITMENT
50720 MUSEUM 500$                       -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50728 FIREWORKS 1,500$                    888$                       5,000$                    2,000$                    5,000$                    -$                        
50731 CITY BAND 500$                       500$                       500$                       -$                        -$                        (500)$                      
50735 ARTS COUNCIL 500$                       -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50737 AFFORDABLE TRANSPORTATION 1,000$                    1,000$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
  Totals for dept 55100 - COMMUNITY COMMITMENT 4,000$                    2,388$                    5,500$                    2,000$                    5,000$                    (500)$                      


Dept 55200 - PARKS
50110 SALARIES 5,157$                    6,372$                    5,272$                    4,627$                    5,380$                    108$                       
50120 WAGES 45,307$                 47,002$                 46,386$                 32,646$                 85,565$                 39,179$                 
50128 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 82,410$                 55,104$                 83,876$                 37,602$                 74,074$                 (9,802)$                  
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 13,519$                 11,815$                 13,884$                 8,200$                    18,833$                 4,949$                    
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 9,403$                    9,651$                    18,362$                 9,302$                    29,804$                 11,442$                 
50245 UTILITIES 21,000$                 21,919$                 24,000$                 13,871$                 24,000$                 -$                        
50290 RENTING/LEASING EQMT - PARKS 4,000$                    -$                        4,000$                    4,000$                    4,000$                    -$                        
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES -$                        27$                         -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 5,000$                    3,829$                    4,200$                    3,066$                    4,200$                    -$                        
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 35,500$                 34,668$                 35,500$                 28,558$                 36,000$                 500$                       
50350 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 9,000$                    6,819$                    9,000$                    6,249$                    8,000$                    (1,000)$                  
  Totals for dept 55200 - PARKS 230,296$               197,206$               244,480$               148,121$               289,856$               45,376$                 


Dept 55300 - RECREATION PROGRAMS & EVENTS
50110 SALARIES 59,399$                 52,592$                 60,605$                 42,404$                 61,496$                 891$                       
50120 WAGES 53,167$                 62,196$                 56,095$                 39,556$                 57,220$                 1,125$                    
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 6,000$                    5,253$                    12,000$                 6,368$                    12,195$                 195$                       
50128 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 53,928$                 57,343$                 60,279$                 3,186$                    59,430$                 (849)$                      
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 20,536$                 20,683$                 22,531$                 12,309$                 22,594$                 63$                         
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 12,873$                 18,317$                 22,514$                 17,346$                 23,647$                 1,133$                    
50210 TELEPHONE 2,000$                    2,711$                    2,200$                    1,188$                    2,000$                    (200)$                      
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 2,424$                    1,789$                    2,424$                    375$                       2,424$                    -$                        
50213 SALES TAX 7,000$                    6,625$                    7,000$                    965$                       7,000$                    -$                        
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 44,028$                 33,121$                 35,540$                 14,819$                 38,281$                 2,741$                    







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE-TROLL 7,360$                    8,137$                    8,000$                    167$                       8,000$                    -$                        
50300 MISC EXPENSES 1,000$                    1,633$                    2,500$                    2,468$                    2,500$                    -$                        
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 1,500$                    1,459$                    1,500$                    575$                       1,500$                    -$                        
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 29,577$                 30,948$                 29,223$                 16,797$                 30,663$                 1,440$                    
50343 OPERATING EXPENSES-SCHOOL RENT 8,000$                    8,000$                    8,000$                    8,000$                    8,000$                    -$                        
50344 OPERATING EXPENSES-ACTIVE NET 8,000$                    7,805$                    8,000$                    2,627$                    8,000$                    -$                        
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 4,000$                    4,425$                    4,000$                    -$                        4,000$                    -$                        
  Totals for dept 55300 - RECREATION PROGRAMS & EVENTS 320,792$               323,037$               342,411$               169,150$               348,950$               6,539$                    


Dept 55400 - YOUTH CENTER
50110 SALARIES 10,673$                 10,452$                 10,699$                 7,400$                    11,280$                 581$                       
50120 WAGES 78,455$                 79,347$                 80,377$                 56,307$                 82,018$                 1,641$                    
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 19,000$                 17,104$                 19,400$                 6,165$                    19,400$                 -$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 14,197$                 14,128$                 14,684$                 9,701$                    15,010$                 326$                       
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 23,158$                 22,790$                 22,234$                 16,757$                 22,874$                 640$                       
50210 TELEPHONE 2,112$                    1,355$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 21,000$                 21,000$                 -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50220 UTILITIES 8,500$                    7,174$                    8,500$                    4,552$                    8,500$                    -$                        
50240 BUILDING  MAINTENANCE 4,000$                    3,172$                    4,000$                    1,956$                    4,000$                    -$                        
50316 RENT EXPENSE 4,300$                    3,903$                    4,000$                    -$                        4,000$                    -$                        
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES -$                        256$                       -$                        216$                       -$                        -$                        
  Totals for dept 55400 - YOUTH CENTER 185,395$               180,681$               163,894$               103,054$               167,082$               3,188$                    


Dept 55500 - IT/MEDIA SERVICES
50110 SALARIES 82,912$                 87,231$                 99,990$                 70,272$                 102,037$               2,047$                    
50120 WAGES 59,843$                 60,438$                 61,229$                 42,593$                 62,484$                 1,255$                    
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 17,000$                 17,490$                 17,391$                 6,766$                    17,500$                 109$                       
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 22,114$                 22,630$                 25,142$                 16,845$                 25,605$                 463$                       
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 44,228$                 44,241$                 44,348$                 29,040$                 37,983$                 (6,365)$                  
50190 TRAINING 2,500$                    1,973$                    2,500$                    -$                        2,000$                    (500)$                      
50210 TELEPHONE 1,900$                    2,566$                    44,480$                 23,382$                 44,480$                 -$                        
50211 POSTAGE 210$                       60$                         140$                       30$                         140$                       -$                        
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,750$                    503$                       2,750$                    -$                        1,950$                    (800)$                      
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS - WEBSITE 9,000$                    9,660$                    6,000$                    5,282$                    6,000$                    -$                        
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 37,950$                 21,541$                 42,000$                 40,648$                 60,570$                 18,570$                 
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 10,000$                 9,716$                    12,000$                 10,709$                 11,000$                 (1,000)$                  
50300 MISC EXPENSES 21,000$                 14,616$                 8,120$                    4,486$                    1,000$                    (7,120)$                  
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,860$                    1,365$                    1,860$                    108$                       3,000$                    1,140$                    







                                                                                                                                  


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 975$                       684$                       4,145$                    510$                       500$                       (3,645)$                  
50330 VEHICLE EXPENSE 575$                       92$                         575$                       72$                         -$                        (575)$                      
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 5,160$                    2,393$                    3,000$                    314$                       3,000$                    -$                        
  Totals for dept 55500 - IT/MEDIA SERVICES 318,977$               297,199$               375,670$               251,057$               379,249$               3,579$                    


Total - Function RECREATION-SENIOR SERVICES 1,582,411$            1,569,207$            1,707,704$            1,081,116$            1,790,998$            83,294$                 


TRANSFERS
50930 CONTINGENCY 80,000$                 116,460$               25,000$                 45,425$                 100,000$               75,000$                 
50930 DEBT SERVICE 3,104,117$            3,104,117$            3,344,613$            3,344,613$            3,284,186$            (60,427)$                
50930 OPERA HOUSE 165,000$               165,000$               182,000$               182,000$               195,000$               13,000$                 
50931 CAPITAL 200,000$               200,000$               200,000$               200,000$               200,000$               -$                        
50944 EMS 80,000$                 80,000$                 25,000$                 25,000$                 -$                        (25,000)$                
50930 SICK LEAVE 60,000$                 60,000$                 125,000$               125,000$               100,000$               (25,000)$                
50932 PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING -$                        -$                        43,000$                 42,500$                 42,000$                 (1,000)$                  
50934 FIRE PENSION 2,000$                    13,295$                 3,500$                    -$                        14,000$                 10,500$                 
50935 TIF 58,000$                 -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50936 LIBBRARY 421,813$               421,813$               623,000$               623,000$               632,350$               9,350$                    
50943 LANDMARKS 9,500$                    11,206$                 7,500$                    7,500$                    15,000$                 7,500$                    
50931 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT -$                        11$                         -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50932 RDA 7,000$                    8,150$                    5,000$                    5,000$                    8,000$                    3,000$                    


Total - Function TRANSFERS 4,187,430$            4,180,052$            4,583,613$            4,600,038$            4,590,536$            6,923$                    


     TOTAL EXPENDITURES 13,922,094$         13,765,430$         13,927,314$         10,885,780$         14,119,684$         192,370$               







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)


FUND 203 - TID #4 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        
41110 PROPERTY TAXES 495,000$                475,729$                485,000$                494,843$                515,000$                30,000$                  
42190 TAX INCREMENT GUARENTEE 16,500$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
43430 EXEMPT COMPUTER AID 3,350$                    3,382$                    3,382$                    3,382$                    3,382$                    -$                        
43431 PERSONAL PROPERTY AID 2,315$                    2,316$                    9,350$                    9,391$                    9,390$                    40$                          
48110 INTEREST 1,500$                    6,466$                    5,000$                    1,634$                    500$                        (4,500)$                   
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 518,665$                487,893$                502,732$                509,250$                528,272$                25,540$                  


APPROPRIATIONS
50850 ADMINISTRATION 3,000$                    1,455$                    3,500$                    950$                        4,000$                    500$                        
50930 TRANSFER TO DEBT FUND 447,229$                618,533$                433,029$                433,029$                890,000$                456,971$                
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 450,229$                619,988$                436,529$                433,979$                894,000$                457,471$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 203 68,436$                  (132,095)$              66,203$                  75,271$                  (365,728)$              (431,931)$              
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 203 424,831$                424,831$                292,736$                292,736$                358,939$                66,203$                  
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 203 493,267$                292,736$                358,939$                368,007$                (6,789)$                   (365,728)$              


FUND 204 - TID #4 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES 182,000$                174,694$                180,000$                180,369$                175,000$                (5,000)$                   
43430 EXEMPT COMPUTER AID 1,750$                    1,775$                    1,775$                    1,775$                    1,775$                    -$                        
43431 PERSONAL PROPERTY AID 859$                        859$                        5,200$                    5,207$                    5,200$                    -$                        
48110 INTEREST 10,000$                  23,263$                  5,000$                    5,390$                    750$                        (4,250)$                   
48310 LAND SALES -$                        5,000$                    -$                        39,000$                  -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 194,609$                205,591$                191,975$                231,741$                182,725$                (9,250)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE -$                        13,445$                  950,000$                637,445$                -$                        (950,000)$              
50823 TIF OTHER PROJECTS -$                        26,173$                  25,000$                  9,269$                    -$                        (25,000)$                
50824 REVOLVING LOAN FUND -$                        65,000$                  150,000$                100,000$                100,000$                (50,000)$                
50850 ADMINISTRATION 5,000$                    10,251$                  5,500$                    9,241$                    5,500$                    -$                        
50931 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 104,800$                104,800$                101,625$                101,625$                -$                        (101,625)$              
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 109,800$                219,669$                1,232,125$            857,580$                105,500$                (1,126,625)$           


ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 204 84,809$                  (14,078)$                (1,040,150)$           (625,839)$              77,225$                  1,117,375$            
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 204 1,132,824$            1,132,824$            1,118,746$            1,118,746$            78,596$                  (1,040,150)$           
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 204 1,217,633$            1,118,746$            78,596$                  492,907$                155,821$                77,225$                  


FUND 205 - TID #5 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES -$                        -$                        49,000$                  50,678$                  50,000$                  1,000$                    
42190 TAX INCREMENT GUARENTEE 19,400$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
43430 EXEMPT COMPUTER AID 39,100$                  39,592$                  39,592$                  39,592$                  39,500$                  (92)$                        
48110 INTEREST 500$                        1,310$                    500$                        227$                        250$                        (250)$                      
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 59,000$                  40,902$                  89,092$                  90,497$                  89,750$                  658$                        


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 6,804$                    75$                          500$                        -$                        2,000$                    1,500$                    
50821 TIF BUILDING PROJECTS -$                        21,753$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50850 ADMINISTRATION 4,750$                    925$                        4,000$                    950$                        2,000$                    (2,000)$                   
50931 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 107,661$                107,661$                102,521$                102,521$                112,938$                10,417$                  
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 119,215$                130,414$                107,021$                103,471$                116,938$                9,917$                    


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 205 (60,215)$                (89,512)$                (17,929)$                (12,974)$                (27,188)$                (9,259)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 205 (588,083)$              (588,083)$              (677,595)$              (677,595)$              (695,524)$              (17,929)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 205 (648,298)$              (677,595)$              (695,524)$              (690,569)$              (722,712)$              (27,188)$                


FUND 206 - TID #6 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES 25,000$                  24,537$                  25,000$                  24,831$                  25,000$                  -$                        
41111 PROPERTY TAXES - LEVY -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        125,000$                125,000$                
42190 TAX INCREMENT GUARANTEE -$                        465$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
48110 INTEREST -$                        30,468$                  2,000$                    8,393$                    250$                        (1,750)$                   
48310 LAND SALES -$                        -$                        -$                        173,230$                -$                        -$                        
49120 NOTE PROCEEDS 2,600,000$            2,618,710$            -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
49130 PREMIUM ON DEBT -$                        14,080$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 2,625,000$            2,688,260$            27,000$                  206,454$                150,250$                123,250$                







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
APPROPRIATIONS
50630 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES 16,000$                  32,789$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50840 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 2,600,000$            1,396,216$            -$                        520,767$                -$                        -$                        
50850 ADMINISTRATION 6,000$                    6,538$                    4,000$                    5,790$                    5,000$                    1,000$                    
50930 TRANSFER TO DEBT FUND 55,163$                  55,163$                  70,138$                  70,138$                  133,731$                63,593$                  
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 2,677,163$            1,490,706$            74,138$                  596,695$                138,731$                64,593$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 206 (52,163)$                1,197,554$            (47,138)$                (390,241)$              11,519$                  58,657$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 206 (131,044)$              (131,044)$              1,066,510$            1,066,510$            1,019,372$            (47,138)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 206 (183,207)$              1,066,510$            1,019,372$            676,269$                1,030,891$            11,519$                  


FUND 207 - TID #7 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES 540,000$                526,673$                535,000$                546,395$                770,000$                235,000$                
42190 TAX INCREMENT GUARANTEE -$                        33,510$                  33,000$                  -$                        33,000$                  -$                        
43431 PERSONAL PROPERTY AID 1,959$                    1,959$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
48110 INTEREST 8,000$                    4,444$                    4,000$                    1,611$                    2,800$                    (1,200)$                   
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 549,959$                566,586$                572,000$                548,006$                805,800$                233,800$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES -$                        -$                        -$                        9,500$                    5,000$                    5,000$                    
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        200,000$                200,000$                
50840 CAPITAL - INSPECTIONS 15,274$                  (15,274)$                -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50850 ADMINISTRATION 3,000$                    1,000$                    5,000$                    950$                        5,000$                    -$                        
50930 TRANSFER TO DEBT FUND 333,149$                333,149$                333,975$                333,975$                334,725$                750$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 351,423$                318,875$                338,975$                344,425$                544,725$                205,750$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 207 198,536$                247,711$                233,025$                203,581$                261,075$                28,050$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 207 190,695$                190,695$                438,406$                438,406$                671,431$                233,025$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 207 389,231$                438,406$                671,431$                641,987$                932,506$                261,075$                


FUND 208 - TID #8 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        5,500$                    5,500$                    







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
41111 PROPERTY TAXES - LEVY -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        24,741$                  24,741$                  
43690 OTHER STATE GRANTS 200,000$                -$                        200,000$                84,490$                  700,000$                500,000$                
48110 INTEREST 500$                        4,671$                    -$                        282$                        -$                        -$                        
49120 NOTE PROCEEDS 300,000$                302,159$                -$                        -$                        260,000$                260,000$                
49130 PREMIUM ON DEBT -$                        1,625$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 58,000$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 558,500$                308,455$                200,000$                84,772$                  990,241$                790,241$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 49,635$                  46,834$                  62,500$                  10,056$                  25,000$                  (37,500)$                
50630 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES 10,000$                  3,783$                    5,500$                    -$                        -$                        (5,500)$                   
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 350,000$                141,288$                139,365$                35,180$                  -$                        (139,365)$              
50821 TIF BUILDING PROJECTS -$                        316,389$                5,331$                    7,269$                    930,000$                924,669$                
50840 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 150,000$                3,562$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50850 ADMINISTRATION 4,750$                    9,648$                    7,000$                    2,700$                    5,000$                    (2,000)$                   
50931 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 22,928$                  22,928$                  17,288$                  17,288$                  24,741$                  7,453$                    
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 587,313$                544,432$                236,984$                72,493$                  984,741$                747,757$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 208 (28,813)$                (235,977)$              (36,984)$                12,279$                  5,500$                    42,484$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 208 219,297$                219,297$                (16,680)$                (16,680)$                (53,664)$                (36,984)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 208 190,484$                (16,680)$                (53,664)$                (4,401)$                   (48,164)$                5,500$                    


FUND 212 - SAFETY BUILDING FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND -$                        -$                        43,000$                  42,500$                  42,000$                  (1,000)$                   
49228 TRANFER IN FROM UTILITIES 62,000$                  53,907$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 62,000$                  53,907$                  43,000$                  42,500$                  42,000$                  (1,000)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50220 UTILITIES 32,000$                  28,643$                  32,000$                  18,859$                  32,000$                  -$                        
50340 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 11,000$                  9,551$                    11,000$                  5,423$                    9,000$                    (2,000)$                   
50350 MAINTENANCE - CUSTODIAL 19,000$                  16,394$                  -$                        17,290$                  1,000$                    1,000$                    
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 62,000$                  54,588$                  43,000$                  41,572$                  42,000$                  (1,000)$                   


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 212 -$                        (681)$                      -$                        928$                        -$                        -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 212 681$                        681$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 212 681$                        -$                        -$                        928$                        -$                        -$                        


FUND 215 - LIBRARY FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43720 DANE COUNTY SERVICE FEES 220,254$                220,255$                229,696$                230,780$                249,249$                19,553$                  
43725 OTHER COUNTIES SERVICE FEES 8,041$                    8,052$                    10,090$                  10,088$                  15,848$                  5,758$                    
46710 FINES 22,000$                  21,521$                  21,000$                  5,419$                    7,000$                    (14,000)$                
46712 COPY MACHINE 4,700$                    5,152$                    4,700$                    1,026$                    3,700$                    (1,000)$                   
48110 INTEREST -$                        1,957$                    -$                        101$                        100$                        100$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 421,813$                421,813$                623,000$                623,000$                632,350$                9,350$                    
49228 TRANFER IN FROM UTILITIES 172,000$                172,000$                -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
49300 SURPLUS 10,000$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 858,808$                850,750$                888,486$                870,414$                908,247$                19,761$                  


APPROPRIATIONS
50110 SALARIES 74,888$                  86,228$                  78,563$                  55,294$                  80,133$                  1,570$                    
50120 WAGES 386,935$                366,094$                396,057$                256,704$                398,651$                2,594$                    
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 65,824$                  67,473$                  70,006$                  49,132$                  70,700$                  694$                        
50128 SUNDAY HOURS 8,500$                    8,278$                    8,500$                    2,818$                    8,500$                    -$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 72,012$                  67,427$                  71,359$                  46,882$                  72,684$                  1,325$                    
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 66,801$                  80,149$                  84,183$                  69,622$                  94,783$                  10,600$                  
50210 TELEPHONE 1,000$                    438$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50211 POSTAGE 400$                        434$                        500$                        134$                        500$                        -$                        
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 1,600$                    1,081$                    1,600$                    219$                        1,600$                    -$                        
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 500$                        3,705$                    500$                        292$                        500$                        -$                        
50217 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3 300$                        201$                        300$                        180$                        300$                        -$                        
50220 UTILITIES 19,000$                  16,841$                  19,000$                  10,288$                  19,600$                  600$                        
50221 UTILITIES-BUILDING 2 6,500$                    4,101$                    5,500$                    2,110$                    5,500$                    -$                        
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,500$                    1,845$                    1,900$                    1,464$                    1,900$                    -$                        
50250 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 9,000$                    7,011$                    9,000$                    6,771$                    9,000$                    -$                        
50289 TECHNOLOGY COSTS 48,850$                  48,987$                  49,550$                  48,594$                  50,500$                  950$                        
50300 MISC EXPENSES 500$                        795$                        500$                        101$                        500$                        -$                        
50313 PROGRAMS/PUBLICITY 4,000$                    3,841$                    4,000$                    3,631$                    4,000$                    -$                        
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 400$                        94$                          600$                        613$                        600$                        -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
50326 PERIODICALS 5,600$                    3,884$                    5,400$                    3,656$                    4,800$                    (600)$                      
50327 E-RESOURCES 8,198$                    8,265$                    8,500$                    8,270$                    9,000$                    500$                        
50328 AUDIO VISUAL 11,000$                  10,841$                  11,300$                  6,549$                    15,000$                  3,700$                    
50329 BOOKS 44,600$                  44,659$                  45,700$                  28,575$                  50,000$                  4,300$                    
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 3,800$                    4,433$                    4,500$                    4,732$                    4,500$                    -$                        
50341 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-1 200$                        82$                          200$                        149$                        200$                        -$                        
50342 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2 4,800$                    5,114$                    4,800$                    2,412$                    4,800$                    -$                        
50810 CAPITAL-EQUIPMENT 7,100$                    7,065$                    1,000$                    962$                        -$                        (1,000)$                   
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 5,000$                    4,864$                    6,000$                    5,508$                    -$                        (6,000)$                   
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 858,808$                854,230$                889,018$                615,662$                908,251$                19,233$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 215 -$                        (3,480)$                   (532)$                      254,752$                (4)$                           528$                        
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 215 18,098$                  18,098$                  14,618$                  14,618$                  14,086$                  (532)$                      
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 215 18,098$                  14,618$                  14,086$                  269,370$                14,082$                  (4)$                           


FUND 217 - LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        4,901$                    5,000$                    1,096$                    250$                        (4,750)$                   
48500 DONATIONS - DESIGNATED -$                        70,801$                  70,000$                  26,743$                  65,000$                  (5,000)$                   
48510 DONATIONS - UNDESIGNATED -$                        39$                          -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
48530 DONATIONS -FUNDRAISING ACCOUNT -$                        -$                        7,000$                    -$                        -$                        (7,000)$                   
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 75,741$                  82,000$                  27,839$                  65,250$                  (16,750)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50500 DESIGNATED -$                        59,067$                  100,000$                20,836$                  55,000$                  (45,000)$                
50501 UNDESIGNATED -$                        1,010$                    -$                        50$                          -$                        -$                        
50503 DESIGNATED-FUNDRAISING ACCOUNT -$                        7,853$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        67,930$                  100,000$                20,886$                  55,000$                  (45,000)$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 217 -$                        7,811$                    (18,000)$                6,953$                    10,250$                  28,250$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 217 232,665$                232,665$                240,476$                240,476$                222,476$                (18,000)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 217 232,665$                240,476$                222,476$                247,429$                232,726$                10,250$                  


FUND 221 - FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        330$                        -$                        71$                          -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        330$                        -$                        71$                          -$                        -$                        


APPROPRIATIONS
50810 CAPITAL-EQUIPMENT -$                        -$                        -$                        2,548$                    -$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        -$                        -$                        2,548$                    -$                        -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 221 -$                        330$                        -$                        (2,477)$                   -$                        -$                        
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 221 20,453$                  20,453$                  20,783$                  20,783$                  20,783$                  -$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 221 20,453$                  20,783$                  20,783$                  18,306$                  20,783$                  -$                        


FUND 223 - PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
42190 IMPACT FEE - IMPROVEMENTS -$                        95,945$                  18,543$                  1,217$                    10,000$                  (8,543)$                   
43791 OTHER COUNTY GRANTS -$                        -$                        72,700$                  -$                        -$                        (72,700)$                
46719 911 ANTENNA BLDG -$                        5,171$                    -$                        3,647$                    5,000$                    5,000$                    
48110 INTEREST -$                        7,006$                    4,000$                    1,807$                    200$                        (3,800)$                   
48550 DONATIONS -$                        1,225$                    -$                        1,500$                    -$                        -$                        
49300 SURPLUS -$                        70,000$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        179,347$                95,243$                  8,171$                    15,200$                  (80,043)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES -$                        3,397$                    -$                        4,500$                    -$                        -$                        
50246 911 ANTENNA BUILDING -$                        3,109$                    -$                        10,872$                  -$                        -$                        
50300 MISC EXPENSES -$                        797$                        -$                        2,241$                    1,500$                    1,500$                    
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND -$                        -$                        72,700$                  -$                        -$                        (72,700)$                
50941 TRANSFER FROM IMPROVEMENTS -$                        -$                        18,543$                  -$                        18,543$                  -$                        
50942 TRANSFER FROM DONATIONS -$                        -$                        21,886$                  -$                        -$                        (21,886)$                
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        7,303$                    113,129$                17,613$                  20,043$                  (93,086)$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 223 -$                        172,044$                (17,886)$                (9,442)$                   (4,843)$                   13,043$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 223 286,046$                286,046$                458,090$                458,090$                440,204$                (17,886)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 223 286,046$                458,090$                440,204$                448,648$                435,361$                (4,843)$                   







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
FUND 224 - STORM SEWER FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43691 STATE GRANTS 250,000$                -$                        54,464$                  -$                        -$                        (54,464)$                
46300 STORMWATER USER FEES 611,349$                618,307$                686,353$                400,294$                730,158$                43,805$                  
46325 STORMWATER REVIEW FEES 30,000$                  29,374$                  30,000$                  30,691$                  30,000$                  -$                        
46435 YARD WASTE SITE FEES 7,000$                    7,000$                    7,000$                    -$                        7,000$                    -$                        
48110 INTEREST 5,000$                    14,998$                  5,000$                    1,395$                    500$                        (4,500)$                   
49100 PREMIUM ON DEBT ISSUE -$                        -$                        -$                        3,492$                    -$                        -$                        
49120 NOTE PROCEEDS -$                        -$                        363,000$                -$                        150,000$                (213,000)$              
49201 CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION -$                        271,663$                -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
49202 CONTRIBUTIONS FROM CITY (TIF) -$                        910,198$                -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 903,349$                1,851,540$            1,145,817$            435,872$                917,658$                (228,159)$              


APPROPRIATIONS
50110 SALARIES 32,367$                  32,341$                  33,218$                  21,537$                  33,897$                  679$                        
50120 WAGES 107,095$                101,334$                105,134$                66,234$                  109,210$                4,076$                    
50126 OVERTIME -$                        716$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 7,538$                    2,352$                    10,571$                  200$                        12,235$                  1,664$                    
50128 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY -$                        320$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 20,474$                  19,443$                  20,971$                  12,972$                  21,827$                  856$                        
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 31,343$                  34,364$                  38,659$                  23,221$                  40,923$                  2,264$                    
50210 TELEPHONE 480$                        613$                        600$                        304$                        600$                        -$                        
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 800$                        538$                        800$                        386$                        1,000$                    200$                        
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 43,500$                  45,175$                  30,000$                  17,201$                  30,000$                  -$                        
50217 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3 45,200$                  43,093$                  45,200$                  23,496$                  45,200$                  -$                        
50220 UTILITIES 1,200$                    1,503$                    1,500$                    737$                        1,500$                    -$                        
50300 MISC EXPENSES 18,000$                  14,930$                  18,000$                  12,618$                  18,000$                  -$                        
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500$                        500$                        500$                        428$                        500$                        -$                        
50314 PERMITS/FEES 2,000$                    2,000$                    2,000$                    2,000$                    2,000$                    -$                        
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 500$                        -$                        500$                        -$                        500$                        -$                        
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 12,600$                  13,049$                  15,000$                  6,085$                    15,000$                  -$                        
50336 EQUIP MAINTENANCE- STORMWATER 16,000$                  20,526$                  18,000$                  12,516$                  18,000$                  -$                        
50338 POND MAINTENANCE- STORMWATER 20,000$                  13,292$                  20,000$                  4,072$                    18,000$                  (2,000)$                   
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 22,000$                  29,308$                  22,000$                  4,948$                    22,000$                  -$                        
50341 YARDWASTE SITE - MISC EXPENSE 4,080$                    (2,362)$                   2,500$                    859$                        2,500$                    -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
50390 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 1,800$                    277$                        1,500$                    1,667$                    1,500$                    -$                        
50515 PROPERTY INSURANCE -$                        -$                        -$                        2,000$                    -$                        -$                        
50599 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 128,826$                134,524$                180,000$                -$                        158,397$                (21,603)$                
50620 INTEREST -$                        32,376$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50630 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES -$                        -$                        9,000$                    11,505$                  5,000$                    (4,000)$                   
50820 CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 783,465$                -$                        526,955$                749,598$                172,750$                (354,205)$              
50840 ENGINEERING 82,973$                  -$                        30,154$                  24,370$                  -$                        (30,154)$                
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 21,300$                  -$                        21,300$                  -$                        35,000$                  13,700$                  
50931 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 207,862$                -$                        254,222$                254,222$                263,749$                9,527$                    
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,611,903$            540,212$                1,408,284$            1,253,176$            1,029,288$            (378,996)$              


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 224 (708,554)$              1,311,328$            (262,467)$              (817,304)$              (111,630)$              150,837$                


FUND 225 - CEMETERY FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48109 INTEREST -$                        270$                        300$                        37$                          -$                        (300)$                      
48110 INTEREST - BAILEY SISTER ACCOUNT 500$                        425$                        400$                        105$                        -$                        (400)$                      
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 500$                        695$                        700$                        142$                        -$                        (700)$                      


APPROPRIATIONS
50250 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE -$                        5,678$                    -$                        543$                        -$                        -$                        
50300 BAILEY SISTER EXPENSES 200$                        226$                        200$                        199$                        200$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 200$                        5,904$                    200$                        742$                        200$                        -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 225 300$                        (5,209)$                   500$                        (600)$                      (200)$                      (700)$                      
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 225 33,452$                  33,452$                  28,243$                  28,243$                  28,743$                  500$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 225 33,752$                  28,243$                  28,743$                  27,643$                  28,543$                  (200)$                      


FUND 227 - EMS TRUCK FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 1,600$                    1,763$                    800$                        376$                        185$                        (615)$                      
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 1,600$                    1,763$                    800$                        376$                        185$                        (615)$                      


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 227 1,600$                    1,763$                    800$                        376$                        185$                        (615)$                      







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 227 72,825$                  72,825$                  74,588$                  74,588$                  75,388$                  800$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 227 74,425$                  74,588$                  75,388$                  74,964$                  75,573$                  185$                        


FUND 228 - EMS EQUIPMENT FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43529 FAP EQUIPMENT 4,150$                    4,154$                    4,150$                    -$                        4,000$                    (150)$                      
48110 INTEREST 200$                        1,361$                    800$                        329$                        315$                        (485)$                      
48500 DONATIONS -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        90,000$                  90,000$                  
49203 TRANSFER IN - EMS 40,000$                  40,000$                  40,000$                  40,000$                  100,000$                60,000$                  
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 44,350$                  45,515$                  44,950$                  40,329$                  194,315$                149,365$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 20,000$                  6,101$                    47,000$                  11,419$                  210,000$                163,000$                
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 20,000$                  6,101$                    47,000$                  11,419$                  210,000$                163,000$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 228 24,350$                  39,414$                  (2,050)$                   28,910$                  (15,685)$                (13,635)$                
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 228 65,378$                  65,378$                  104,792$                104,792$                102,742$                (2,050)$                   
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 228 89,728$                  104,792$                102,742$                133,702$                87,057$                  (15,685)$                


FUND 229 - SENIOR CENTER WOOD SHOP


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        76$                          50$                          16$                          25$                          (25)$                        
48550 DONATIONS 2,300$                    2,334$                    2,500$                    2,090$                    2,500$                    -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 2,300$                    2,410$                    2,550$                    2,106$                    2,525$                    (25)$                        


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 2,300$                    832$                        1,900$                    85$                          2,500$                    600$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 2,300$                    832$                        1,900$                    85$                          2,500$                    600$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 229 -$                        1,578$                    650$                        2,021$                    25$                          (625)$                      
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 229 5,090$                    5,090$                    6,668$                    6,668$                    7,318$                    650$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 229 5,090$                    6,668$                    7,318$                    8,689$                    7,343$                    25$                          


FUND 230 - TOWNSHIP OUTREACH FUND







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
ESTIMATED REVENUES
43791 OTHER COUNTY GRANTS 5,000$                    6,443$                    5,500$                    5,261$                    8,000$                    2,500$                    
48110 INTEREST -$                        108$                        80$                          24$                          25$                          (55)$                        
48500 DONATIONS -$                        2,500$                    500$                        -$                        2,500$                    2,000$                    
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 5,000$                    9,051$                    6,080$                    5,285$                    10,525$                  4,445$                    


APPROPRIATIONS
50120 WAGES 4,700$                    6,942$                    7,200$                    5,088$                    7,442$                    242$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 560$                        531$                        550$                        389$                        566$                        16$                          
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE -$                        -$                        -$                        58$                          500$                        500$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 5,260$                    7,473$                    7,750$                    5,535$                    8,508$                    758$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 230 (260)$                      1,578$                    (1,670)$                   (250)$                      2,017$                    3,687$                    
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 230 9,009$                    9,009$                    10,587$                  10,587$                  8,917$                    (1,670)$                   
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 230 8,749$                    10,587$                  8,917$                    10,337$                  10,934$                  2,017$                    


FUND 231 - SENIORS IN NEED


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        871$                        1,000$                    195$                        50$                          (950)$                      
48561 DONATIONS - SENIORS IN NEED -$                        25,012$                  20,000$                  12,270$                  25,000$                  5,000$                    
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        25,883$                  21,000$                  12,465$                  25,050$                  4,050$                    


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES -$                        22,099$                  25,000$                  8,379$                    25,000$                  -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        22,099$                  25,000$                  8,379$                    25,000$                  -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 231 -$                        3,784$                    (4,000)$                   4,086$                    50$                          4,050$                    
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 231 54,107$                  54,107$                  57,891$                  57,891$                  53,891$                  (4,000)$                   
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 231 54,107$                  57,891$                  53,891$                  61,977$                  53,941$                  50$                          


FUND 232 - SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        7,571$                    7,000$                    11,833$                  500$                        (6,500)$                   
48502 SPECIAL GIFT FUND: SENIOR CENT -$                        18,141$                  10,000$                  2,200$                    10,000$                  -$                        
48508 FRIENDSHIP DONATIONS -$                        1,160$                    500$                        -$                        500$                        -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
48513 DONATIONS - LOAN CLOSET -$                        876$                        1,000$                    360$                        1,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        27,748$                  18,500$                  14,393$                  12,000$                  (6,500)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES -$                        8,948$                    10,000$                  1,789$                    10,000$                  -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        8,948$                    10,000$                  1,789$                    10,000$                  -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 232 -$                        18,800$                  8,500$                    12,604$                  2,000$                    (6,500)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 232 458,241$                458,241$                477,041$                477,041$                485,541$                8,500$                    
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 232 458,241$                477,041$                485,541$                489,645$                487,541$                2,000$                    


FUND 234 - FOOD PANTRY


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 350$                        2,482$                    1,500$                    572$                        500$                        (1,000)$                   
48550 DONATIONS 90,000$                  72,395$                  90,000$                  117,672$                75,000$                  (15,000)$                
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 90,350$                  74,877$                  91,500$                  118,244$                75,500$                  (16,000)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50724 FOOD PANTRY EXPENSES 75,000$                  73,374$                  85,000$                  34,363$                  75,000$                  (10,000)$                
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 75,000$                  73,374$                  85,000$                  34,363$                  75,000$                  (10,000)$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 234 15,350$                  1,503$                    6,500$                    83,881$                  500$                        (6,000)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 234 170,610$                170,610$                172,113$                172,113$                178,613$                6,500$                    
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 234 185,960$                172,113$                178,613$                255,994$                179,113$                500$                        


FUND 235 - LANDMARKS


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 15$                          104$                        50$                          8$                            15$                          (35)$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 9,500$                    11,206$                  7,500$                    7,500$                    15,000$                  7,500$                    
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 9,515$                    11,310$                  7,550$                    7,508$                    15,015$                  7,465$                    


APPROPRIATIONS
50719 LANDMARKS MINI GRANT EXPENSES 5,000$                    8,125$                    10,000$                  2,000$                    9,000$                    (1,000)$                   
50721 LANDMARK COMMISSION 9,000$                    8,342$                    1,000$                    220$                        1,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 14,000$                  16,467$                  11,000$                  2,220$                    10,000$                  (1,000)$                   







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 235 (4,485)$                   (5,157)$                   (3,450)$                   5,288$                    5,015$                    8,465$                    
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 235 3,322$                    3,322$                    (1,835)$                   (1,835)$                   (5,285)$                   (3,450)$                   
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 235 (1,163)$                   (1,835)$                   (5,285)$                   3,453$                    (270)$                      5,015$                    


FUND 236 - TREE COMMISSION


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        43$                          20$                          10$                          -$                        (20)$                        
48550 DONATIONS 300$                        2,975$                    800$                        416$                        1,000$                    200$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 300$                        3,018$                    820$                        426$                        1,000$                    180$                        


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 550$                        1,346$                    1,000$                    -$                        1,500$                    500$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 550$                        1,346$                    1,000$                    -$                        1,500$                    500$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 236 (250)$                      1,672$                    (180)$                      426$                        (500)$                      (320)$                      
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 236 2,795$                    2,795$                    4,467$                    4,467$                    4,287$                    (180)$                      
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 236 2,545$                    4,467$                    4,287$                    4,893$                    3,787$                    (500)$                      


FUND 239 - STOUGHTON ARTS COUNCIL


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        38$                          30$                          7$                            -$                        (30)$                        
48550 DONATIONS -$                        4,825$                    -$                        625$                        3,500$                    3,500$                    
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        4,863$                    30$                          632$                        3,500$                    3,470$                    


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES -$                        3,410$                    -$                        216$                        3,500$                    3,500$                    
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        3,410$                    -$                        216$                        3,500$                    3,500$                    


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 239 -$                        1,453$                    30$                          416$                        -$                        (30)$                        
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 239 1,799$                    1,799$                    3,252$                    3,252$                    3,282$                    30$                          
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 239 1,799$                    3,252$                    3,282$                    3,668$                    3,282$                    -$                        


FUND 241 - EMS TRUST FUND







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        216$                        150$                        42$                          45$                          (105)$                      
48500 DONATIONS 6,200$                    22,428$                  6,500$                    2,120$                    10,000$                  3,500$                    
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 6,200$                    22,644$                  6,650$                    2,162$                    10,045$                  3,395$                    


APPROPRIATIONS
50120 WAGES 2,750$                    1,213$                    2,750$                    750$                        3,000$                    250$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 200$                        93$                          210$                        57$                          230$                        20$                          
50252 EMS TRUST FUND DISBURSEMENTS 7,700$                    20,434$                  6,500$                    2,208$                    5,000$                    (1,500)$                   
50701 CPR TRAINING -$                        5$                            10$                          1$                            -$                        (10)$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 10,650$                  21,745$                  9,470$                    3,016$                    8,230$                    (1,240)$                   


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 241 (4,450)$                   899$                        (2,820)$                   (854)$                      1,815$                    4,635$                    
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 241 16,922$                  16,922$                  17,821$                  17,821$                  15,001$                  (2,820)$                   
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 241 12,472$                  17,821$                  15,001$                  16,967$                  16,816$                  1,815$                    


FUND 242 - FIRE DEPT SPECIAL FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
46110 MISC. REVENUE 1,000$                    31,113$                  4,000$                    2,235$                    4,000$                    -$                        
48110 INTEREST 200$                        630$                        600$                        175$                        250$                        (350)$                      
48521 SPECIAL EVENTS 22,100$                  13,795$                  28,100$                  75$                          18,000$                  (10,100)$                
48526 ROTARY PARK LIGHTS DONATIONS -$                        181$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 23,300$                  45,719$                  32,700$                  2,485$                    22,250$                  (10,450)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 MISC OPERATING EXPENSES 1,850$                    2,549$                    4,850$                    572$                        3,000$                    (1,850)$                   
50341 SUNSHINE 200$                        95$                          200$                        90$                          200$                        -$                        
50342 DANCE 9,000$                    4,677$                    9,000$                    -$                        6,500$                    (2,500)$                   
50343 HOLIDAY 900$                        983$                        900$                        -$                        1,200$                    300$                        
50346 MEETING 1,500$                    2,370$                    1,500$                    428$                        1,500$                    -$                        
50349 EQUIPMENT 5,000$                    4,339$                    25,000$                  25,407$                  7,500$                    (17,500)$                
50366 ROTARY PARK LIGHTS 4,500$                    -$                        4,500$                    -$                        3,500$                    (1,000)$                   
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 22,950$                  15,013$                  45,950$                  26,497$                  23,400$                  (22,550)$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 242 350$                        30,706$                  (13,250)$                (24,012)$                (1,150)$                   12,100$                  







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 242 32,701$                  32,701$                  63,407$                  63,407$                  50,157$                  (13,250)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 242 33,051$                  63,407$                  50,157$                  39,395$                  49,007$                  (1,150)$                   


FUND 243 - FIRE PENSION FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 3,000$                    19,771$                  13,000$                  5,252$                    1,800$                    (11,200)$                
48114 DIVIDENDS 2,000$                    376$                        3,000$                    -$                        300$                        (2,700)$                   
48900 PENSION CONTRIBUTION 600$                        616$                        -$                        -$                        600$                        600$                        
48930 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 2,000$                    13,295$                  3,500$                    -$                        14,000$                  10,500$                  
48950 GAINS & (LOSSES) -$                        5,173$                    -$                        7,586$                    -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 7,600$                    39,231$                  19,500$                  12,838$                  16,700$                  (2,800)$                   


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 243 7,600$                    39,231$                  19,500$                  12,838$                  16,700$                  (2,800)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 243 808,960$                808,960$                848,191$                848,191$                867,691$                19,500$                  
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 243 816,560$                848,191$                867,691$                861,029$                884,391$                16,700$                  


FUND 245 - OPERA HOUSE FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
46742 TICKET SALES 599,241$                634,454$                627,787$                94,475$                  749,810$                122,023$                
46745 REVENUE-FEES 45,542$                  70,787$                  77,712$                  200$                        68,964$                  (8,748)$                   
46910 OTHER TAXABLE SALES -$                        1,304$                    -$                        140$                        8,000$                    8,000$                    
46920 MEMBERSHIPS 110,000$                126,494$                120,000$                63,771$                  85,000$                  (35,000)$                
46930 ANNUAL PUBLICATION 15,000$                  13,482$                  16,000$                  5,495$                    12,500$                  (3,500)$                   
46990 TAX EXEMPT SALES 1,000$                    1,350$                    1,000$                    -$                        1,000$                    -$                        
48110 INTEREST -$                        472$                        -$                        11$                          -$                        -$                        
48500 DONATIONS 5,000$                    6,076$                    5,000$                    4,623$                    5,000$                    -$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 165,000$                165,000$                182,000$                182,000$                195,000$                13,000$                  
49300 SURPLUS -$                        12,996$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 940,783$                1,032,415$            1,029,499$            350,715$                1,125,274$            95,775$                  


APPROPRIATIONS
50110 SALARIES 78,833$                  79,462$                  80,487$                  56,073$                  82,128$                  1,641$                    
50120 WAGES 97,251$                  97,323$                  98,209$                  57,512$                  100,332$                2,123$                    
50127 WAGES - PART TIME -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        10,000$                  10,000$                  







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
50128 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY 10,000$                  -$                        10,000$                  -$                        -$                        (10,000)$                
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 25,879$                  24,879$                  26,762$                  16,196$                  27,157$                  395$                        
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 13,915$                  41,005$                  51,327$                  32,858$                  45,126$                  (6,201)$                   
50210 TELEPHONE 3,500$                    846$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2 45,542$                  50,829$                  47,712$                  9,857$                    47,760$                  48$                          
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 5,000$                    3,824$                    5,000$                    11,076$                  5,000$                    -$                        
50300 SALES TAX -$                        3,683$                    -$                        8$                            -$                        -$                        
50315 ADS & PUBLICATIONS 90,000$                  109,838$                110,000$                51,155$                  80,000$                  (30,000)$                
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 2,500$                    3,235$                    2,900$                    635$                        2,500$                    (400)$                      
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 25,000$                  28,853$                  25,000$                  16,049$                  25,000$                  -$                        
50343 OPERATING EXPENSES-ADVERTISING 17,000$                  17,569$                  17,000$                  4,066$                    15,000$                  (2,000)$                   
50344 OPERATING EXPENSES-GUARANTEES 418,400$                523,803$                456,500$                70,792$                  579,500$                123,000$                
50345 OPERATING EXPENSES-HOSPITALITY 40,000$                  52,305$                  43,700$                  10,056$                  52,600$                  8,900$                    
50346 OPERATING EXPENSES-MISC EVENT EXPENSES 5,000$                    4,816$                    5,000$                    464$                        5,000$                    -$                        
50347 OPERATING EXPENSES-CONTRACT LABOR/RENTAL 30,000$                  28,139$                  30,000$                  4,675$                    35,000$                  5,000$                    
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 907,820$                1,070,409$            1,009,597$            341,472$                1,112,103$            102,506$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 245 32,963$                  (37,994)$                19,902$                  9,243$                    13,171$                  (6,731)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 245 (240,428)$              (240,428)$              (278,422)$              (278,422)$              (258,520)$              19,902$                  
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 245 (207,465)$              (278,422)$              (258,520)$              (269,179)$              (245,349)$              13,171$                  


FUND 246 - OPERA HOUSE REPAIR FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        137$                        100$                        32$                          20$                          (80)$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        137$                        100$                        32$                          20$                          (80)$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 246 -$                        137$                        100$                        32$                          20$                          (80)$                        
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 246 6,609$                    6,609$                    6,746$                    6,746$                    6,846$                    100$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 246 6,609$                    6,746$                    6,846$                    6,778$                    6,866$                    20$                          


FUND 247 - TOURISM FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41210 ROOM TAXES 80,000$                  72,146$                  81,000$                  15,360$                  72,000$                  (9,000)$                   
48110 INTEREST -$                        308$                        200$                        64$                          100$                        (100)$                      







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 80,000$                  72,454$                  81,200$                  15,424$                  72,100$                  (9,100)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 73,000$                  64,932$                  73,080$                  13,824$                  64,800$                  (8,280)$                   
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND 7,000$                    5,485$                    8,120$                    1,536$                    7,200$                    (920)$                      
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 80,000$                  70,417$                  81,200$                  15,360$                  72,000$                  (9,200)$                   


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 247 -$                        2,037$                    -$                        64$                          100$                        100$                        
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 247 23,824$                  23,824$                  25,861$                  25,861$                  25,861$                  -$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 247 23,824$                  25,861$                  25,861$                  25,925$                  25,961$                  100$                        


FUND 248 - REVOLVING LOAN FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48100 TIF CONTRIBUTION -$                        115,000$                -$                        50,000$                  100,000$                100,000$                
48108 INTEREST - RLF -$                        608$                        -$                        2,266$                    10,000$                  10,000$                  
48110 INTEREST -$                        8,750$                    375$                        17$                          35$                          (340)$                      
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        124,358$                375$                        52,283$                  110,035$                109,660$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50850 ADMINISTRATION -$                        4,000$                    4,000$                    4,000$                    4,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        4,000$                    4,000$                    4,000$                    4,000$                    -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 248 -$                        120,358$                (3,625)$                   48,283$                  106,035$                109,660$                
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 248 -$                        -$                        120,358$                120,358$                116,733$                (3,625)$                   
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 248 -$                        120,358$                116,733$                168,641$                222,768$                106,035$                


FUND 249 - REFUSE FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
46420 GARBAGE COLLECTION FEES -$                        -$                        799,000$                793,106$                817,200$                18,200$                  
48110 INTEREST -$                        -$                        -$                        526$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        -$                        799,000$                793,632$                817,200$                18,200$                  


APPROPRIATIONS
50110 SALARIES -$                        -$                        1,757$                    1,138$                    1,794$                    37$                          
50120 WAGES -$                        -$                        419$                        258$                        428$                        9$                            







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS -$                        -$                        317$                        196$                        324$                        7$                            
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE -$                        -$                        592$                        341$                        525$                        (67)$                        
50215 GARBAGE COLLECTION -$                        -$                        542,000$                357,185$                563,900$                21,900$                  
50216 RECYCLING COLLECTIONS -$                        -$                        251,000$                166,828$                247,900$                (3,100)$                   
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES -$                        -$                        300$                        36$                          300$                        -$                        
50315 ADVERTISING -$                        -$                        2,000$                    -$                        2,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        -$                        798,385$                525,982$                817,171$                18,786$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 249 -$                        -$                        615$                        267,650$                29$                          (586)$                      
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 249 -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        615$                        615$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 249 -$                        -$                        615$                        267,650$                644$                        29$                          


FUND 250 - SICK LEAVE FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 60,000$                  60,000$                  125,000$                125,000$                100,000$                (25,000)$                
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 60,000$                  60,000$                  125,000$                125,000$                100,000$                (25,000)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50535 RETIREE HEALTH INS-PAYOUT -$                        10,556$                  140,000$                102,575$                105,000$                (35,000)$                
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        10,556$                  140,000$                102,575$                105,000$                (35,000)$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 250 60,000$                  49,444$                  (15,000)$                22,425$                  (5,000)$                   10,000$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 250 34,263$                  34,263$                  83,707$                  83,707$                  68,707$                  (15,000)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 250 94,263$                  83,707$                  68,707$                  106,132$                63,707$                  (5,000)$                   


FUND TBD - AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
TRANSFER IN TIF 3 -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        515,000$                515,000$                


TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        515,000$                515,000$                


APPROPRIATIONS
HOUSING AUTHORITY -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        250,000$                250,000$                


TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        250,000$                250,000$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND TBD -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        265,000$                265,000$                







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - TBD -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - TBD -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        265,000$                265,000$                


FUND 252 - K9 FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        218$                        200$                        40$                          -$                        (200)$                      
48541 DONATIONS- POLICE DEPT. 9,100$                    8,537$                    8,000$                    2,282$                    8,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 9,100$                    8,755$                    8,200$                    2,322$                    8,000$                    (200)$                      


APPROPRIATIONS
50120 WAGES 3,400$                    3,300$                    3,300$                    2,475$                    3,300$                    -$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 625$                        598$                        660$                        474$                        660$                        -$                        
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,100$                    1,228$                    1,200$                    883$                        1,200$                    -$                        
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 1,000$                    3,218$                    3,000$                    850$                        3,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 6,125$                    8,344$                    8,160$                    4,682$                    8,160$                    -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 252 2,975$                    411$                        40$                          (2,360)$                   (160)$                      (200)$                      
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 252 17,322$                  17,322$                  17,733$                  17,733$                  17,773$                  40$                          
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 252 20,297$                  17,733$                  17,773$                  15,373$                  17,613$                  (160)$                      


FUND 260 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
41110 PROPERTY TAXES 31,000$                  5,344$                    5,345$                    -$                        -$                        (5,345)$                   
48110 INTEREST 250$                        377$                        300$                        18$                          -$                        (300)$                      
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND -$                        11$                          -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 31,250$                  5,732$                    5,645$                    18$                          -$                        (5,645)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS 3,000$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 2,200$                    75$                          -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50850 ADMINISTRATION -$                        (2,452)$                   15,275$                  9,930$                    -$                        (15,275)$                
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 5,200$                    (2,377)$                   15,275$                  9,930$                    -$                        (15,275)$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 260 26,050$                  8,109$                    (9,630)$                   (9,912)$                   -$                        9,630$                    
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 260 (8,109)$                   (8,109)$                   -$                        -$                        (9,630)$                   (9,630)$                   







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 260 17,941$                  -$                        (9,630)$                   (9,912)$                   (9,630)$                   -$                        


FUND 261 - REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST 200$                        107$                        -$                        16$                          -$                        -$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 7,000$                    8,150$                    5,000$                    5,000$                    8,000$                    3,000$                    
49244 TRANSFER IN - CDBG -$                        -$                        6,500$                    6,453$                    -$                        (6,500)$                   
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 7,200$                    8,257$                    11,500$                  11,469$                  8,000$                    (3,500)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 7,040$                    6,739$                    8,950$                    7,391$                    7,000$                    (1,950)$                   
50850 ADMINISTRATION -$                        586$                        -$                        1,350$                    1,000$                    1,000$                    
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 7,040$                    7,325$                    8,950$                    8,741$                    8,000$                    (950)$                      


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 261 160$                        932$                        2,550$                    2,728$                    -$                        (2,550)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 261 (67,849)$                (67,849)$                (66,917)$                (66,917)$                (64,367)$                2,550$                    
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 261 (67,689)$                (66,917)$                (64,367)$                (64,189)$                (64,367)$                -$                        


FUND 270 - SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS


ESTIMATED REVENUES
42100 CURB, GUTTER, EARTHWORK -$                        178,328$                130,000$                125,305$                100,000$                (30,000)$                
48110 INTEREST -$                        3,628$                    2,900$                    1,048$                    100$                        (2,800)$                   
48112 INTEREST ON TAXES -$                        9,631$                    4,000$                    804$                        4,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        191,587$                136,900$                127,157$                104,100$                (32,800)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND -$                        -$                        200,000$                -$                        85,000$                  (115,000)$              
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        -$                        200,000$                -$                        85,000$                  (115,000)$              


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 270 -$                        191,587$                (63,100)$                127,157$                19,100$                  82,200$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 270 170,542$                170,542$                362,129$                362,129$                299,029$                (63,100)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 270 170,542$                362,129$                299,029$                489,286$                318,129$                19,100$                  


FUND 300 - DEBT SERVICE FUND







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        6,083$                    7,200$                    1,437$                    -$                        (7,200)$                   
48113 REBATE 12,556$                  8,743$                    3,272$                    2,637$                    -$                        (3,272)$                   
48115 TOWNSHIP SHARE FIRE STATION 48,783$                  48,783$                  73,975$                  73,975$                  73,975$                  -$                        
49100 PREMIUM ON DEBT ISSUE -$                        272,604$                -$                        141,078$                -$                        -$                        
49203 TRANSFER IN - EMS 138,670$                138,670$                137,970$                137,970$                -$                        (137,970)$              
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 3,104,117$            3,104,117$            3,344,613$            3,344,613$            3,284,186$            (60,427)$                
49216 TRANSFER IN - TIF #5 130,588$                107,661$                102,521$                102,521$                112,938$                10,417$                  
49217 TRANSFER IN  - TIF #6 55,163$                  55,163$                  70,138$                  70,138$                  133,731$                63,593$                  
49218 TRANSFER IN - TIF #7 333,149$                333,149$                333,975$                333,975$                334,725$                750$                        
49219 TRANSFER IN - #8 -$                        22,928$                  17,288$                  17,288$                  24,741$                  7,453$                    
49223 TRANSFER IN - TIF #3 437,229$                437,229$                433,029$                433,029$                -$                        (433,029)$              
49224 TRANSFER IN - TIF #4 104,800$                104,800$                101,625$                101,625$                -$                        (101,625)$              
49225 TRANSFER IN - STORM WATER 207,862$                207,862$                254,222$                254,222$                263,749$                9,527$                    
49226 TRANSFER IN - SP ASSESSMENT -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        35,000$                  35,000$                  
49228 TRANSFER IN FROM UTILITIES 96,900$                  91,375$                  95,200$                  95,200$                  93,500$                  (1,700)$                   
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 4,669,817$            4,939,167$            4,975,028$            5,109,708$            4,356,545$            (618,483)$              


APPROPRIATIONS
50610 PRINCIPAL 3,612,890$            3,612,890$            4,144,730$            4,144,730$            3,471,021$            (673,709)$              
50620 INTEREST 1,055,927$            1,050,402$            1,094,702$            1,094,702$            980,709$                (113,993)$              
50621 PAYMENT TO REFUNDING ESCROW 1,000$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50630 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES -$                        5,475$                    6,000$                    6,125$                    6,000$                    -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 4,669,817$            4,668,767$            5,245,432$            5,245,557$            4,457,730$            (787,702)$              


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 300 -$                        270,400$                (270,404)$              (135,849)$              (101,185)$              169,219$                
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 300 562,002$                562,002$                832,402$                832,402$                561,998$                (270,404)$              
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 300 562,002$                832,402$                561,998$                696,553$                460,813$                (101,185)$              


FUND 400 - CONSTRUCTION FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43524 GRANTS -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        27,316$                  27,316$                  
48110 INTEREST -$                        84,385$                  25,000$                  6,599$                    2,500$                    (22,500)$                
49120 NOTE PROCEEDS 2,860,979$            2,431,577$            1,395,000$            1,368,195$            1,488,749$            93,749$                  
49130 PREMIUM ON DEBT -$                        15,500$                  -$                        11,652$                  -$                        -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND -$                        -$                        100,000$                100,000$                100,000$                -$                        
49226 TRANSFER IN - SP ASSESSMENT -$                        -$                        200,000$                -$                        50,000$                  (150,000)$              
49232 TRANSFER IN - PARK DEV FUND -$                        (70,000)$                -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 2,860,979$            2,461,462$            1,720,000$            1,486,446$            1,668,565$            (51,435)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50120 WAGES -$                        -$                        -$                        9,773$                    57,928$                  57,928$                  
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS -$                        -$                        -$                        1,405$                    8,513$                    8,513$                    
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE -$                        -$                        -$                        3,349$                    13,934$                  13,934$                  
50630 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES -$                        36,098$                  34,000$                  38,393$                  30,000$                  (4,000)$                   
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 2,578,783$            2,354,786$            1,676,718$            576,846$                1,555,691$            (121,027)$              
50830 BUILDINGS/REMODEL -$                        2,462$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50840 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 268,471$                318,596$                269,834$                229,421$                -$                        (269,834)$              
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 2,847,254$            2,711,942$            1,980,552$            859,187$                1,666,066$            (314,486)$              


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 400 13,725$                  (250,480)$              (260,552)$              627,259$                2,499$                    263,051$                
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 400 2,653,594$            2,653,594$            2,403,114$            2,403,114$            2,142,562$            (260,552)$              
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 400 2,667,319$            2,403,114$            2,142,562$            3,030,373$            2,145,061$            2,499$                    


FUND 410 - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43524 GRANTS 70,793$                  -$                        75,000$                  -$                        11,000$                  (64,000)$                
47323 TOWNSHIP FIRE - CAPITAL 55,000$                  55,323$                  21,900$                  23,215$                  22,200$                  300$                        
48110 INTEREST -$                        19,976$                  5,000$                    3,454$                    1,000$                    (4,000)$                   
48309 SALE OF CITY PROPERTY -$                        12,120$                  -$                        40,800$                  -$                        -$                        
48500 DONATIONS-ROTARY PARK -$                        -$                        -$                        2,500$                    -$                        -$                        
49120 NOTE PROCEEDS 1,615,921$            1,627,555$            695,000$                636,805$                838,475$                143,475$                
49130 PREMIUM ON DEBT -$                        8,755$                    -$                        5,423$                    -$                        -$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 200,000$                200,000$                100,000$                100,000$                100,000$                -$                        
49232 TRANSFER IN - PARK DEV FUND 21,886$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        18,543$                  18,543$                  
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 1,963,600$            1,923,729$            896,900$                812,197$                991,218$                94,318$                  


APPROPRIATIONS
50630 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES -$                        20,389$                  17,000$                  17,869$                  15,000$                  (2,000)$                   
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 1,897,600$            1,027,978$            929,000$                1,208,340$            974,518$                45,518$                  







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
50840 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 16,000$                  21,730$                  -$                        6,047$                    -$                        -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 1,913,600$            1,070,097$            946,000$                1,232,256$            989,518$                43,518$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 410 50,000$                  853,632$                (49,100)$                (420,059)$              1,700$                    50,800$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 410 453,900$                453,900$                1,307,532$            1,307,532$            1,258,432$            (49,100)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 410 503,900$                1,307,532$            1,258,432$            887,473$                1,260,132$            1,700$                    


FUND 411 - BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        1,317$                    500$                        394$                        350$                        (150)$                      
48200 RENT INCOME - UTILITY BUILDING 131,000$                129,575$                134,000$                100,022$                138,919$                4,919$                    
48220 RENTAL INCOME-SR CENTER ANNEX 20,000$                  28,800$                  29,700$                  15,600$                  29,700$                  -$                        
48221 RENTAL INCOME - ROOM USE -$                        885$                        -$                        75$                          100$                        100$                        
48222 RENTAL REVENUE - MSB -$                        21,417$                  26,000$                  21,866$                  26,389$                  389$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 151,000$                181,994$                190,200$                137,957$                195,458$                5,258$                    


APPROPRIATIONS
50128 ROOM OBSERVER 500$                        538$                        -$                        73$                          1,000$                    1,000$                    
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS -$                        41$                          -$                        6$                            76$                          76$                          
50820 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE 281,000$                154,152$                254,600$                120,454$                209,500$                (45,100)$                
50930 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND -$                        -$                        45,000$                  -$                        45,000$                  -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 281,500$                154,731$                299,600$                120,533$                255,576$                (44,024)$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 411 (130,500)$              27,263$                  (109,400)$              17,424$                  (60,118)$                49,282$                  
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 411 540,449$                540,449$                567,712$                567,712$                458,312$                (109,400)$              
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 411 409,949$                567,712$                458,312$                585,136$                398,194$                (60,118)$                


FUND 412 - EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43525 GRANTS- TAXI -$                        29,600$                  -$                        (29,600)$                36,298$                  36,298$                  
47323 TOWNSHIP FIRE - CAPITAL -$                        -$                        75,000$                  73,858$                  21,300$                  (53,700)$                
48110 INTEREST 1,000$                    2,811$                    2,000$                    704$                        500$                        (1,500)$                   
48309 SALE OF CITY PROPERTY -$                        24,061$                  -$                        14,904$                  -$                        -$                        
49228 TRANFER IN FROM UTILITIES 220,000$                220,000$                220,000$                -$                        220,000$                -$                        







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 221,000$                276,472$                297,000$                59,866$                  278,098$                (18,902)$                


APPROPRIATIONS
50820 EQUIPMENT 178,350$                175,860$                599,700$                465,117$                280,520$                (319,180)$              
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 178,350$                175,860$                599,700$                465,117$                280,520$                (319,180)$              


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 412 42,650$                  100,612$                (302,700)$              (405,251)$              (2,422)$                   300,278$                
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 412 427,156$                427,156$                527,768$                527,768$                225,068$                (302,700)$              
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 412 469,806$                527,768$                225,068$                122,517$                222,646$                (2,422)$                   


FUND 413 - TECHNOLOGY FUND


ESTIMATED REVENUES
48110 INTEREST -$                        394$                        1,000$                    -$                        -$                        (1,000)$                   
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND -$                        100,000$                -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES -$                        100,394$                1,000$                    -$                        -$                        (1,000)$                   


APPROPRIATIONS
50289 NETWORK EXPENSES -$                        -$                        25,000$                  5,248$                    25,000$                  -$                        
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS -$                        -$                        25,000$                  5,248$                    25,000$                  -$                        


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 413 -$                        100,394$                (24,000)$                (5,248)$                   (25,000)$                (1,000)$                   
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 413 -$                        -$                        100,394$                100,394$                76,394$                  (24,000)$                
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 413 -$                        100,394$                76,394$                  95,146$                  51,394$                  (25,000)$                


FUND 603 - EMS


ESTIMATED REVENUES
43421 STATE MEDICARE SUPPLEMENT 20,500$                  16,386$                  17,500$                  -$                        15,000$                  (2,500)$                   
43529 FEDERAL ASSISTANCE FUNDING - COVID -$                        -$                        -$                        16,438$                  -$                        -$                        
43530 BAB REBATE 4,500$                    3,035$                    2,025$                    1,420$                    -$                        (2,025)$                   
46220 EMS DEPT FEES 44,650$                  44,637$                  44,664$                  45,332$                  45,800$                  1,136$                    
46230 AMBULANCE FEES 610,000$                551,341$                640,000$                473,005$                650,000$                10,000$                  
46240 STATE DEPT COLLECTION (SDC) 25,000$                  6,195$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
48110 INTEREST -$                        2,088$                    -$                        371$                        250$                        250$                        
49210 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND 80,000$                  80,000$                  25,000$                  25,000$                  -$                        (25,000)$                
TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 784,650$                703,682$                729,189$                561,566$                711,050$                (18,139)$                







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION


APPROPRIATIONS
50110 SALARIES 81,790$                  82,781$                  83,371$                  58,224$                  85,076$                  1,705$                    
50120 WAGES 42,634$                  35,073$                  43,793$                  25,305$                  44,713$                  920$                        
50127 WAGES - PART TIME 141,000$                129,735$                135,000$                97,777$                  146,000$                11,000$                  
50128 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY/VOLUNTEER -$                        -$                        -$                        345$                        -$                        -$                        
50129 LONGEVITY - VOLUNTEERS 5,300$                    4,893$                    5,100$                    125$                        5,100$                    -$                        
50151 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 28,602$                  36,642$                  29,107$                  19,731$                  30,452$                  1,345$                    
50152 HEALTH INSURANCE 21,835$                  21,844$                  21,916$                  16,437$                  22,426$                  510$                        
50197 WORKERS COMP INSURANCE 12,000$                  6,270$                    6,300$                    -$                        6,500$                    200$                        
50210 TELEPHONE 4,000$                    2,385$                    1,900$                    1,563$                    2,700$                    800$                        
50212 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE 9,350$                    11,268$                  10,000$                  3,471$                    10,000$                  -$                        
50213 EMT TRAINING BANK 3,560$                    1,663$                    3,650$                    75$                          3,650$                    -$                        
50215 OUTSIDE SERVICES/MEDICAL DIRECTOR 10,000$                  10,000$                  10,000$                  5,000$                    10,000$                  -$                        
50216 OUTSIDE SERVICES/BILLING 40,000$                  34,966$                  36,000$                  25,648$                  38,000$                  2,000$                    
50217 OUTSIDE SERVICES/LEGAL 2,000$                    2,521$                    2,000$                    -$                        2,000$                    -$                        
50220 UTILITIES/JANITORIAL 17,800$                  14,691$                  16,900$                  11,191$                  14,600$                  (2,300)$                   
50240 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE/BUILDING 13,500$                  9,271$                    14,000$                  15,386$                  26,000$                  12,000$                  
50300 MISC EXPENSES 3,700$                    4,019$                    3,700$                    1,553$                    3,700$                    -$                        
50310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 6,000$                    4,857$                    6,000$                    1,898$                    4,000$                    (2,000)$                   
50316 RENT EXPENSE 39,643$                  27,759$                  30,000$                  21,177$                  28,500$                  (1,500)$                   
50320 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES 1,200$                    1,295$                    1,300$                    1,298$                    1,400$                    100$                        
50321 DEPRECIATION/SINKING FUND -$                        102,096$                -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50325 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE 18,000$                  18,000$                  -$                        -$                        18,000$                  18,000$                  
50330 VEHICLE EXPENSE 8,000$                    14,147$                  12,000$                  6,639$                    12,000$                  -$                        
50335 VEHICLE FUEL 8,000$                    7,796$                    8,000$                    4,239$                    7,700$                    (300)$                      
50340 OPERATING EXPENSES 42,000$                  43,722$                  42,000$                  37,067$                  50,000$                  8,000$                    
50342 OPERATING EXPENSES-RECRUITMENT -$                        -$                        500$                        -$                        500$                        -$                        
50343 OPERATING EXPENSES-PUBLIC RELATIONS 1,000$                    767$                        1,000$                    -$                        1,000$                    -$                        
50350 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE 6,400$                    6,054$                    6,400$                    168$                        6,000$                    (400)$                      
50390 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 5,000$                    3,629$                    5,000$                    2,356$                    5,000$                    -$                        
50513 AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE INSURANCE 2,500$                    2,800$                    3,000$                    -$                        3,000$                    -$                        
50620 INTEREST 8,670$                    6,850$                    -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
50931 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE 130,000$                -$                        137,970$                137,970$                -$                        (137,970)$              
50933 TRANSFER TO EQUIP REPLACEMENT 40,000$                  40,000$                  40,000$                  40,000$                  100,000$                60,000$                  







                                                                                                                                  


        CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 BUDGET - REMAINING FUNDS


2020
2019 2019 2020 9 MONTH 2021 INCREASE


BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL PROPOSED (DECREASE)ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 753,484$                687,794$                715,907$                534,643$                688,017$                (27,890)$                


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - FUND 603 31,166$                  15,888$                  13,282$                  26,923$                  23,033$                  9,751$                    
    BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - FUND 603 1,029,158$            1,029,158$            1,045,046$            1,045,046$            1,058,328$            13,282$                  
    ENDING FUND BALANCE - FUND 603 1,060,324$            1,045,046$            1,058,328$            1,071,969$            1,081,361$            23,033$                  


NET OF REVENUES/APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS EXCLUDING GF (328,670)$              4,045,700$            (2,203,820)$           (1,008,874)$           103,750$                2,307,570$            





		08a -2020 2021-City of Stoughton Budget Resolution

		08b-R- -2020 2021-City of Stoughton Budget Resolution






 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION TO THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of Stoughton five-year (2021-


2025) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 


 
Committee Action: 


 


 


 
CIP Budget Committee Recommended approval September 24, 2020 


 
Fiscal Impact: 2021 - $4,227,435; 2022 - $8,194,218; 2023 - $3,599,207; 2024 - $7,231,731; 


2025 - $4,630,526 
 
File Number: 


 
R-167-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 10, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, City staff has prepared and the CIP Budget Committee has reviewed the proposed five-year 


(2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan; and 


WHEREAS, the CIP Budget Committee recommended the approval of the proposed five-year 


(2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan to the Common Council on September 24, 2020; and now 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 


approve and adopt the five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan. 


    


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


          


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 







 
City of Stoughton, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION TO THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of Stoughton five-year (2021-
2025) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 


 
Committee Action: 
 
 


 
CIP Budget Committee Recommended approval September 24, 2020 


 
Fiscal Impact: 2021 - $4,227,435; 2022 - $8,194,218; 2023 - $3,599,207; 2024 - $7,231,731; 


2025 - $4,630,526 
 
File Number: 


 
R- -2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 10, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, City staff has prepared and the CIP Budget Committee has reviewed the proposed five-year 
(2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan; and 


WHEREAS, the CIP Budget Committee recommended the approval of the proposed five-year 
(2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan to the Common Council on September 24, 2020; and now 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 
approve and adopt the five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan. 
    
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
          
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 







Page 1


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt ENGINEERING TECH POSITION 80,000$ 84,000$ 88,200$ 92,610$ 97,241$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt Preventative Maintenance 180,000$ 180,000$ 180,000$ 180,000$ 180,000$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt PROJECT ENGINEERING 69,158$ 154,123$ 94,013$ 347,213$ 197,439$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt Sidewalk Program 55,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt NYGAARD PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 135,390$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt SKINNER LANE PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 53,201$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt ROBY SUMP PUMP AND SIDEWALK 28,300$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt RUTLAND DUNN TOWN LINE RD -$ 4,620$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 469,270$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt KINGS LYNN PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 131,141$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt HARRISON - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt JEFFERSON ST. BRIDGE DECK 60,000$ 450,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt JOHNSON - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt LINCOLN AVE PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 114,072$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt MILWAUKEE ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 370,378$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt MONROE ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt ROBY RD WEST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 416,289$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt ROY ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt USH 51 ROUNDABOUTS -$ 132,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt BICKLEY CT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 58,439$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 547,834$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 108,527$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION/RECONSTRUCT -$ -$ -$ -$ 285,063$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt HARDING/GRANT - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt HILLCREST & HOLTON PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 127,757$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt ROWE ST/BEN WAITE CIR RECONSTRUCTION -$ 165,294$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt TRUMAN RD PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 56,103$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt W SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt WILSON ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 89,498$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 132,163$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt MADISON ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 185,113$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt MAIN/PAGE CT -$ -$ 11,000$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt MCKINLEY ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 87,155$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt PRAIRIE ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 156,863$ -$ -$ 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)







Page 2


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt SILVERADO DR - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 77,339$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt TAFT ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 114,148$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt TAFT ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 129,673$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 284,776$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt CHICAGO - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 429,462$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt DEVONSHIRE - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ 286,991$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 185,397$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt PAGE STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 290,535$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt RACETRACK PARK - NORTH LOT AND ROAD -$ -$ -$ 230,940$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 913,395$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt RANDOLPH RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 194,459$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt MOLINE PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ 106,238$ 


TOTAL 1,191,410$ 2,522,623$ 1,305,667$ 3,291,319$ 1,766,801$ 


400-Capital Projects Special Assessments Sidewalk Program 5,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments NYGAARD PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 24,538$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments SKINNER LANE PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 3,754$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments ROBY SUMP PUMP AND SIDEWALK 30,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 66,375$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments KINGS LYNN PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 16,450$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments HARRISON - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments JOHNSON - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments LINCOLN AVE PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 18,365$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MILWAUKEE ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 61,107$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MONROE ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments ROBY RD WEST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 52,775$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments ROY ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments BICKLEY CT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 4,892$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 129,939$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 15,613$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION/RECONSTRUCT -$ -$ -$ -$ 61,905$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments HARDING/GRANT - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments HILLCREST & HOLTON PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 13,082$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments ROWE ST/BEN WAITE CIR RECONSTRUCTION -$ 27,300$ -$ -$ -$ 







Page 3


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


400-Capital Projects Special Assessments TRUMAN RD PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 5,688$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments W SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments WILSON ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 15,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 16,013$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MADISON ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 58,126$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MCKINLEY ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 15,203$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments PRAIRIE ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 26,317$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments SILVERADO DR - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 11,388$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments TAFT ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 30,753$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments TAFT ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 26,123$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 56,679$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments CHICAGO - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 86,386$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments DEVONSHIRE - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ 46,881$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 27,849$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments PAGE STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 48,490$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 18,619$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments RANDOLPH RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 38,950$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MOLINE PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ 34,320$ 


TOTAL  $           134,432  $       259,894  $       233,923  $       334,904  $         330,727 


400-Capital Projects Other-Grants ROBY RD WEST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 27,316$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Other-Grants RUTLAND DUNN TOWN LINE RD -$ 41,580$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL  $             27,316  $         41,580  $                 -    $                 -    $                   -   


400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund PROJECT ENGINEERING 13,250$ 60,090$ 4,575$ 29,717$ 45,264$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund ROBY SUMP PUMP AND SIDEWALK 42,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund BREWER CT/HYLAND 82,500$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 245,300$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund KINGS LYNN PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 89,540$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund BICKLEY CT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 70,180$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 237,609$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION/RECONSTRUCT -$ -$ -$ -$ 94,325$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund HARDING/GRANT - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund HILLCREST & HOLTON PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 17,050$ -$ -$ -$ 







Page 4


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund ROWE ST/BEN WAITE CIR RECONSTRUCTION -$ 18,590$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund W SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund MADISON ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 33,550$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 14,781$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 14,643$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund PAGE STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 100,051$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 96,335$ -$ 


TOTAL 137,750$ 500,750$ 38,125$ 255,527$ 377,198$ 


400-Capital Projects Stoughton Utilities EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Stoughton Utilities FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Stoughton Utilities FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Administration General Fund Outlay Badger Book (Poll Books and Servers) 31,500$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Administration Equipment Replacement Rear Accessible Van 10,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 41,500$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


EMS Building Maintenance EMS - Rooftop Unit #4 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Fire Building Maintenance Garage Door Opener Controller Changeout 2,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL 2,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Fire Equipment Replacement Personal Protective Equipment 37,603$ 16,000$ 42,900$ 16,000$ 40,000$ 
Fire Equipment Replacement Car 2 support vehicle replacement -$ 44,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire Equipment Replacement Tire Replacement 6,120$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire Equipment Replacement Portable Radios 25,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 68,723$ 60,000$ 42,900$ 16,000$ 40,000$ 


Fire Other-Grants Personal Protective Equipment 5,298$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL 5,298$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 







Page 5


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Fire General Fund Outlay MDC Installation, 2 vehicles 11,940$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay Breathing Air Compressor & Storage Tanks  55,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay Portable Radios -$ 340,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay Mobile Radios -$ -$ 70,000$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay 72 SCBA bottle only replacement -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay Knox Key Secure 4,398$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay Architect Services, 2nd floor costing of FD -$ 5,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay SCBA Hydro test -$ 4,500$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay Tire Replacement STE-2 -$ 6,000$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 71,338$ 355,500$ 70,000$ -$ -$ 


Fire General Obligation Debt Ladder #4 Replacement -$ -$ -$ 1,500,000$ -$ 
TOTAL -$ -$ -$ 1,500,000$ -$ 


IT/Media Services Equipment Replacement Camera Replacement 22,500$ -$ -$ 15,000$ -$ 
IT/Media Services Equipment Replacement Van Tricaster to WIN10 22,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
IT/Media Services Equipment Replacement Tripod Replacement (2008) 5,200$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
IT/Media Services Equipment Replacement DVR Replacement 14,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
IT/Media Services Equipment Replacement Production Van Replacement (2006) -$ 60,000$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 63,700$ 60,000$ -$ 15,000$ -$ 


IT/Media Services General Fund Outlay Computer Replacement 10,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 
IT/Media Services General Fund Outlay Upgrade EMS Cameras to HD -$ -$ -$ 50,000$ -$ 


TOTAL 10,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 80,000$ 30,000$ 


IT/Media Services Technology Fund Network upgrades 25,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL 25,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ -$ -$ 


Library Building Maintenance Tuckpointing 5,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Library Building Maintenance Fire Alarm - Replace Notifier Panel 5,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 10,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Library General Fund Outlay Computers & peripherals 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 
TOTAL 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 







Page 6


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Parks General Fund Outlay Racetrack Scoreboards 11,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Trash Receptacles 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Picnic Table Replacement -$ -$ -$ -$ 12,000$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay ADA Pathways 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Bjoin Shelter Roof -$ -$ -$ -$ 10,000$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Dunkirk Playground Replacement -$ -$ -$ -$ 80,000$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Sunshade Cover for Troll Beach -$ -$ -$ -$ 3,500$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Eastside Park Courty Overlay -$ -$ -$ -$ 20,000$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Hollywood Kwik Release Bases (7 sets) 3,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Racetrack Shelter Roof/Siding 40,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay ADA Pathways East Park -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Eastside Park Restroom Update/Partitions 25,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Schefelker Basketball Half Court -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Schefelker Playground Replacement -$ 75,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Schefelker Walk Trail Overlay/Lights -$ 15,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Dugouts at Racetrack Park -$ 80,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Norse Park Playground -$ -$ 175,000$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Pump Track Mel Bakke Park -$ -$ 75,000$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Skate Park update -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Trail Paving -$ -$ -$ 25,000$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Racetrack Dug outs (concrete/roof) -$ -$ -$ 30,000$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Racetrack Playground -$ -$ -$ 150,000$ -$ 


TOTAL 114,000$ 225,000$ 305,000$ 240,000$ 160,500$ 


Parks General Obligation Debt Racetrack Park Concession/Restroom Building ADA Modifications -$ 10,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Obligation Debt Dunkirk Park Basketball Court Replacement -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Obligation Debt Criddle Park Basketball Court Replacement & ADA Routes -$ -$ 23,000$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Obligation Debt Racetrack Park Parking Lots & ADA Routes Design & Engineering -$ -$ 100,000$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Obligation Debt Virgin Lake Park Shelter ADA Modifications -$ -$ 30,000$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Obligation Debt Racetrack Park Parking Lots & ADA Routes -$ -$ -$ 700,000$ -$ 
Parks General Obligation Debt Norse Park Shelter Design & Engineering -$ -$ -$ -$ 70,000$ 


TOTAL -$ 30,000$ 153,000$ 700,000$ 70,000$ 


Planning Building Maintenance City Hall - Drive Thru Area 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 







Page 7


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Planning Building Maintenance City Hall - Electric Service -$ -$ 40,000$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Opera House - Window Assessment -$ -$ 17,000$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance City Hall - Boiler Replacement 35,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Opera House - 2 Fan Coil Replacments - East FCU & Dressing Room Unit -$ -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Opera House - Front Doors -$ -$ -$ 5,000$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Opera House - Stage Refinishing -$ -$ -$ -$ 25,000$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Depot - Exterior Wood Replacement & Paint 35,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Depot - Carport Roof Replacement 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 110,000$ -$ 57,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ 


Planning General Fund Outlay Opera House - Tuck Pointing 40,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Planning General Fund Outlay Art Scuplture - USH 51/138 at Cummins 15,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Planning General Fund Outlay City Hall - Roof Replacement -$ -$ -$ 100,000$ -$ 
Planning General Fund Outlay Opera House - Window Replacement -$ -$ -$ -$ 150,000$ 


TOTAL 55,000$ -$ -$ 100,000$ 150,000$ 


Police Building Maintenance PSB - Replace RTU #4 - Carrier Rooftop unit 30,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Building Maintenance PSB - Generator 5 Year Preventative Maintenance 5,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Building Maintenance PSB - Parking Lot Patch and Seal Coat 5,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Building Maintenance PSB - Window Replacement -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Building Maintenance PSB-Replace RTU#2 Carrier rooftop unit -$ 30,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Building Maintenance PSB - Replace Trane Fan Coil Unit #5 - Council Chambers -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 40,000$ 50,000$ 20,000$ -$ -$ 


Police Equipment Replacement Squad #276 -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #271 -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #273 42,000$ -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #281 -$ -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #277 35,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #272 -$ 44,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #278 -$ -$ -$ -$ 35,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #274 -$ 44,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #283  K-9 -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Body Camera Replacement 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 







Page 8


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Police Equipment Replacement Electric Police Bikes -$ 6,000$ -$ -$ 6,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Radar Replacements x 2 4,000$ 4,000$ -$ 4,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Radio System Base Unit Replacement 6,000$ -$ -$ 12,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad Car Video/Laptop Replace 3,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Taser Replacement 4,800$ -$ 5,000$ -$ 5,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #270 -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 99,800$ 109,000$ 106,000$ 117,000$ 147,000$ 


Police General Fund Outlay Community Camera Interface     5,000$ 5,000$ -$ -$ 5,000$ 
Police General Fund Outlay FirstNet Phones 7,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police General Fund Outlay Police Garage -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police General Fund Outlay Police Gas Masks 10,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police General Fund Outlay Digital Forensic computer hardware    5,000$ 10,000$ 5,000$ 8,000$ -$ 
Police General Fund Outlay Automated License Plate Reader  -$ 25,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police General Fund Outlay Radio Programming -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police General Fund Outlay Portable Radios 28,000$ 28,000$ 16,000$ 16,000$ 16,000$ 
Police General Fund Outlay CAD Interface Router to County 6,000$ -$ -$ 6,000$ -$ 


TOTAL 61,000$ 68,000$ 21,000$ 30,000$ 21,000$ 


Recreation General Fund Outlay Bike Rack Initiative 4,613$ 3,150$ 3,225$ 3,300$ -$ 
Recreation General Fund Outlay Parks & Open Space Plan -$ -$ 22,000$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 4,613$ 3,150$ 25,225$ 3,300$ -$ 


Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII Dam Removal - Engineering 26,648$ 24,225$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII T, U, P Design (RDA to Water St) 89,976$ 53,579$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII WW Park - Engineering 66,283$ 60,258$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Nordic Ridge Inclusive Playground 122,807$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Nordic Ridge Multiuse Court -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Racetrack Park Master Plan 30,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII River Restoration 100,000$ 112,500$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII Dam Removal - Construction -$ 84,500$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII T, U, P (RDA to Water St) -$ 538,007$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII WW Park Construction -$ 506,165$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Settler's Point Trail Gravel Parking Lot -$ -$ 42,000$ -$ -$ 







Page 9


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Recreation General Obligation Debt Settler's Point Trail Network -$ -$ 52,250$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Yahara Trail-Hospital to Cooper's (IKI) -$ -$ 87,500$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PIII Market Demand Analysis -$ -$ 34,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Schefelker Park - Shelter/Restroom Building -$ -$ 134,375$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Veterans Park - Shelter/Restroom Building -$ -$ 134,375$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Yahara Trail Paving-Viking Park to Hospital -$ -$ 88,117$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Amundson Park - Trail Exercise Stations -$ -$ -$ 16,500$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility Design -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Yahara Trail Paving-Bus Park to Ped Bridge -$ -$ -$ 122,681$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PIII Mandt Park Updates -$ -$ -$ -$ 397,000$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility -$ -$ -$ -$ 300,000$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Rotary Park - Restrooms and Accessible Pathways 71,717$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Bjoin Park Prairie 18,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Lowell Park - Mountain Bike Trails -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 525,431$ 1,399,234$ 572,617$ 184,181$ 697,000$ 


Recreation Other-Grants RD PII River Restoration -$ 212,500$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PII Dam Removal - Construction -$ 400,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PII T, U, P (RDA to Water St) -$ 740,498$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PII WW Park Construction -$ 698,989$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Settler's Point Trail Gravel Parking Lot -$ -$ 42,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Settler's Point Trail Network -$ -$ 52,250$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Yahara Trail-Hospital to Cooper's (IKI) -$ -$ 87,500$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Yahara Trail Paving-Viking Park to Hospital -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Nordic Ridge Inclusive Playground 11,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility Design -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Yahara Trail Paving-Bus Park to Ped Bridge -$ -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PIII Mandt Park Updates -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility -$ -$ -$ -$ 300,000$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Yahara Trail-Hospital to Cooper's (Pr. Prop) -$ -$ 87,500$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 11,000$ 2,051,987$ 289,250$ 65,000$ 300,000$ 


Redevelopment Authority General Obligation Debt Riverbank Restoration 119,540$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Redevelopment Authority General Obligation Debt Riverfront Trail and Amenities 139,369$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 







Page 10


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Redevelopment Authority General Obligation Debt Lift Station -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL 258,909$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Recreation Intergovernmental Nordic Ridge Inclusive Playground 18,543$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL 18,543$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Redevelopment Authority Other-Grants Pedestrian Bridge Construction 475,103$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Redevelopment Authority Other-Grants Riverbank Restoration 92,060$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Redevelopment Authority Other-Grants Riverfront Trail and Amenities 103,010$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 670,173$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Senior Center Building Maintenance Senior Center - Replace Windows -$ -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ 
Senior Center Building Maintenance Sr Ctr-Lower Lot & concrete spillway resurfacing -$ -$ -$ 40,000$ -$ 
Senior Center Building Maintenance Fire Panel Replacement including detectors 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Senior Center Building Maintenance Sr Ctr Annex-Replace 4 Fan Coil & condensing units 7,500$ 22,500$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 27,500$ 22,500$ -$ 60,000$ -$ 


Senior Center General Fund Outlay Sr Ctr - Annex Roof Repair - Cedar Shake 65,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Senior Center General Fund Outlay Replace Both Boilers and 4 new circulation pumps 70,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 135,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Streets Equipment Replacement #13 Chevy K3500 -$ 36,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #32 Scagg -$ -$ 6,500$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #11 Dump Truck One-Ton (Chevy 3500) -$ -$ 40,000$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement Bunker Trailer -$ -$ -$ -$ 1,300$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #30 Wacker Road Roller -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #47 Pickup Truck (Chevy) 33,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement F250 Truck w/ Lift Gate-Add'n to Fleet -$ -$ 48,000$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #43 Rhino Ditch Mower -$ -$ -$ 10,500$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #59 Smithco Diamond Groomer -$ -$ -$ 18,000$ -$ 


TOTAL 33,000$ 36,000$ 114,500$ 28,500$ 1,300$ 


Streets General Obligation Debt #27 Toro 5900 95,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #23 Backhoe (John Deere) 119,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 







Page 11


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Streets General Obligation Debt #38 Morbark Wood Chipper -$ 58,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #7 Patrol Truck (Chevy) -$ 193,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #33 Bucket Truck - International 4300 -$ -$ 140,000$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt Tool Cat 5600 -$ -$ -$ 65,000$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt International Patrol Truck #14 -$ -$ -$ -$ 205,000$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt Toro Wing Mower #73 -$ -$ -$ -$ 65,000$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #40 Skid Steer S630 (Bobcat) -$ 54,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #8 Dump Truck - One-ton GMC -$ -$ 44,000$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt Toro GM7200 w/polar track -$ 33,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #20 Grader (John Deere 570A) -$ -$ -$ 115,000$ -$ 


TOTAL 214,000$ 338,000$ 184,000$ 180,000$ 270,000$ 


Streets Storm Water Fund #41 Leaf Vacuum Unit -$ -$ -$ -$ 180,000$ 
Streets Storm Water Fund Rear Mount Boom Cutter 35,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Storm Water Fund Case IH Tractor #26 -$ -$ -$ -$ 58,000$ 
Streets Storm Water Fund Street Sweeper #12 -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Storm Water Fund #42 Leaf Vacuum Unit -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 35,000$ -$ -$ -$ 238,000$ 


TOTAL 4,227,435$         8,194,218$    3,599,207$     7,231,731$    4,630,526$      







Departments 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Streets/Storm Water 1,490,908$        3,324,847$          1,577,715$        3,881,750$        2,474,726$        
Administration 41,500$             -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                   
EMS 20,000$             -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                   
Fire 147,358$           415,500$             112,900$           1,516,000$        40,000$             
IT/Media Services 98,700$             115,000$             55,000$             95,000$             30,000$             
Library 16,000$             6,000$                 6,000$               6,000$               6,000$               
Parks 114,000$           255,000$             458,000$           940,000$           230,500$           
Planning 165,000$           -$                     57,000$             125,000$           175,000$           
Police 200,800$           227,000$             147,000$           147,000$           168,000$           
Recreation 559,587$           3,454,371$          887,092$           252,481$           997,000$           
Redevelopment Authority 929,082$           -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                   
Senior Center 162,500$           22,500$               -$                   60,000$             -$                   
Streets 282,000$           374,000$             298,500$           208,500$           509,300$           
Grand Total 4,227,435$        8,194,218$          3,599,207$        7,231,731$        4,630,526$        


Funding Source 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Revenue Source
Building Maintenance 209,500$           72,500$               77,000$             85,000$             25,000$             Rental Income
Equipment Replacement 275,223$           265,000$             263,400$           176,500$           188,300$           General Fund Contribution


General Fund Outlay 488,451$           687,650$             457,225$           459,300$           367,500$           General Fund Contribution / Debt


General Obligation Debt 2,189,750$        4,289,857$          2,215,284$        5,855,500$        2,803,801$        General Fund Contribution / Debt


Intergovernmental 18,543$             -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                   Park Improvement Fund
Other-Grants 713,787$           2,093,567$          289,250$           65,000$             300,000$           Grants
Special Assessments 134,432$           259,894$             233,923$           334,904$           330,727$           Debt
Storm Water Fund 172,750$           500,750$             38,125$             255,527$           615,198$           Debt / Storm Water Fees
Technology Fund 25,000$             25,000$               25,000$             -$                   -$                   Self-Funded
Grand Total 4,227,435$        8,194,218$          3,599,207$        7,231,731$        4,630,526$        


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


City/Levy Borrowing 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Initial City Borrowing 2,610,583$        7,330,968$          3,195,682$        6,714,704$        3,802,028$        
Less: City Grants (38,316)$            (2,093,567)$         (289,250)$          (65,000)$            (300,000)$          
Less: Park Development Funds (18,543)$            -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                   
Less: General Fund Contribution (200,000)$          (200,000)$            (200,000)$          (200,000)$          (200,000)$          
Less: Township Fire Contribution (22,200)$            (110,400)$            (21,700)$            (465,800)$          -$                   
Less: Library -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                   
Less: Special Assessments (50,000)$            (41,200)$              (48,600)$            (55,800)$            (62,600)$            


Borrowing Required 2,281,524$        4,885,801$          2,636,132$        5,928,104$        3,239,428$        


Recommended 2,300,000$        2,310,000$          2,855,000$        3,200,000$        3,510,000$        
Recommended Reduction (18,000)$            2,576,000$          (219,000)$          2,728,000$        (271,000)$          


Storm Water Borrowing 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Borrowing Required 150,000$           510,000$             -$                   260,000$           385,000$           


Recommended 150,000$           510,000$             -$                   260,000$           385,000$           
Recommended Reduction -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                   


TIF Borrowing 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Borrowing Required 260,000$           -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                   


Recommended 260,000$           -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                   
Recommended Reduction -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                   


* - Assuming 10 repayment terms - These can be adjusted based on needs identified by the City in an attempt to limit the impact on future mil rates 
     if reductions to the existing plan are not proposed.
* - This plan is not static and is simply a road map. As priorities are identified and actual growth, economic status, etc. is determined
      so will this plan and forecasted repayment terms.







CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (FINAL)


Year Ending Recommended Requested
2019 3.11% 3.11%
2020 2.89% 2.92%
2021 2.78% 2.83%
2022 2.65% 2.86%
2023 2.51% 2.70%
2024 2.41% 2.79%
2025 2.34% 2.67%


 - City policy is 4% of equalized value
 - State policy 5% of equalized value


Forecasted Debt Ceiling







CIP AD HOC COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Thursday, August 13, 2020 @6:00 PM 
Remote Meeting   


 


Call to Order: 
Hirsch called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.  


Present:  
Greg Jensen, Brett Schumacher, Phil Caravello, Lisa Reeves, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Tom Majewski and 
Mayor Tim Swadley 


Absent and Excused:  
None 


Others Present:  
Chief Ripp, Chief Leck, Director Montgomery, Director Ramsey,  


Elect Vice Chair 


Jenson made a motion to elect Schumacher as Vice Chair, second by Reeves. Motion carried 7-0. 


Review and Approve 2021-2025 Capital Improvement Plan Proposals 


Finance Director Friedl gave an overview of the CIP budget and process.  


Chief Ripp presented the 2021-2025 Fire Department CIP request. 


Chief Leck presented the 2021-2025 Police Department CIP request. 


Director Montgomery presented the 2021-2025 IT/Media Services Department CIP request. 


Director Friedl presented the 2021-2025 RDA/TIF No. 8 CIP request. 


 


Adjournment:  
Motion by Caravello, second by Heili to adjourn at 8:00 p.m.  







CIP AD HOC COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Thursday, August 27, 2020 @6:00 PM 
Remote Meeting   


 


Call to Order: 
Hirsch called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  


Present:  
Greg Jensen, Brett Schumacher, Phil Caravello, Lisa Reeves, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Tom Majewski and 
Mayor Tim Swadley 


Absent and Excused:  
None 


Others Present:  
Director Friedl, Director Hebert, Director Glynn, Director Scheel 


Approve minutes from August 13, 2020 CIP Budget Committee Meeting 


Motion to approve the August 13, 2020 meeting minutes by Jenson, second by Reeves. Motion carried 
7-0.  


Review and Approve 2021-2025 Capital Improvement Plan Proposals 


Finance Director Friedl gave an overview of the CIP.  


Director Hebert and Director Scheel presented the 2021-2025 Publics Works/Storm Water CIP request. 


Director Scheel presented the 2021-2025 Planning and Buildings CIP request. 


Director Glynn presented the 2021-2025 Recreation Department CIP request. 


Adjournment:  
Motion by Jenson, second by Schumacher to adjourn at 7:50 p.m.  







CIP AD HOC COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Thursday, September 24, 2020 @6:00 PM 
Remote Meeting   


Call to Order: 
Hirsch called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 


Present:  
Brett Schumacher, Phil Caravello, Lisa Reeves, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, and Mayor Tim Swadley 


Absent and Excused:  
Greg Jensen and Tom Majewski 


Others Present:  
Director Friedl, Director Scheel, Director Hebert, Director Glynn, Chief Ripp, Chief Leck, Director 
Montgomery, Alder Doom, Director Ramsey 


Approve minutes from August 27, 2020 CIP Budget Committee Meeting 


Motion to approve the August 27, 2020 meeting minutes by Schumacher, second by Reeves. Motion 
carried 6-0.  


Review and Approve 2021-2025 Capital Improvement Plan Proposals 


Finance Director Friedl gave an overview of the CIP Budget and the CIP Committee meetings to date. 


Motion by Hirsch to leave $60,000 in the 2021 CIP budget to explore alternative options to either repair 
or demolish the Jefferson Street Bridge, and move reconstruction to 2022 if grant funds or TIF increment 
becomes available. In addition, any expenditures to repair or demolish the existing bridge in 2021 will 
need to be approved by the Finance Department prior to proceeding, second by Reeves. Motion passed 
6-0.


Motion by Heili to remove gas masks from the CIP budget, second by Hirsch. Motion failed on a vote of 5 
to 1. 


Adjournment:  


Motion by Schumacher second by Heili to adjourn at 7:57 p.m. 


DRAFT MINUTES - HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED YET











 August 13th, 2020
 Fire
 Police
 IT/Media Services
 RDA


 August 27th, 2020
 Public Works
 Planning and Buildings
 Parks and Recreation


 September 24th, 2020  
 Finalize CIP


 October 27th, 2020 – City Council Approval



































 IT/Media Services
 Are we doing any remote broadcasting? If not would it make 


sense to wait on items related to remote broadcasting?


 Public Works
 If there are no games/tournaments should we postpone 


Racetrack Scoreboard replacement?
 At the current moment there is no indication that there will not be 


games next year
 This is a relatively small dollar item and because there is not 


indication games will not be played, we should prepare as though 
they will be


 PW will seek sponsorship, but believes this project should remain 
in the budget regardless of the outcome







 Public Works (cont.)
 Who is painting the barn? The cost for concession repairs 


and barn painting seems low.
 A quote was received in 2020 to scrape and spray the barn for 


$6,000 – Building is relatively easy to paint as there are no 
windows or other features


 This leaves $34,000 in the budget for concession repairs







 Fire – See attached memo for Department Head Response
 More specifics are needed on why loaner radios are not 


adequate to test them. If we buy 3 at $8,000 each and don't use 
them - Are we wasting $16,000?


 Concerns regarding radios when the time comes
 What do the Police use? 
 Does each office have his/her own?
 Can the Fire Dept. do the same?
 Is there economies of scale that can be achieved by working 


together with the Police Department or other communities to 
achieve some savings?


 Additional justification requested for the key secure boxes







 Fire (cont.)
 Concerns related to the $5,000 architectural study
 Could the study become obsolete if funds are not immediately 


available for the actual renovation?
 Is the data available supporting this is in fact needed?
 What is the proposed timeline for construction/when will this 


be needed?







  
Memorandum 
TO:   Jamin Friedle, Finance Director 


FROM:  Joshua Ripp, Fire Chief 


DATE:   September 17, 2020 


SUBJECT:  Response to CIP Committee Questions 


 


Good Day, below are my responses to the questions posed by the CIP Committee.  I will cover 
the questions in order, categorized by each item, as well as adding other info to help fill in the 
background. I’m also available to answer questions that may remain via email or phone, if 
necessary before the meeting.  


 


Radios 


Background: Radios provide the basis for our communications when responding to, and 
mitigating incidents. More importantly, they are the lifeline of our firefighters when they are in 
an IDLH environment (Immediately Dangerous to Life and Health).  This requires equipment 
that is designed for severe service, has special features for FD use (heat resistance, water 
resistance, large knobs/controls better manipulated by gloved hands).  


We make every effort that every Firefighter we have going into an IDLH environment has a 
radio on them. This is to ensure they have a lifeline available to call for help, even if they get 
separated from the rest of their crew. These situations allow the FF to call a MAYDAY and assist 
crews by helping determine their location in a smoky environment.  


Radio Quantities 


Presently, our radios are stored on the fire apparatus in chargers. They are spread out so that 
those donning air packs get them. We have 30 air packs, each requiring a portable radio 
“allotment”.  







We also have a portion of the radios assigned to Officers. There are 7 officers, bumping us up to 
37 radios, minimum. That puts us 5 short of just having a radio per person (assuming 42 
authorized FD staffing).   My proposal for a full 50, gives us spare radios for filling in when 
radios need repair, for use when incident officers/staff require more than one portable, as well 
as when mutual aid units assist us but don’t have the necessary radio programming to talk on 
channels we utilize. These are typically larger incidents, where mutual aid units are coming in 
from more than Dane and Rock Counties. The units don’t normally have our local channels 
(Stoughton FG, Stoughton PD, Dane County Channels, etc). Programming radios “on the fly” to 
add channels isn’t a quick thing, and it has some liabilities as well.  There is also not a cache of 
radios we can quickly access for an emergency, that have our channels programmed in.  


I realize that this sounds a lot like overkill. However, in my previous job, many issues could have 
been remedied by agencies having a few spare radios built in to their “fleet” so that they can 
hand them out when needed.  


Testing:  The radios will have about a 10 year lifespan. This is advertised by the manufacturers 
of the radios. This tool, being a firefighter’s lifeline, means the radio has to be durable, easily 
controlled by FF’s and perform as expected.  


I expect the test radios to be used by our FF’s in the same situations that we’d expect to use the 
ones we eventually purchase. This means they are exposed to dirt, heat, snow, drops, loud 
noises, etc. I want our testing to be across multiple firefighters, to last a number of months, and 
include day to day operations to get FF feedback. There is potential for the test radios to get 
dirty, damaged, etc. If we own them, any issues not covered under warranty would be covered 
by insurance. If we are using “test” radios, the vendor may require us to buy it from them, and 
I’m uncertain if insurance would cover it.  


The radios that are purchased would be repurposed for other uses within the City, or sold to 
other departments that utilize that model of radio. They wouldn’t be wasted, sitting around, 
gathering dust.  


Radios used by PD: The brand of radio used by STPD is one of the brands that I’m looking at. 
However, the radios used by PD don’t have a couple features I’m looking to have in our radios. 
One is a larger screen/knob configuration that allows better viewing and manipulation by 
gloved hands, as well as high visibility coloring. The other big feature is being able to handle 
multiple frequency types. This is again important as the state and other county’s make 
upgrades. This puts us in a position to be able to make adjustments with some programming, 
versus having to purchase additional equipment before the lifespan of these radios are up. We 
life in VHF for Dane County and area mutual aid, however, many other places are upgrading to 
800 mhz. Patching the two requires equipment that not many agencies have in place, and most 
times those local 800 mhz systems don’t have VHF coverage that allows patching the two. The 
ability to make the patch on scene doesn’t happen often, as most agencies don’t have that 







equipment (us included). I checking with Lt. Conlin, STPD officers are assigned their own radios 
as well.  


Purchase Timing/Cooperative Purchasing: My reason for aiming at 2022 for the purchase of 
our radios is to piggyback on a purchase being proposed in the City of Fitchburg. The proposal 
(yet to be finalized, as it’s in the budget process) is to replace the Fitchburg PD and Fitchburg FD 
portable radios in one purchase. In recent cooperative purchases, the Chief’s have seen a 
reduction of 8% from the “standard” group purchasing price (usually NASPO, National 
Association of State Procurement Officials). So for our proposed $340,000 purchase, we could 
see the price reduced to $312,800 (savings of $27,000). 


It’s entirely possible to split the purchase of radios for the FD, into 3 different purchases (10 
year 1, 20 the 2nd year, 20 the 3rd year). However, I can’t guarantee that we’d see the same 
discounts.  


However, just a note, we do have to keep an eye out and plan on mobile radio replacement. 
They aren’t as urgent, as they don’t see the same abuse as the portables.  


 


Key Secure Boxes:  


Historically, some businesses provided us with access keys so that we didn’t have to break 
locks, doors, windows, etc if we had an alarm or other call.  We only had keys on the primary 
engine, so if that truck was on another call (in the city or mutual aid), the other units didn’t 
have the necessary access.  


The next step was for SFD to implement the Knox Key System for access to commercial 
buildings (with possibility of residential if so desired). This allows us to store keys for that 
structure on scene in a heavy duty box that is keyed specifically for the City of Stoughton.  
Anyone with that “key” (one of the keys that are cut to the SFD lock combination) can open any 
of the Knox Boxes in the City of Stoughton. We only had keys on our primary engines, and they 
are in a box that is accessible to any FF’s that could access the station. They are also open to the 
public if no firefighter is able to stay with the truck. This is a security issue I’ve identified.  


The solution is the Key Secure Box. This locks the key in highly secure box that requires entry of 
a code to retrieve the key. There is no way to remove the Knox Key w/o entering the code. If 
someone tries to force the key out of the box, the key will be destroyed before it can be forced 
out.  


These boxes would be installed in our fire engines, command car and one at the fire station (for 
use by Mutual Aid units covering while we’re on a call). In addition to the requirements of a 
code to gain access to the key, they also provide an audit trail of when each key was removed, 
by whom, and when it was replaced. I can also quickly remove a code from the box when staff 
are removed from the department.  







 


 


Architect Expenditure 


The expenditure of an architect is to help us plan what we can and can’t do in the station in the 
short and long term. While I’m not anticipating this project in the short term (2-3 years), I’m 
looking to start planning for the next 5 to 10 years. We may find that building onto the station 
is prohibitive, and purchasing a house/property (as was done in Mt Horeb until recently) might 
be a more feasible plan. We’d need to figure out the necessary upgrades in that as well.  


One item of concern I have is that our response times are growing, due to the City of Stoughton 
growing. I don’t have hard data down yet (partly due to the street construction this year 
skewing data) but generally, from time of page to the first unit on scene, we are running 
between 9 and 11 minutes. The biggest components are response time TO the station (coming 
from work/home/etc.) and response time from the Station to the incident location.   


Reducing time from home to the station would mean room for staff to stay over on shift (even 
volunteer, like EMS does). The remainder of the department would still respond in, but that 
first unit would be out the door faster, and on scene.  


SFD staffing has been an issue. While we are actively recruiting (we started 4 new members this 
year) we still have some options that we can’t pursue due to lack of appropriate facilities. They 
are:   


Intern Program – These are students that live at the station while going to school at Madison 
College, traditionally for Fire and EMS.  This is a great tool to help bolster staffing of the 
department. We don’t have a place that we could house them at this point.  


Members from out of the area “pulling shifts” – We have had multiple applications for 
members that we couldn’t act on, due to them living outside the area. They had been 
interested in being a member, and coming into Stoughton to be on duty for specified periods of 
time. However, we don’t have facilities that are conducive to someone being around the station 
for long periods of time.  







 Police – See attached memo for Department Head 
Response
 The Committee requests documentation supporting the 


CIP requests - including, but not limited to:
 Equipment scores for vehicle requests
 Difference between FirstNet Phones and Portable Radios (how 


many of each and replacements vs new technology)?
 How many tasers does the department currently have, how 


many are being requested and what are the useful lives?
 Justification for another electric bike based on past use
 Justification for additional gas masks (how many does the 


department currently have, how many being requested, etc.)?
 Justification for the automated license plate reader (2022)







 Planning
 The Committee would like to know the Chamber's plans to 


stay in this building and if rent will be charged going 
forward
 City staff is not aware of any current plans to relocate
 There is currently no plan to backfill this space for City use if 


the Chamber does relocate
 Art Sculpture
 Is there an existing agreement?
 A maintenance agreement for this could not be located


 Is there potential to request local grant funding?
 Generally not available for maintenance work like this


 Have we approached Cummins in terms of maintaining this 
sculpture (financial or in-kind)?
 City staff has not reached out to Cummins



























 The table below represents the forecasted available 
fund balance for the Equipment Replacement Fund for 
2021-2025







 The table below represents the forecasted available 
fund balance for the Building Maintenance Fund for 
2021-2025
 It should be noted this includes planned expenditures 


related to the Power House totaling $115,000







 Struggling TIF Districts are impacting the current 
borrowing potential of the City


 Significant borrowing in 2017, 2018 and 2019 are impacting 
the current borrowing potential of the City


 The ongoing pandemic causes significant challenges in 
attempting to forecast the impact on property values in the 
near term


 The recommended reduction to the 2021 borrowing is 
approximately $370,000. This is simply a recommendation 
to drive the CIP Budget Committee conversations and will 
depend heavily on the outcome of the Build Grant.


 Due to the number of unknown situations we are asking 
that you focus mainly on the 2021 CIP while not losing sight 
of 2022-2025 as well. The results of the Build Grant, Lead 
Service Grant, COVID-19, potential TIF development, etc. 
will all play a part in how we approach the 2022-2025 CIP 
budgets. 







 The City is anticipating a cash inflow from the closure of 
TIF No. 3 of approximately $130,000 in 2021. The 
Council will need to determine how to best utilize these 
funds.


 $138,000 in grants relating to the RDA bridge are 
currently pending


 For your reference, the following slides include a listing 
of major projects in 2021 – 2025.



























Page 1


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt ENGINEERING TECH POSITION 80,000$ 84,000$ 88,200$ 92,610$ 97,241$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt Preventative Maintenance 180,000$ 180,000$ 180,000$ 180,000$ 180,000$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt PROJECT ENGINEERING 69,158$ 154,123$ 94,013$ 347,213$ 197,439$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt Sidewalk Program 5,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt NYGAARD PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 135,390$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt SKINNER LANE PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 53,201$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt ROBY SUMP PUMP AND SIDEWALK 28,300$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt RUTLAND DUNN TOWN LINE RD 4,620$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 469,270$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt KINGS LYNN PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 131,141$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt HARRISON - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt JEFFERSON ST. BRIDGE DECK 483,600$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt JOHNSON - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt LINCOLN AVE PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 114,072$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt MILWAUKEE ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 370,378$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt MONROE ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt ROBY RD WEST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 416,289$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt ROY ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt USH 51 ROUNDABOUTS -$ 132,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt BICKLEY CT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 58,439$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 547,834$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 108,527$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION/RECONSTRUCT -$ -$ -$ -$ 285,063$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt HARDING/GRANT - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt HILLCREST & HOLTON PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 127,757$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt ROWE ST/BEN WAITE CIR RECONSTRUCTION -$ 165,294$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt TRUMAN RD PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 56,103$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt W SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt WILSON ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 89,498$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 132,163$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt MADISON ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 185,113$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt MAIN/PAGE CT -$ -$ 11,000$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt MCKINLEY ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 87,155$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt PRAIRIE ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 156,863$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt SILVERADO DR - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 77,339$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt TAFT ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 114,148$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt TAFT ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 129,673$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 284,776$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt CHICAGO - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 429,462$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt DEVONSHIRE - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ 286,991$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 185,397$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt PAGE STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 290,535$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt RACETRACK PARK - NORTH LOT AND ROAD -$ -$ -$ 230,940$ -$ 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (DRAFT)







Page 2


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (DRAFT)


400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 913,395$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt RANDOLPH RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 194,459$ 
400-Capital Projects General Obligation Debt MOLINE PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ 106,238$ 


TOTAL 1,569,630$ 2,068,003$ 1,305,667$ 3,291,319$ 1,766,801$ 


400-Capital Projects Special Assessments Sidewalk Program 5,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 50,000$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments NYGAARD PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 24,538$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments SKINNER LANE PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 3,754$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments ROBY SUMP PUMP AND SIDEWALK 30,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 66,375$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments KINGS LYNN PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 16,450$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments HARRISON - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments JOHNSON - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments LINCOLN AVE PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 18,365$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MILWAUKEE ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 61,107$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MONROE ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments ROBY RD WEST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 52,775$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments ROY ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments BICKLEY CT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 4,892$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 129,939$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments FIFTH STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 15,613$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION/RECONSTRUCT -$ -$ -$ -$ 61,905$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments HARDING/GRANT - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments HILLCREST & HOLTON PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 13,082$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments ROWE ST/BEN WAITE CIR RECONSTRUCTION -$ 27,300$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments TRUMAN RD PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 5,688$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments W SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments WILSON ST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 15,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments JACKSON ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 16,013$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MADISON ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 58,126$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MCKINLEY ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 15,203$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments PRAIRIE ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 26,317$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments SILVERADO DR - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 11,388$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments TAFT ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 30,753$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments TAFT ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ 26,123$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 56,679$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments CHICAGO - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 86,386$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments DEVONSHIRE - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ 46,881$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 27,849$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments PAGE STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 48,490$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 18,619$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments RANDOLPH RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 38,950$ 
400-Capital Projects Special Assessments MOLINE PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ 34,320$ 


TOTAL  $           134,432  $      259,894  $       233,923  $      334,904  $        330,727 







Page 3


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (DRAFT)


400-Capital Projects Other-Grants ROBY RD WEST PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT 27,316$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Other-Grants RUTLAND DUNN TOWN LINE RD 41,580$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL  $             68,896  $                -    $                 -    $                -    $                   -   


400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund PROJECT ENGINEERING 13,250$ 60,090$ 4,575$ 29,717$ 45,264$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund ROBY SUMP PUMP AND SIDEWALK 42,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund BREWER CT/HYLAND 82,500$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund ACADEMY ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ 245,300$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund KINGS LYNN PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 89,540$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund BICKLEY CT PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 70,180$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund EAST SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ 237,609$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund FOURTH ST - PULVERIZATION/RECONSTRUCT -$ -$ -$ -$ 94,325$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund HARDING/GRANT - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund HILLCREST & HOLTON PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT -$ 17,050$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund ROWE ST/BEN WAITE CIR RECONSTRUCTION -$ 18,590$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund W SOUTH ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund WILSON ST - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund MADISON ST - PULVERIZATION -$ -$ 33,550$ -$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund BERRY STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 14,781$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund GILES STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 14,643$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund PAGE STREET - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 100,051$ -$ 
400-Capital Projects Storm Water Fund RACETRACK ROAD - RECONSTRUCTION -$ -$ -$ 96,335$ -$ 


TOTAL 137,750$ 500,750$ 38,125$ 255,527$ 377,198$ 


Administration General Fund Outlay Badger Book (Poll Books and Servers) 31,500$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Administration Equipment Replacement Rear Accessible Van 10,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 41,500$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


EMS Building Maintenance EMS - Rooftop Unit #4 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 







Page 4


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (DRAFT)


Fire Building Maintenance Garage Door Opener Controller Changeout 2,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL 2,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Fire Equipment Replacement Personal Protective Equipment 37,603$ 16,000$ 42,900$ 16,000$ 40,000$ 
Fire Equipment Replacement Car 2 support vehicle replacement -$ 44,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire Equipment Replacement Tire Replacement 6,120$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire Equipment Replacement Portable Radios 25,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 68,723$ 60,000$ 42,900$ 16,000$ 40,000$ 


Fire Other-Grants Personal Protective Equipment 5,298$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL 5,298$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Fire General Fund Outlay MDC Installation, 2 vehicles 11,940$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay Breathing Air Compressor & Storage Tanks  55,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay Portable Radios -$ 340,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay Mobile Radios -$ -$ 70,000$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay 72 SCBA bottle only replacement -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay Knox Key Secure 4,398$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay Architect Services, 2nd floor costing of FD 5,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay SCBA Hydro test -$ 4,500$ -$ -$ -$ 
Fire General Fund Outlay Tire Replacement STE-2 -$ 6,000$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 76,338$ 350,500$ 70,000$ -$ -$ 


Fire General Obligation Debt Ladder #4 Replacement -$ -$ -$ 1,500,000$ -$ 
TOTAL -$ -$ -$ 1,500,000$ -$ 


IT/Media Services Equipment Replacement Camera Replacement 22,500$ -$ -$ 15,000$ -$ 
IT/Media Services Equipment Replacement Van Tricaster to WIN10 22,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
IT/Media Services Equipment Replacement Tripod Replacement (2008) 5,200$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
IT/Media Services Equipment Replacement DVR Replacement 14,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
IT/Media Services Equipment Replacement Production Van Replacement (2006) -$ 60,000$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 63,700$ 60,000$ -$ 15,000$ -$ 


IT/Media Services General Fund Outlay Computer Replacement 10,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 
IT/Media Services General Fund Outlay Upgrade EMS Cameras to HD -$ -$ -$ 50,000$ -$ 


TOTAL 10,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 80,000$ 30,000$ 


IT/Media Services Technology Fund Network upgrades 25,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL 25,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ -$ -$ 







Page 5


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (DRAFT)


Library Building Maintenance Tuckpointing 5,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Library Building Maintenance Fire Alarm - Replace Notifier Panel 5,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 10,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Library General Fund Outlay Computers & peripherals 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 
TOTAL 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 


Parks General Fund Outlay Racetrack Scoreboards 11,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Trash Receptacles 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Picnic Table Replacement -$ -$ -$ -$ 12,000$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay ADA Pathways 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 30,000$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Bjoin Shelter Roof -$ -$ -$ -$ 10,000$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Dunkirk Playground Replacement -$ -$ -$ -$ 80,000$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Sunshade Cover for Troll Beach -$ -$ -$ -$ 3,500$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Eastside Park Courty Overlay -$ -$ -$ -$ 20,000$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Hollywood Kwik Release Bases (7 sets) 3,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Racetrack Shelter Roof/Siding 40,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay ADA Pathways East Park -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Eastside Park Restroom Update/Partitions 25,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Schefelker Basketball Half Court -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Schefelker Playground Replacement -$ 75,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Schefelker Walk Trail Overlay/Lights -$ 15,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Dugouts at Racetrack Park -$ 80,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Norse Park Playground -$ -$ 175,000$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Pump Track Mel Bakke Park -$ -$ 75,000$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Skate Park update -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Trail Paving -$ -$ -$ 25,000$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Racetrack Dug outs (concrete/roof) -$ -$ -$ 30,000$ -$ 
Parks General Fund Outlay Racetrack Playground -$ -$ -$ 150,000$ -$ 


TOTAL 114,000$ 225,000$ 305,000$ 240,000$ 160,500$ 


Parks General Obligation Debt Racetrack Park Concession/Restroom Building ADA Modifications -$ 10,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Obligation Debt Dunkirk Park Basketball Court Replacement -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Obligation Debt Criddle Park Basketball Court Replacement & ADA Routes -$ -$ 23,000$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Obligation Debt Racetrack Park Parking Lots & ADA Routes Design & Engineering -$ -$ 100,000$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Obligation Debt Virgin Lake Park Shelter ADA Modifications -$ -$ 30,000$ -$ -$ 
Parks General Obligation Debt Racetrack Park Parking Lots & ADA Routes -$ -$ -$ 700,000$ -$ 
Parks General Obligation Debt Norse Park Shelter Design & Engineering -$ -$ -$ -$ 70,000$ 


TOTAL -$ 30,000$ 153,000$ 700,000$ 70,000$ 


Planning Building Maintenance City Hall - Drive Thru Area 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance City Hall - Electric Service -$ -$ 40,000$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Opera House - Window Assessment -$ -$ 17,000$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance City Hall - Boiler Replacement 35,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Opera House - 2 Fan Coil Replacments - East FCU & Dressing Room Unit -$ -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Opera House - Front Doors -$ -$ -$ 5,000$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Opera House - Stage Refinishing -$ -$ -$ -$ 25,000$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Depot - Exterior Wood Replacement & Paint 35,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Planning Building Maintenance Depot - Carport Roof Replacement 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 110,000$ -$ 57,000$ 25,000$ 25,000$ 







Page 6


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (DRAFT)


Planning General Fund Outlay Opera House - Tuck Pointing 40,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Planning General Fund Outlay Art Scuplture - USH 51/138 at Cummins 15,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Planning General Fund Outlay City Hall - Roof Replacement -$ -$ -$ 100,000$ -$ 
Planning General Fund Outlay Opera House - Window Replacement -$ -$ -$ -$ 150,000$ 


TOTAL 55,000$ -$ -$ 100,000$ 150,000$ 


Police Building Maintenance PSB - Replace RTU #4 - Carrier Rooftop unit 30,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Building Maintenance PSB - Generator 5 Year Preventative Maintenance 5,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Building Maintenance PSB - Parking Lot Patch and Seal Coat 5,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Building Maintenance PSB - Window Replacement -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Building Maintenance PSB-Replace RTU#2 Carrier rooftop unit -$ 30,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Building Maintenance PSB - Replace Trane Fan Coil Unit #5 - Council Chambers -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 40,000$ 50,000$ 20,000$ -$ -$ 


Police Equipment Replacement Squad #276 -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #271 -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #273 42,000$ -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #281 -$ -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #277 35,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #272 -$ 44,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #278 -$ -$ -$ -$ 35,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #274 -$ 44,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #283  K-9 -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Body Camera Replacement 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 5,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Electric Police Bikes 6,000$ -$ -$ -$ 6,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Radar Replacements x 2 4,000$ 4,000$ -$ 4,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Radio System Base Unit Replacement 6,000$ -$ -$ 12,000$ -$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad Car Video/Laptop Replace 3,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 6,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Taser Replacement 4,800$ -$ 5,000$ -$ 5,000$ 
Police Equipment Replacement Squad #270 -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 105,800$ 103,000$ 106,000$ 117,000$ 147,000$ 


Police General Fund Outlay Community Camera Interface     5,000$ 5,000$ -$ -$ 5,000$ 
Police General Fund Outlay FirstNet Phones 7,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police General Fund Outlay Police Garage -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police General Fund Outlay Police Gas Masks 10,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police General Fund Outlay Digital Forensic computer hardware    5,000$ 10,000$ 5,000$ 8,000$ -$ 
Police General Fund Outlay Automated License Plate Reader  -$ 25,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police General Fund Outlay Radio Programming -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Police General Fund Outlay Portable Radios 28,000$ 28,000$ 16,000$ 16,000$ 16,000$ 
Police General Fund Outlay CAD Interface Router to County 6,000$ -$ -$ 6,000$ -$ 


TOTAL 61,000$ 68,000$ 21,000$ 30,000$ 21,000$ 







Page 7


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (DRAFT)


Recreation General Fund Outlay Bike Rack Initiative 4,613$ 3,150$ 3,225$ 3,300$ -$ 
Recreation General Fund Outlay Parks & Open Space Plan -$ -$ 22,000$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 4,613$ 3,150$ 25,225$ 3,300$ -$ 


Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII Dam Removal - Engineering 26,648$ 24,225$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII T, U, P Design (RDA to Water St) 89,976$ 53,579$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII WW Park - Engineering 66,283$ 60,258$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Nordic Ridge Inclusive Playground 122,807$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Nordic Ridge Multiuse Court -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Racetrack Park Master Plan 30,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII River Restoration 100,000$ 112,500$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII Dam Removal - Construction -$ 84,500$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII T, U, P (RDA to Water St) -$ 538,007$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PII WW Park Construction -$ 506,165$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Settler's Point Trail Gravel Parking Lot -$ -$ 42,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Settler's Point Trail Network -$ -$ 52,250$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Yahara Trail-Hospital to Cooper's (IKI) -$ -$ 87,500$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PIII Market Demand Analysis -$ -$ 34,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Schefelker Park - Shelter/Restroom Building -$ -$ 134,375$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Veterans Park - Shelter/Restroom Building -$ -$ 134,375$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Yahara Trail Paving-Viking Park to Hospital -$ -$ 88,117$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Amundson Park - Trail Exercise Stations -$ -$ -$ 16,500$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility Design -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Yahara Trail Paving-Bus Park to Ped Bridge -$ -$ -$ 122,681$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PIII Mandt Park Updates -$ -$ -$ -$ 397,000$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility -$ -$ -$ -$ 300,000$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Rotary Park - Restrooms and Accessible Pathways 71,717$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Bjoin Park Prairie 18,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation General Obligation Debt Lowell Park - Mountain Bike Trails -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 525,431$ 1,399,234$ 572,617$ 184,181$ 697,000$ 


Recreation Other-Grants RD PII River Restoration -$ 212,500$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PII Dam Removal - Construction -$ 400,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PII T, U, P (RDA to Water St) -$ 740,498$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PII WW Park Construction -$ 698,989$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Settler's Point Trail Gravel Parking Lot -$ -$ 42,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Settler's Point Trail Network -$ -$ 52,250$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Yahara Trail-Hospital to Cooper's (IKI) -$ -$ 87,500$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Yahara Trail Paving-Viking Park to Hospital -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Nordic Ridge Inclusive Playground 11,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility Design -$ -$ -$ 45,000$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Yahara Trail Paving-Bus Park to Ped Bridge -$ -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PIII Mandt Park Updates -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Recreation Other-Grants RD PIII Yahara Riverfront Rental Facility -$ -$ -$ -$ 300,000$ 
Recreation Other-Grants Yahara Trail-Hospital to Cooper's (Pr. Prop) -$ -$ 87,500$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 11,000$ 2,051,987$ 289,250$ 65,000$ 300,000$ 


Redevelopment Authority General Obligation Debt Riverbank Restoration 119,540$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Redevelopment Authority General Obligation Debt Riverfront Trail and Amenities 139,369$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Redevelopment Authority General Obligation Debt Lift Station -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 258,909$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 







Page 8


Department Funding Source Project Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


CITY OF STOUGHTON 2021 - 2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (DRAFT)


Recreation Intergovernmental Nordic Ridge Inclusive Playground 18,543$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
TOTAL 18,543$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Redevelopment Authority Other-Grants Pedestrian Bridge Construction 475,103$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Redevelopment Authority Other-Grants Riverbank Restoration 92,060$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Redevelopment Authority Other-Grants Riverfront Trail and Amenities 103,010$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 670,173$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Senior Center Building Maintenance Senior Center - Replace Windows -$ -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ 
Senior Center Building Maintenance Sr Ctr-Lower Lot & concrete spillway resurfacing -$ -$ -$ 40,000$ -$ 
Senior Center Building Maintenance Fire Panel Replacement including detectors 20,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Senior Center Building Maintenance Sr Ctr Annex-Replace 4 Fan Coil & condensing units 7,500$ 22,500$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 27,500$ 22,500$ -$ 60,000$ -$ 


Senior Center General Fund Outlay Sr Ctr - Annex Roof Repair - Cedar Shake 65,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Senior Center General Fund Outlay Replace Both Boilers and 4 new circulation pumps 70,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 135,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


Streets Equipment Replacement #13 Chevy K3500 -$ 36,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #32 Scagg -$ -$ 6,500$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #11 Dump Truck One-Ton (Chevy 3500) -$ -$ 40,000$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement Bunker Trailer -$ -$ -$ -$ 1,300$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #30 Wacker Road Roller -$ -$ 20,000$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #47 Pickup Truck (Chevy) 33,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement F250 Truck w/ Lift Gate-Add'n to Fleet -$ -$ 48,000$ -$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #43 Rhino Ditch Mower -$ -$ -$ 10,500$ -$ 
Streets Equipment Replacement #59 Smithco Diamond Groomer -$ -$ -$ 18,000$ -$ 


TOTAL 33,000$ 36,000$ 114,500$ 28,500$ 1,300$ 


Streets General Obligation Debt #27 Toro 5900 95,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #23 Backhoe (John Deere) 119,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #38 Morbark Wood Chipper -$ 58,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #7 Patrol Truck (Chevy) -$ 193,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #33 Bucket Truck - International 4300 -$ -$ 140,000$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt Tool Cat 5600 -$ -$ -$ 65,000$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt International Patrol Truck #14 -$ -$ -$ -$ 205,000$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt Toro Wing Mower #73 -$ -$ -$ -$ 65,000$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #40 Skid Steer S630 (Bobcat) -$ 54,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #8 Dump Truck - One-ton GMC -$ -$ 44,000$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt Toro GM7200 w/polar track -$ 33,000$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets General Obligation Debt #20 Grader (John Deere 570A) -$ -$ -$ 115,000$ -$ 


TOTAL 214,000$ 338,000$ 184,000$ 180,000$ 270,000$ 


Streets Storm Water Fund #41 Leaf Vacuum Unit -$ -$ -$ -$ 180,000$ 
Streets Storm Water Fund Rear Mount Boom Cutter 35,000$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Storm Water Fund Case IH Tractor #26 -$ -$ -$ -$ 58,000$ 
Streets Storm Water Fund Street Sweeper #12 -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 
Streets Storm Water Fund #42 Leaf Vacuum Unit -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 


TOTAL 35,000$ -$ -$ -$ 238,000$ 


TOTAL 4,658,235$        7,687,018$    3,599,207$    7,231,731$    4,630,526$      





		09a-R--2020 Approving the 2021-2025 CIP

		09b-R--2020 Approving the 2021-2025 CIP






 
City of Stoughton, 207 South Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2021 budget 


and five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Committee of the Whole and Common 


Council approval 7-0 


Committee of the Whole recommended Common Council approval 12-0 


 
Fiscal Impact: Revenue Neutral 


 
File Number: 


 
R-168-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 10, 2020 


WHEREAS, in early 2020, City of Stoughton and Stoughton Utilities staff, along with their engineering 


and financial consultants, initiated the development of the proposed 2021 Stoughton Utilities Budget and 


five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Program, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved and recommended the approval of the proposed 


2021 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan to the Common 


Council on October 19, 2020, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Committee of the Whole reviewed the proposed 2021 Stoughton Utilities 


Budget and five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan during their budget workshop on October 


22, 2020, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Committee of the Whole approved, and recommended the approval of the 


proposed 2021 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan to the 


Common Council on October 29, 2020, now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 


approve and adopt the 2021 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement 


Plan.    


Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Timothy Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 19, 2020 – 5:30 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI  
Page No.  2 


Business:  


1. Wastewater 2019 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) 


2. Naming the Stoughton Utilities Director and/or the Stoughton Director of Finance/Comptroller as 
Authorized Representatives to File Applications for Financial Assistance from the State of Wisconsin 
Environmental Improvement Fund 


Discussion followed. 


Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2021 Budget and Five Year (2021 – 2025) Capital Improvement Projects 


(CIP) Plan:  Stoughton Utilities and City staff presented and discussed the proposed 2021 Stoughton Utilities 


budget.  Discussion followed.  Stoughton Utilities and City staff presented and discussed the proposed 2021 


five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Hirsch, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2021 budget and the 


Stoughton Utilities 2021 five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan and recommend 


approval to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 


Ordinance to Amend Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and Create Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City 


of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Relating to the Placement of Water Metering Facilities and the 


Replacement of Inaccessible Metering Facilities:   Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a draft 


ordinance that would require the standardization of existing water metering plumbing arrangements that would 


not meet current plumbing codes.  This ordinance is being proposed in preparation for our upcoming lead service 


line replacement program.  Inaccessible metering locations not only pose accessibility concerns when servicing 


the meter, but can also pose potential dangers to servicing technicians.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve amending Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and 


creating Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the placement 


of water metering facilities and the replacement of inaccessible metering facilities, and recommend approval of 


the adopting ordinance to the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 


Ordinance to Amend Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and Create Sections 74-2 (g) through (h) of the City of 


Stoughton Code of Ordinances, Relating to the Replacement of Indirect Service Lateral Connections:   


Stoughton Utilities staff presented and discussed a draft ordinance that would require privately-owned service 


connection lines be connected directly to the public system, and where any indirect service connections are 


discovered, provides a method to require such indirect connections be relocated  to directly connect to the public 


system.  This ordinance is intended to address scenarios where a home or building on one parcel has a water 


or sanitary sewer service line that connects to service line that provides service to a home or building on a 


neighboring parcel.  Utilities staff is aware of several locations where such connections exist, and examples of 


the issues that can arise from such indirect connections were given.  Discussion followed.   


Motion by Heili, the motion seconded by Jenson, to approve amending Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and Create 


Sections 74-2 (g) through (h) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the replacement of indirect 


service lateral connections, and recommend approval of the adopting ordinance to the Stoughton Common 


Council.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 



bhoops

Highlight







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 
Date:  October 13, 2020 


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Jamin Friedl, CPA 


  City of Stoughton Finance Director 


 


Jill M. Weiss, P.E.  


Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2021 Budget and Five Year (2021 – 2025) Capital 


Improvement Projects (CIP) Plan. 


 


We have completed efforts utilizing system plans, projections and engineering studies, and 2020 financial 


forecasts to develop our Proposed 2021 Budget and Five-Year CIP Plan.  The following items are meant 


to illustrate changes in the financial summary from prior periods: 


• At this point in time, we incorporated significant increases to the Utilities wages in anticipation 


of implementing a staffing and realignment strategy in 2021.  


• The following inflationary amounts were used where appropriate: 


o Electric O&M – 2.50% 


o Electric PILOT – (0.25%) 


o Water O&M – 1.50% 


o Water PILOT – (0.25%) 


o Wastewater O&M – 1.25% 


• The proposed 2021 budget reflects a proposed 3% increase in water rates with an estimated 


implementation date of April 1, 2021. 


o The adjustment will result in an increase of approximately $.75 to the average water 


residential customer’s monthly bill assuming 3,000 gallons per month.  


• The proposed 2021 budget does not reflect any increases in wastewater rates. 


• The proposed 2021 budget does not reflect any increase in electric rates. 


• The Water Utility is anticipating the replacement of 700+ lead water services in 2021 at a 


potential cost to rate payers of $3.1 million. The scope of this project is still being determined 


and is considered fluid at this point in time. 


The Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2021 Budget and Five-Year CIP is provided for approval and 


recommendation to the City of Stoughton Common Council.    It will be presented at the October 22, 2020 


Common Council workshop, and is scheduled for Common Council adoption on November 10, 2020. 







FOR THE FISCAL YEAR


JANUARY 1, 2021  THROUGH


DECEMBER 31, 2021


Jamin Friedl, CPA


STOUGHTON UTILITIES
Proposed Annual Budget for the Year


2021







Stoughton Utilities 


2021 Proposed Budget Summary
accounting shared/budget/


Electric Water Wastewater Total


OPERATING REVENUES 15,010,489$      2,387,987$       2,211,053$        19,609,529$      


OPERATING EXPENSES


  Operation & Maintenance Expense 13,096,048$      1,091,845$       1,130,546$        15,318,439$      


  Taxes (PILOT) 476,318$           459,813$          -$                       936,131$           


  Depreciation 1,114,995$        415,216$          899,166$           2,429,377$        


    Total Operating Expenses 14,687,361$      1,966,874$       2,029,712$        18,683,947$      


    OPERATING INCOME 323,128$           421,113$          181,341$           925,582$           


    RATE OF RETURN (ROR) 2.00% 3.27%







STOUGHTON ELECTRIC UTILITY 10/14/2020 13:30


OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 


FORECASTED FOR THE YEAR 2021


OPERATING REVENUES Proposed % Change Estimated Actual Actual Actual


  Sales 2021 2021/2020 2020 2019 2018 2017


   Residential 7,438,154$          2.6% 7,246,853$        7,292,072$       7,661,302$       7,579,894$     


   General Service 1,893,699$          3.1% 1,835,947$        1,857,094$       1,836,320$       1,881,879$     


   Small Power  CP1 Customers 1,624,747$          3.5% 1,569,705$        1,581,750$       1,650,121$       1,628,053$     


   Large Power  CP2 Customers 1,006,092$          3.5% 972,102$           963,312$          1,072,894$       1,122,227$     


   Industrial Power CP3 Customers 2,771,486$          3.9% 2,666,579$        2,668,331$       2,661,544$       2,770,652$     


   Street Lighting 131,311$             10.8% 118,521$           106,614$          113,848$          123,881$        


            Total Sales 14,865,489$        3.2% 14,409,707$      14,469,173$     14,996,029$     15,106,586$   


  Other Operating Revenues


    Forfeited Discounts (Penalties, NSF, Reconnect) 31,481$               3.2% 30,516$             30,642$            32,444$            32,924$          


    Other (Permits, ATC Common Facilities, etc.) 113,519$             -0.8% 114,484$           124,757$          107,557$          110,113$        


             Total Other Operating Revenues 145,000$             145,000$           155,399$          140,001$          143,037$        


                  Total Operating Revenues 15,010,489$        14,554,707$      14,624,572$     15,136,030$     15,249,623$   


OPERATING EXPENSES


  Power Production Expenses (WPPI-Wholesale Power) 10,918,595$        2.6% 10,640,043$      10,832,755$     11,288,599$     11,501,767$   


  Transmission/Distribution (Substations, Poles, Lines, etc.) 764,110$             14.6% 666,480$           720,214$          614,409$          637,495$        


  Customer Accounting and Collection 304,380$             3.0% 295,500$           284,840$          274,725$          259,425$        


  Administrative and General  (Salaries, Benefits, Insurance) 909,689$             11.9% 813,087$           834,880$          861,890$          789,731$        


  2021 Add'l Pay Adjustments/Strategic Planning 199,274$             


  Depreciation 1,114,995$          4.0% 1,072,558$        1,044,044$       964,067$          881,530$        


  PILOT 476,318$             3.9% 458,258$           452,940$          432,589$          394,626$        


            Total Operating Expenses 14,687,361$        13,945,926$      14,169,673$     14,436,279$     14,464,574$   


                   REGULATORY OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 323,128$             608,781$           454,899$          699,751$          785,049$        


                    ROR 2.00% 3.81% 2.87% 4.99% 6.46%







O&M


$ Change from 


Prior Year


% Change from 


Prior Year


2008 1,340,925$       


2009 1,361,451$       20,526$            1.53%


2010 1,372,746$       11,295$            0.83%


2011 1,399,875$       27,129$            1.98%


2012 1,279,340$       (120,535)$         -8.61%


2013 1,429,003$       149,663$          11.70%


2014 1,478,092$       49,089$            3.44%


2015 1,441,526$       (36,566)$           -2.47%


2016 1,513,462$       71,936$            4.99%


2017 1,513,434$       (28)$                  0.00%


2018 1,574,655$       61,221$            4.05%


2019 1,668,241$       93,586$            5.94%


2020 1,599,940$       (68,301)$           -4.09% Decrease due to $104,000 in 2019 tree trimming


2021 1,998,824$       398,884$          24.93%
$175K Tree Trimming; Admin Building Blacktop; 


$169K in add'l wage increases/strategic planning


2022 1,596,508$       (402,316)$         -20.13%


2023 1,644,218$       47,710$            2.99%


2024 1,864,708$       220,490$          13.41% $175K Tree Trimming


2025 1,779,951$       (84,757)$           -4.55% $29,900 Substation Maint.; $24,600 System Study


Annual inflation over last five years 1.17% Not including 2019 tree trimming costs


Annual inflation over last ten years 1.49% Not including 2019 tree trimming costs


Estimated annual inflation from 2019 to 2024 2.15% Not including 2019 tree trimming costs


 Capital 


Expenditures  PILOT 


2015 521,946$          2015 370,260$         


2016 822,127$          2016 376,785$         


2017 2,924,828$       2017 394,626$         


2018 2,455,183$       2018 432,589$         


2019 1,086,868$       2019 452,940$         


2020 1,290,241$       2020 458,258$         


2021 1,430,876$       2021 476,318$         


2022 1,506,386$       2022 496,021$         


2023 1,348,654$       2023 513,417$         


2024 1,617,018$       2024 532,370$         


2025 951,289$          2025 553,750$         


ELECTRIC
A


C
T


U
A


L
F


O
R


E
C


A
S


T
E


D
A


C
T


U
A


L


A
C


T
U


A
L


F
O


R
E


C
A


S
T


E
D


F
O


R
E


C
A


S
T


E
D


 $1,200,000


 $1,450,000


 $1,700,000


 $1,950,000


 $2,200,000


2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


 $-


 $500,000


 $1,000,000


 $1,500,000


 $2,000,000


 $2,500,000


 $3,000,000


 $3,500,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


 $300,000


 $350,000


 $400,000


 $450,000


 $500,000


 $550,000


 $600,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025







 Sales in kWh  Sales in $ 


2015 137,577,981     2015 14,906,357$    


2016 140,856,210     2016 14,980,937$    


2017 139,053,623     2017 15,106,586$    


2018 144,838,065     2018 14,996,029$    


2019 143,198,603     2019 14,469,173$    


2020 139,924,041     2020 14,409,707$    


2021 139,881,136     2021 14,865,489$    


2022 140,273,761     2022 14,809,298$    


2023 140,689,039     2023 14,908,725$    


2024 141,495,051     2024 15,607,347$    


2025 141,507,321     2025 15,768,179$    


Through 9/30/20 -3.11%


 Avg Plant Bal. Dep Exp.


Composite Dep. 


Rate


Cash Flow 


(Sales - PP)


2015 24,018,074$     848,328$          3.53% 2015 3,249,685$      


2016 24,611,779$     869,843$          3.53% 2016 3,392,798$      


2017 25,356,009$     881,531$          3.48% 2017 3,604,819$      


2018 27,556,378$     963,967$          3.50% 2018 3,707,430$      


2019 29,652,774$     1,044,044$       3.52% 2019 3,636,418$      


2020 30,536,364$     1,072,558$       3.51% 2020 3,769,663$      


2021 31,744,573$     1,114,995$       3.51% 2021 3,946,894$      


2022 32,958,632$     1,157,637$       3.51% 2022 3,946,751$      


2023 34,157,265$     1,199,738$       3.51% 2023 3,968,354$      


2024 35,425,086$     1,244,269$       3.51% 2024 4,475,320$      


2025 36,438,434$     1,279,862$       3.51% 2025 4,478,508$      F
O


R
E


C
A


S
T


E
D


A
C


T
U


A
L


A
C


T
U


A
L


F
O


R
E


C
A


S
T


E
D


F
O


R
E


C
A


S
T


E
D


UTILITY FINANCED PLANT


A
C


T
U


A
L


 132,000,000


 134,000,000


 136,000,000


 138,000,000


 140,000,000


 142,000,000


 144,000,000


 146,000,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Sales in kWh


 $13,500,000


 $14,000,000


 $14,500,000


 $15,000,000


 $15,500,000


 $16,000,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Sales in $


 $2,500,000


 $3,000,000


 $3,500,000


 $4,000,000


 $4,500,000


 $5,000,000


2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Cash Flow (Sales - Purchased Power)


 $-


 $5,000,000


 $10,000,000


 $15,000,000


 $20,000,000


 $25,000,000


 $30,000,000


 $35,000,000


 $40,000,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Avg Plant Bal. 


 $-


 $200,000


 $400,000


 $600,000


 $800,000


 $1,000,000


 $1,200,000


 $1,400,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Dep Exp.







2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of electricity 14,980,937$    15,106,586$    14,996,029$    14,469,173$    14,409,707$    14,865,489$    14,809,298$    14,908,725$    15,607,347$    15,768,179$    


Other 135,267           143,037           140,001           155,399           145,000           145,000           145,000           145,000           145,000           145,000           


Total Operating Revenues 15,116,204$    15,249,623$    15,136,030$    14,624,572$    14,554,707$    15,010,489$    14,954,298$    15,053,725$    15,752,347$    15,913,179$    


-0.41% 3.16% -0.38% 0.67% 4.69% 1.03%


OPERATING EXPENSES


Purchased power 11,588,139$    11,501,767$    11,288,599$    10,832,755$    10,640,043$    10,918,595$    10,862,547$    10,940,371$    11,132,027$    11,289,671$    


Operation and maintenance 1,513,462        1,513,433        1,574,655        1,668,241        1,599,940        1,998,824        1,596,508        1,644,218        1,864,708        1,779,951        


Taxes 170,684           173,217           176,369           171,693           175,127           178,629           182,202           185,846           189,563           193,354           


Depreciation (Utility Financed) 869,843           881,531           964,067           1,044,044        1,072,558        1,114,995        1,157,637        1,199,738        1,244,269        1,279,862        


PILOT 376,785           394,626           432,589           452,940           458,258           476,318           496,021           513,417           532,370           553,750           


Total Operating Expenses 14,518,913$    14,464,574$    14,436,279$    14,169,673$    13,945,926$    14,687,361$    14,294,914$    14,483,590$    14,962,937$    15,096,588$    


-1.17% -3.95% -4.85% 5.53% -3.55% 1.01% 3.28% 0.56%


SALES TO PURCHASED POWER MARGIN - W/ INCREASE 29.28% 31.34% 32.84% 33.57% 35.43% 36.15% 36.33% 36.27% 40.20% 39.67%


REGULATORY OPERATING INCOME 597,291$         785,049$         699,751$         454,899$         608,781$         323,128$         659,384$         570,135$         789,410$         816,591$         


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE 12,074,572$    12,158,175$    14,014,445$    15,854,822$    15,963,429$    16,160,032$    16,422,167$    16,600,447$    16,778,881$    16,612,376$    


RATE OF RETURN (Allowed - 4.90%) 4.95% 6.46% 4.99% 2.87% 3.81% 2.00% 4.02% 3.43% 4.70% 4.92%


OPERATING CASH FLOWS 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Sales of Electricity 15,102,332$    15,265,754$    15,222,634$    14,697,605$    14,409,707$    14,865,489$    14,809,298$    14,908,725$    15,607,347$    15,768,179$    


Routine operating expenditures (13,076,112)     (13,114,417)     (12,961,804)     (12,496,691)     (12,239,983)     (12,917,419)     (12,459,055)     (12,584,589)     (12,996,735)     (13,069,622)     


Taxes (Including PILOT) (540,944)          (550,002)          (570,995)          (604,282)          (628,067)          (636,887)          (658,520)          (681,867)          (702,980)          (725,724)          


Miscellaneous income (21,213)            (12,698)            (27,975)            (27,902)            145,000           145,000           145,000           145,000           145,000           145,000           


Total Operating Cash Flows 1,464,063$      1,588,637$      1,661,860$      1,568,730$      1,686,656$      1,456,183$      1,836,723$      1,787,269$      2,052,632$      2,117,832$      


CAPITAL AND FINANCING CASH FLOWS


Acquisition of capital assets (822,127)$        (2,924,828)$     (2,455,183)$     (1,086,868)$     (1,290,241)$     (1,430,876)$     (1,506,386)$     (1,348,654)$     (1,617,018)$     (951,289)$        


Principal paid (2,231,474)       (610,000)          (610,000)          (620,000)          (660,000)          (670,000)          (685,000)          (690,000)          (110,000)          (115,000)          


Interest paid (112,620)          (166,122)          (122,707)          (110,153)          (96,513)            (82,813)            (68,438)            (53,856)            (45,450)            (43,200)            


Debt proceeds 4,005,000        -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   


Advance to municipality 49,500             50,490             51,499             52,529             53,580             54,652             55,745             56,860             48,988             6,109               


888,279$         (3,650,460)$     (3,136,391)$     (1,764,492)$     (1,993,174)$     (2,129,037)$     (2,204,079)$     (2,035,650)$     (1,723,480)$     (1,103,380)$     


INVESTING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOWS


Investment income 30,632$           339,760$         255,199$         962,166$         17,684$           16,762$           15,686$           14,842$           14,917$           16,611$           


Net Change in Cash 2,382,974$      (1,722,063)$     (1,219,332)$     766,404$         (288,834)$        (656,092)$        (351,670)$        (233,539)$        344,069$         1,031,063$      


ENDING CASH BALANCE 10,633,116$    8,651,335$      7,248,376$      7,211,414$      6,922,580$      6,266,488$      5,914,819$      5,681,280$      6,025,349$      7,056,412$      


UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE 7,460,355$      7,297,390$      6,131,838$      6,057,312$      5,911,881$      5,248,089$      4,896,306$      5,401,667$      5,742,536$      6,774,174$      


UNRESTRICTED MONTHS ON HAND 5.98                 5.80                 4.91                 5.02                 4.92                 4.24                 3.97                 4.35                 4.42                 5.16                 


RATE INCREASE NEEDED 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 3.25% 0.00%


DEBT ISSUE NEEDED -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 


ELECTRIC







ELECTRIC


DEBT COVERAGE 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Operating revenues 14,554,707$    15,010,489$    14,954,298$    15,053,725$    15,752,347$    15,913,179$    


PILOT (458,258)          (476,318)          (496,021)          (513,417)          (532,370)          (553,750)          


O & M expenses (12,415,110)     (13,096,048)     (12,641,257)     (12,770,435)     (13,186,298)     (13,262,976)     


Net defined earnings 1,681,338$      1,438,122$      1,817,021$      1,769,873$      2,033,679$      2,096,452$      


Highest annual debt service 753,438$         753,438$         743,856$         160,475$         160,475$         160,475$         


Coverage factor 1.30                 1.30                 1.30                 1.30                 1.30                 1.30                 


Minimum required earnings 979,469$         979,469$         967,013$         208,618$         208,618$         208,618$         


ACTUAL DEBT COVERAGE 2.23                 1.91                 2.44                 11.03               12.67               13.06               







STOUGHTON WATER UTILITY                      10/14/2020 13:30


OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES


FORECASTED FOR THE YEAR 2021


OPERATING REVENUES Proposed % Change Estimated Actual Actual Actual


  Sales 2021 2021/2020 2020 2019 2018 2017


    Residential 1,077,146$     3.0% 1,045,462$    1,048,932$      932,753$         899,423$         


    Multi-family Residential 113,894$        3.1% 110,448$       111,132$         83,239$           74,247$           


    Commercial 170,012$        3.1% 164,907$       165,042$         176,296$         170,380$         


    Industrial 326,601$        3.0% 316,965$       318,340$         283,369$         301,957$         


    Public Authority (City Buildings) 24,728$          3.0% 24,002$         25,510$           21,093$           19,310$           


    Private Fire Protection 57,264$          3.0% 55,596$         55,087$           46,711$           43,901$           


    Public Fire Protection 573,342$        3.2% 555,434$       551,749$         530,529$         520,495$         


        Total Sales 2,342,987$     2,272,814$    2,275,792$      2,073,990$      2,029,713$      


  Other Operating Revenues


    Forfeited Discounts (Penalties, NSF, Reconnect) 7,126$            3.1% 6,913$           6,922$             6,597$             6,420$             


    Other (Joint Metering Allocation, Permits) 37,874$          -0.6% 38,087$         33,803$           40,514$           35,096$           


        Total Other Operating Revenues 45,000$          45,000$         40,725$           47,111$           41,516$           


             Total Operating Revenues 2,387,987$     2,317,814$    2,316,517$      2,121,101$      2,071,229$      


OPERATING EXPENSES


    Source of Supply (Maintenance of Wells) 142$               1.4% 140$              133$                138$                138$                


    Pumping (Well Pumps and Fuel) 160,143$        14.7% 139,580$       154,056$         171,522$         196,642$         


    Water Treatment (Chemicals) 86,164$          1.5% 84,890$         88,293$           90,237$           73,359$           


    Transmission/Distribution (Mains,Towers,Services,Hydrants) 300,391$        5.0% 286,099$       271,429$         238,718$         270,140$         


    Customer Accounting and Collection 105,986$        1.5% 104,420$       105,765$         104,041$         108,268$         


    Administrative and General  (Salaries, Benefits, Insurance) 425,669$        0.3% 424,222$       413,163$         361,165$         366,310$         


    2021 Add'l Pay Adjustments/Strategic Planning 13,350$          


    Depreciation 415,216$        11.3% 373,142$       351,993$         330,652$         315,908$         


    PILOT 459,813$        3.2% 445,620$       431,034$         423,351$         420,305$         


      Total Operating Expenses 1,966,874$     1,858,113$    1,815,866$      1,719,824$      1,751,070$      


                   REGULATORY OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 421,113$        459,701$       500,651$         401,277$         320,159$         


                    ROR 3.27% 4.06% 4.65% 3.91% 3.23%







O&M


$ Change 


from Prior 


Year


% Change 


from Prior 


Year


2008 737,856$              


2009 694,227$              (43,629)$           -5.91%


2010 710,376$              16,149$            2.33%


2011 772,586$              62,210$            8.76%


2012 731,538$              (41,048)$           -5.31%


2013 765,381$              33,843$            4.63%


2014 903,595$              138,214$          18.06%


2015 869,159$              (34,436)$           -3.81%


2016 969,933$              100,774$          11.59%


2017 992,653$              22,720$            2.34%


2018 943,589$              (49,064)$           -4.94%


2019 1,006,142$           62,553$            6.63%


2020 1,012,070$           5,928$              0.59%


2021 1,064,080$           52,010$            5.14%


$10,000 Resorvoir Drain and Inspection; $9,000 


Succession Planning; Admin Building Blacktop; 


$55K in add'l wage increases/strategic planning


2022 1,044,447$           (19,633)$           -1.85%


2023 1,136,742$           92,295$            8.84%
$50,000 Well 4 and 6 Rehab; $15,000 Water 


System Model Update


2024 1,103,289$           (33,453)$           -2.94% $25,000 Well 5 Rehab; $6,000 Large Meter Testing


2025 1,170,333$           67,044$            6.08%
$25,000 Well 7 Rehab; $25,000 Service Area Plan; 


$31,500 Water System Model


Annual % inflation from 2015 to 2019 1.17%


Annual % inflation from 2010 to 2019 2.48%


Estimated annual inflation from 2020 to 2025 1.36%


 Capital 


Expenditures  PILOT 
2015 1,035,382$           2015 363,249$         


2016 911,032$              2016 387,855$         


2017 774,325$              2017 420,305$         


2018 498,588$              2018 423,351$         


2019 889,708$              2019 431,034$         


2020 683,600$              2020 445,620$         


2021 3,258,070$           2021 459,813$         


2022 56,700$                2022 519,387$         


2023 761,928$              2023 522,413$         


2024 687,700$              2024 537,890$         


2025 605,280$              2025 551,982$         


WATER


A
C


T
U


A
L


F
O


R
E


C
A


S
T


E
D


A
C


T
U


A
L


A
C


T
U


A
L


F
O


R
E


C
A


S
T


E
D


F
O


R
E


C
A


S
T


E
D


 $750,000


 $800,000


 $850,000


 $900,000


 $950,000


 $1,000,000


 $1,050,000


 $1,100,000


 $1,150,000


 $1,200,000


 $1,250,000


2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


 $-


 $500,000


 $1,000,000


 $1,500,000


 $2,000,000


 $2,500,000


 $3,000,000


 $3,500,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


 $300,000


 $350,000


 $400,000


 $450,000


 $500,000


 $550,000


 $600,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025







 Sales in 


Gallons 


2015 470,300,000          Sales in $ 
2016 470,982,000         2015 1,761,033$      


2017 463,406,000         2016 1,953,826$      


2018 445,868,000         2017 2,029,711$      


2019 443,695,000         2018 2,073,990$      


2020 441,473,000         2019 2,272,390$      


2021 441,473,000         2020 2,272,814$      


2022 441,473,000         2021 2,342,987$      


2023 441,473,000         2022 2,675,168$      


2024 441,473,000         2023 2,677,976$      


2025 441,473,000         2024 2,816,343$      


2025 2,819,292$      


Through 9/30/20 -0.90%


 Avg. Plant 


Bal. 
Dep Exp.


Composite 


Dep. Rate


2014 12,270,420$  286,929$              2.3%


2015 13,054,336$  296,895$              2.3%


2016 14,076,870$  302,956$              2.2%


2017 14,982,697$  315,908$              2.1%


2018 15,556,237$  330,652$              2.1%


2019 16,209,867$  351,993$              2.2%


2020 16,998,853$  373,142$              2.2%


2021 18,915,566$  415,216$              2.2%


2022 20,525,751$  450,561$              2.2%


2023 20,915,692$  459,120$              2.2%


2024 21,617,759$  474,531$              2.2%


2025 22,230,571$  487,983$              2.2%


F
O


R
E


C
A


S
T


E
D


F
O


R
E


C
A


S
T


E
D


UTILITY FINANCED PLANT


A
C


T
U


A
L


A
C


T
U


A
L


 430,000,000


 435,000,000


 440,000,000


 445,000,000


 450,000,000


 455,000,000


 460,000,000


 465,000,000


 470,000,000


 475,000,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
 $1,700,000


 $1,900,000


 $2,100,000


 $2,300,000


 $2,500,000


 $2,700,000


 $2,900,000


 $3,100,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Sales in $


 $-


 $5,000,000


 $10,000,000


 $15,000,000


 $20,000,000


 $25,000,000


2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Avg. Plant Bal. 


 $-


 $100,000


 $200,000


 $300,000


 $400,000


 $500,000


 $600,000


2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Dep Exp.







2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


OPERATING REVENUES


Sales of water 1,416,545$    1,465,315$    1,496,750$          1,665,554$     1,661,784$       1,712,381$          1,954,765$         1,956,287$     2,057,006$     2,058,604$     


Public Fire Protection 498,439         520,495         530,529               551,749          555,434            573,342               655,121              656,407          690,787          692,138          


Private Fire Protection 38,842           43,901           46,711                 55,087            55,596              57,264                 65,282                65,282            68,550            68,550            


Other 47,298           41,518           47,111                 44,127            45,000              45,000                 45,000                45,000            45,000            45,000            


Total Operating Revenues 2,001,124$    2,071,229$    2,121,101$          2,316,517$     2,317,814$       2,387,987$          2,720,168$         2,722,976$     2,861,343$     2,864,292$     


0.02% 3.09% 14.18% 0.10% 5.17% 0.10%


OPERATING EXPENSES


Operation and maintenance 969,933$       992,653$       943,589$             1,006,142$     1,012,070$       1,064,080$          1,044,447$         1,136,742$     1,103,289$     1,170,333$     


Taxes 22,271           22,204           22,232                 26,697            27,282              27,766                 28,272                28,798            29,500            30,223            


Depreciation (Utility Financed) 302,978         315,908         330,652               351,993          373,142            415,216               450,561              459,120          474,531          487,983          


PILOT 387,855         420,305         423,351               431,034          445,620            459,813               519,387              522,413          537,890          551,982          


Total Operating Expenses 1,683,037$    1,751,070$    1,719,824$          1,815,866$     1,858,114$       1,966,874$          2,042,666$         2,147,073$     2,145,211$     2,240,521$     


2.34% -4.94% 6.63% 7.26% 5.14% -1.85% 8.84% -2.94% 6.08%


REGULATORY OPERATING INCOME 318,087$       320,159$       401,277$             500,651$        459,701$          421,113$             677,502$            575,904$        716,132$        623,771$        


AVERAGE NET RATE BASE 9,201,577$    9,904,869$    10,271,417$        10,772,825$   11,320,440$     12,892,350$        14,113,407$       14,063,313$   14,316,104$   14,458,396$   


RATE OF RETURN (Allowed - 5.00%) 3.46% 3.23% 3.91% 4.65% 4.06% 3.27% 4.80% 4.10% 5.00% 4.31%


OPERATING CASH FLOWS 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Sales of water 1,953,428$    2,036,464$    2,083,445$          2,293,667$     2,272,814$       2,342,987$          2,675,168$         2,677,976$     2,816,343$     2,819,292$     


Routine operating expenditures (980,187)        (1,031,439)     (1,030,058)           (990,609)         (1,012,070)        (1,064,080)           (1,044,447)         (1,136,742)      (1,103,289)      (1,170,333)      


Transfers and taxes (359,016)        (391,598)        (426,565)              (423,351)         (458,317)           (473,386)              (488,085)            (548,184)         (551,913)         (568,113)         


Miscellaneous income 47,298           41,518           47,111                 44,127            45,000              45,000                 45,000                45,000            45,000            45,000            


Total Operating Cash Flows 661,523$       654,945$       673,933$             923,834$        847,428$          850,521$             1,187,637$         1,038,050$     1,206,141$     1,125,847$     


CAPITAL AND FINANCING CASH FLOWS


Acquisition of capital assets (911,032)$      (774,325)$      (498,588)$            (844,708)$       (683,600)$         (3,258,070)$         (56,700)$            (761,928)$       (687,700)$       (605,280)$       


Principal paid (1,399,957)     (373,677)        (369,415)              (365,174)         (490,952)           (486,751)              (571,116)            (598,770)         (426,481)         (437,253)         


Interest paid (88,323)          (56,726)          (52,040)                (47,010)           (86,524)             (101,213)              (112,926)            (101,151)         (90,164)           (79,740)           


Debt proceeds 2,520,000      -                 -                       1,818,218       -                    2,200,000            -                     -                  -                  -                  


Special assessments -                 65,134           236,757               38,314            37,153              35,992                 34,831                33,670            32,509            31,348            


120,688$       (1,139,594)$   (683,286)$            599,640$        (1,223,923)$      (1,610,042)$         (705,910)$          (1,428,178)$    (1,171,836)$    (1,090,925)$    


INVESTING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOWS


Investment income 37,294$         38,866$         29,319$               38,880$          6,400$              5,040$                 4,691$                4,706$            4,159$            4,151$            


Net Change in Cash 819,505$       (445,783)$      19,966$               1,562,354$     (370,095)$         (754,481)$            486,417$            (385,422)$       38,465$          39,072$          


PRELIMINARY ENDING CASH BALANCE 1,588,175$    1,110,284$    1,110,651$          2,664,194$     2,371,290$       1,616,809$          2,103,226$         1,717,804$     1,756,269$     1,795,341$     


ENDING ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE 122,191$        -$                  -$                     -$                   -$                -$                -$                


REMAINING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (45,000)$         -$                  -$                     -$                   -$                -$                -$                


RECOMMENDED REDUCTION -$                  -$                     -$                   -$                -$                -$                


ENDING CASH BALANCE 1,588,175$    1,110,284$    1,110,651$          2,741,385$     2,371,290$       1,616,809$          2,103,226$         1,717,804$     1,756,269$     1,795,341$     


RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE 846,941$       631,311$       572,417$             1,472,684$     782,734$          823,028$             842,026$            387,581$        733,717$        743,030$        


UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE 741,234$       478,973$       538,234$             1,268,701$     1,588,556$       793,781$             1,261,201$         1,330,223$     1,022,551$     1,052,311$     


UNRESTRICTED MONTHS ON HAND 4.55               2.83               3.11                     6.70                8.39                  4.07                     5.66                    5.96                4.36                4.48                


RATE INCREASE NEEDED 0.00% 3.00% 14.00% 0.00% 5.00% 0.00%


DEBT ISSUE NEEDED -$                  2,200,000$          -$                   -$                -$                -$                


WATER - 2021 LSL REPLACEMENT







WATER - 2021 LSL REPLACEMENT
DEBT COVERAGE 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Operating revenues 2,317,814$       2,387,987$          2,720,168$         2,722,976$     2,861,343$     2,864,292$     


O & M expenses (1,039,352.15)   (1,091,846)           (1,072,719)         (1,165,540)      (1,132,789)      (1,200,556)      


Net defined earnings 1,278,462$       1,296,141$          1,647,450$         1,557,437$     1,728,554$     1,663,736$     


Annual debt service 509,864$          642,950$             642,950$            462,027$        462,027$        462,027$        


Coverage factor 1.30                  1.30                     1.30                    1.30                1.30                1.30                


Minimum required earnings 662,823$          835,835$             835,835$            600,635$        600,635$        600,635$        


ACTUAL DEBT COVERAGE 2.51                  2.02                     2.56                    3.37                3.74                3.60                







STOUGHTON WASTEWATER UTILITY


OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 10/14/2020 13:30


FORECASTED FOR THE YEAR 2021


OPERATING REVENUES Proposed % Change Estimated Actual Actual Actual


  Sales 2020 2020/2019 2020 2019 2018 2017


    Residential 1,485,093$         2.41% 1,450,143$       1,365,623$       1,374,695$       1,386,580$     


    Commercial 467,913$            2.41% 456,901$         430,271$         452,154$         440,709$        


    Industrial 183,363$            2.41% 179,048$         168,612$         116,712$         121,253$        


    Public Authority (City Buildings) 29,184$              2.41% 28,497$           26,836$           27,534$           23,866$          


        Total Sales 2,165,553$         2,114,589$       1,991,342$       1,971,095$       1,972,408$     


  Other Operating Revenues


    Forfeited Discounts (Penalties, NSF, Reconnect) 4,359$                2.41% 4,256$             4,008$             4,375$             4,499$            


    Other  (BOD/Suspended Solids Surcharge) 41,141$              0.98% 40,744$           133,075$         80,406$           74,406$          


             Total Operating Revenues 2,211,053$         2,159,589$       2,128,425$       2,055,876$       2,051,313$     


OPERATING EXPENSES


  Plant (General WWTP Plant Maintenance) 476,470$            5.0% 453,800$         399,285$         424,317$         421,365$        


  Customer Accounting and Collection 146,640$            1.2% 144,830$         143,046$         136,056$         146,128$        


  Administrative and General  (Salaries, Benefits, Insurance) 469,186$            7.9% 434,773$         440,425$         400,081$         409,499$        


  2021 Add'l Pay Adjustments/Strategic Planning 38,250$              


  Depreciation 899,166$            2.1% 880,522$         856,914$         820,778$         811,239$        


      Total Operating Expenses 2,029,712$         1,913,925$       1,839,670$       1,781,232$       1,788,231$     


                OPERATING INCOME 181,341$            245,664$         288,755$         274,644$         263,082$        







O&M


$ Change from 


Prior Year


% Change 


from Prior 


Year


2007 876,213$         


2008 841,128$         (35,085)$           -4.00%


2009 895,052$         53,924$            6.41%


2010 877,416$         (17,636)$           -1.97%


2011 881,409$         3,993$              0.46%


2012 853,923$         (27,486)$           -3.12%


2013 852,874$         (1,049)$             -0.12%


2014 920,411$         67,537$            7.92%


2015 1,017,847$      97,436$            10.59%


2016 968,836$         (49,011)$           -4.82%


2017 947,317$         (21,519)$           -2.22%


2018 930,981$         (16,336)$           -1.72%


2019 953,146$         22,165$            2.38%


2020 1,003,200$      50,054$            5.25%
$10,000 Increase in Sludge Disposal Costs; 2020 Wage 


Adjustments


2021 1,099,740$      96,540$            9.62%


$12,000 Plant Digester Cleaning/Inspection; $5,000 


Sludge Transfer Pump Rebuild; Admin Building Blacktop; 


$36K in add'l wage increases and strategic planning


2022 1,075,420$      (24,320)$           -2.21%


2023 1,089,780$      14,360$            1.34% $15,000 Digester Cover Painting


2024 1,087,575$      (2,205)$             -0.20%


2025 1,253,355$      165,780$          15.24%
$35,000 System Study; $45,000 Facilities Study; 


$75,000 WWTP Parking Lot


Annual % inflation from 2015 to 2019 0.94%


Annual % inflation from 2010 to 2019 0.28%


Estimated annual inflation from 2020 to 2025 2.59%


 Capital 


Expenditures 


2015 827,288$         


2016 467,678$         


2017 463,630$         


2018 498,397$         


2019 1,531,517$      


2020 979,055$         


2021 534,463$         


2022 893,000$         


2023 414,850$         


2024 880,500$         


2025 652,975$         


WASTEWATER
A


C
T


U
A


L
F


O
R


E
C


A
S


T
E


D
A


C
T


U
A


L
F


O
R


E
C


A
S


T
E


D


 $850,000


 $900,000


 $950,000


 $1,000,000


 $1,050,000


 $1,100,000


 $1,150,000


 $1,200,000


 $1,250,000


 $1,300,000


2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


 $-


 $200,000


 $400,000


 $600,000


 $800,000


 $1,000,000


 $1,200,000


 $1,400,000


 $1,600,000


 $1,800,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025







 Sales in 


Gallons  Sales in $ 


2015 313,093,000    2015 1,993,392$       


2016 311,726,000    2016 1,998,543$       


2017 307,018,000    2017 1,972,408$       


2018 305,530,000    2018 1,971,095$       


2019 308,908,000    2019 1,991,343$       


2020 324,353,400    2020 2,114,589$       


2021 324,353,400    2021 2,165,553$       


2022 324,353,400    2022 2,276,243$       


2023 324,353,400    2023 2,277,734$       


2024 324,353,400    2024 2,393,778$       


2025 324,353,400    2025 2,395,351$       


Through 9/30/20 6.58%


Composite 


Dep. Rate


2014 2.87%


2015 2.86%


2016 2.82%


2017 2.78%


2018 2.74%


2019 2.77%


2020 2.75%


2021 2.75%


2022 2.75%


2023 2.75%


2024 2.75%


2025 2.75%


F
O


R
E


C
A


S
T


E
D


F
O


R
E


C
A


S
T


E
D


A
C


T
U


A
L


A
C


T
U


A
L


 295,000,000


 300,000,000


 305,000,000


 310,000,000


 315,000,000


 320,000,000


 325,000,000


 330,000,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
 $1,900,000


 $1,950,000


 $2,000,000


 $2,050,000


 $2,100,000


 $2,150,000


 $2,200,000


 $2,250,000


 $2,300,000


 $2,350,000


 $2,400,000


2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


 $-


 $200,000


 $400,000


 $600,000


 $800,000


 $1,000,000


 $1,200,000


2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Depreciation


 $-


 $5,000,000


 $10,000,000


 $15,000,000


 $20,000,000


 $25,000,000


 $30,000,000


 $35,000,000


 $40,000,000


2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Avg. Plant 







OPERATING CASH FLOWS 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Treatment charges 1,990,440$      1,962,194$      1,972,206$       1,978,732$      2,114,589$      2,165,553$      2,276,243$      2,277,734$      2,393,778$      2,395,351$      


Routine operating expenditures (931,714)          (989,095)          (960,633)          (1,005,804)       (1,003,200)       (1,099,740)       (1,075,420)       (1,089,780)       (1,087,575)       (1,253,355)       


Taxes (28,955)            (29,675)            (29,473)            (29,610)            (30,202)            (30,806)            (31,422)            (32,051)            (32,692)            (33,346)            


Miscellaneous income 37,459             78,905             84,781              137,083           45,000             45,500             46,000             46,500             47,000             47,500             


Total Operating Cash Flows 1,067,230$      1,022,329$      1,066,881$       1,080,401$      1,126,187$      1,080,507$      1,215,401$      1,202,403$      1,320,511$      1,156,150$      


CAPITAL AND FINANCING CASH FLOWS


Acquisition of capital assets (467,678)$        (463,430)$        (498,397)$        (1,231,517)$     (979,055)$        (534,463)$        (893,000)$        (414,850)$        (880,500)$        (652,975)$        


Principal paid (434,390)          (447,396)          (458,702)          (470,323)          (439,676)          (374,971)          (385,930)          (395,126)          (293,975)          (302,602)          


Interest paid (150,466)          (137,032)          (124,889)          (112,429)          (100,296)          (89,652)            (79,875)            (69,838)            (61,064)            (53,542)            


Debt proceeds -                  -                  -                   -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  


Special assessments -                  44,666             162,362            26,275             25,479             24,682             23,886             23,090             22,294             21,498             


(1,052,534)$     (1,003,192)$     (919,626)$        (1,787,994)$     (1,493,548)$     (974,404)$        (1,334,919)$     (856,724)$        (1,213,245)$     (987,621)$        


INVESTING ACTIVITIES CASH FLOWS


Investment income (336,570)$        52,538$           52,657$            55,868$           5,603$             5,349$             5,684$             5,820$             5,985$             6,223$             


Net Change in Cash (321,874)$        71,675$           199,912$          (651,725)$        (361,758)$        111,451$         (113,834)$        351,499$         113,251$         174,752$         


ENDING CASH BALANCE 2,949,885$      2,987,712$      3,156,294$       2,429,332$      2,067,574$      2,179,026$      2,065,191$      2,416,690$      2,529,941$      2,704,693$      


RESTRICTED CASH BALANCE 1,616,203$      1,625,760$      1,586,641$       1,587,782$      1,564,225$      1,585,897$      1,599,838$      1,547,426$      1,564,188$      1,585,089$      


UNRESTRICTED CASH BALANCE 1,333,682$      1,361,952$      1,569,653$       845,452$         503,349$         593,128$         465,353$         869,264$         965,753$         1,119,604$      


UNRESTRICTED MONTHS ON HAND 8.01                 8.29                 9.56                 5.09                 2.86                 3.29                 2.45                 4.58                 4.84                 5.61                 


RATE INCREASE NEEDED 4.78% 0.00% 5.00% 0.00% 5.00% 0.00%


DEBT ISSUE NEEDED -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                


WASTEWATER







WASTEWATER


DEBT COVERAGE 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025


Operating revenues 2,036,002$      2,051,313$      2,055,876$       2,128,425$      2,159,589$      2,211,053$      2,322,243$      2,324,234$      2,440,778$      2,442,851$      


Investment income 2,485               33,367             29,344              61,695             5,603               5,349               5,684               5,820               5,985               6,223               


O & M expenses (1,020,298)       (1,012,657)       (959,399)          (1,025,314)       (1,033,402)       (1,130,546)       (1,106,842)       (1,121,831)       (1,120,267)       (1,286,701)       


Net defined earnings 1,018,189$      1,072,023$      1,125,821$       1,164,806$      1,131,790$      1,085,855$      1,221,085$      1,208,223$      1,326,496$      1,162,373$      


Highest annual debt service 544,307$         544,152$         543,992$          582,752$         465,805$         465,805$         464,964$         356,143$         356,143$         317,628$         


Coverage factor 1.10                 1.10                 1.10                 1.10                 1.10                 1.10                 1.10                 1.10                 1.10                 1.10                 


Minimum required earnings 598,738$         598,567$         598,391$          641,027$         512,386$         512,386$         511,460$         391,757$         391,757$         349,391$         


ACTUAL DEBT COVERAGE 1.87                 1.97                 2.07                 2.00                 2.43                 2.33                 2.63                 3.39                 3.72                 3.66                 



























 
City of Stoughton, 207 South Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION FROM THE UTILTIES COMMITTEE TO THE  


STOUGHTON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2021 budget 


and five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee recommended Committee of the Whole and Common 


Council approval 7-0 


Committee of the Whole recommended Common Council approval _-0 
 
Fiscal Impact: Revenue Neutral 


 
File Number: 


 
R-xxx-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 10, 2020 


WHEREAS, in early 2020, City of Stoughton and Stoughton Utilities staff, along with their engineering 


and financial consultants, initiated the development of the proposed 2021 Stoughton Utilities Budget and 


five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Program, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee approved and recommended the approval of the proposed 


2021 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan to the Common 


Council on October 19, 2020, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Committee of the Whole reviewed the proposed 2021 Stoughton Utilities 


Budget and five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan during their budget workshop on October 


22, 2020, and 


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Committee of the Whole approved, and recommended the approval of the 


proposed 2021 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan to the 


Common Council on October 29, 2020, now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 


approve and adopt the 2021 Stoughton Utilities Budget and five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement 


Plan.    


Council Action: ☐ Adopted ☐ Failed Vote:  


Mayoral Action: ☐ Accept ☐ Veto   


    


Mayor Timothy Swadley  Date  


Council Action:  ☐ Override Vote:  
 





		10a-Resolution - Budget

		10b-Utilities Committee - Budget






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Resolution setting the special charge for garbage and recycling collection fees for calendar year 2021 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended 5-0 on October 27, 2020 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
This special charge will collect the $817,171 and has been incorporated into the 


2021 budget. 
 
File Number: 


 
R-169-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 10, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton provides contracted residential and limited commercial curbside garbage 


and recycling service and incurs contractual and administrative expenses in providing this service; and 


 


WHEREAS, On September 22, 2020, the City of Stoughton expanded the curbside service to include 


electronic recycling at an additional cost of $0.50 per housing unit per month; and 


 


WHEREAS, it is administratively efficient to bill and collect fees on the property tax roll as a special charge 


to fund this service; and 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton to set a special charge for garbage 


and recycling service in an annual amount of $180.00 per unit and that this special charge remains in force 


until revoked or amended by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton; and 


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the special charge rate will take effect on January 1, 2021; and  


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that city staff are 


directed to place the special charge on the property tax roll.  


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Resolution setting the special charge for garbage and recycling collection fees for calendar year 2021 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended 5-0 on October 27, 2020  


Fiscal Impact: 
 
This special charge will collect the $817,171 and has been incorporated into the 
2021 budget. 


 
File Number: 


 
R- -2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 10, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton provides contracted residential and limited commercial curbside garbage 
and recycling service and incurs contractual and administrative expenses in providing this service; and 


 
WHEREAS, On September 22, 2020, the City of Stoughton expanded the curbside service to include 
electronic recycling at an additional cost of $0.50 per housing unit per month; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is administratively efficient to bill and collect fees on the property tax roll as a special charge 
to fund this service; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton to set a special charge for garbage 
and recycling service in an annual amount of $180.00 per unit and that this special charge remains in force 
until revoked or amended by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the special charge rate will take effect on January 1, 2021; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that city staff are 
directed to place the special charge on the property tax roll.  
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Budgeted Expenditures 817,171$        
Budgeted Revenues 817,200$        
Surplus (Loss) 29$                  


Estimated 
2021 Units


Montly 
Contract Rate Total


Garbage 4,540               8.20$               446,736$        
Recycling 4,540               4.55$               247,884$        
Bulk 4,540               2.15$               117,132$        


811,752$        
Labor 2,222$            
Benefits 324$                
Insurance 525$                
Office Supplies 300$                
Advertising 2,000$            
     Total 817,123$        


2021 Fee per Unit 180.00$          
2020 Fee per Unit 174.40$          
% Increase 3.21%


2021 Refuse Special Charge





		11a-R- -2020 - Setting 2021 Garbage and Recyclig Fees

		11b-R- -2020 - Setting 2021 Garbage and Recycling Fees






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
To authorize a small claims lawsuit against BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company 


LLP regarding unpaid annexation agreement town tax reimbursements. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended 5-0 on October 27, 2020 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
$5,344 is owed to the City of Stoughton. 


 
File Number:     


 
R-170-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 10, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton entered into an annexation agreement with BUD-MAR LLP and 


BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP; and 


 


WHEREAS, said agreement required BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP to 


reimburse the City of Stoughton for taxes the city is required by law to pay the Town of Rutland within 30 


days of request; and  


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton paid $3,769.11 and $1,575.11 to the Town of Rutland for taxes payable 


in 2020 for BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP’s properties; and 


 


WHEREAS, BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP were invoiced by the city for 


the town taxes on February 7, 2020; and 


 


WHEREAS, BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP have not paid the invoices 


despite requests by city staff to do so in August 2020; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton’s attorney had recommended in 2019 small claims action against BUD-


MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP as the avenue to collect on the invoices for a 


similar situation: 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton authorizes city staff to pursue a small 


claims lawsuit against BUD-MAR LLP for $3,769.11 plus other costs permitted by law and BEEANDBEE 


Investment Company LLP for $1,575.11 plus other costs permitted by law. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


(608) 873-6677     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  October 20, 2020 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Jamin Friedl, CPA 
  Director of Finance/Comptroller 
 
Subject: Pursue Small Claims Lawsuit for Unpaid Amounts 
 
The City of Stoughton entered into an annexation agreement with BUD-MAR LLP and 
BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP on March 11, 2014. As part of that agreement, both 
entities are required to reimburse the City for the amount the City is required by law to pay to the 
Town of Rutland annually because of the annexation of the parcel owned by each entity. The 
table below represents the remaining repayment schedule related to this agreement: 
 


 
 


As can be seen in the above table, the aforementioned entities now have past due amounts 
totaling $5,344.22. The properties in question here were sold in 2018; however, the annexation 
agreement is silent in terms of how to treat this particular situation. Following communications 
with the City Attorney, we were informed the best course of action available to us is to file a 
lawsuit in small claims court in an attempt to collect the amounts owed.  
 
The Finance Department is requesting permission from the Finance Committee to request 
approval from the City of Stoughton Common Council to move forward with filing a lawsuit in 
small claims court.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Jamin Friedl, CPA 
Director of Finance 
 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
To authorize a small claims lawsuit against BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company 
LLP regarding unpaid annexation agreement town tax reimbursements. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended 5-0 on October 27, 2020  


Fiscal Impact: 
 
$5,344 is owed to the City of Stoughton.  


File Number:    R - - 2020 
 


 
 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 10, 2020 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton entered into an annexation agreement with BUD-MAR LLP and 
BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP; and 
 
WHEREAS, said agreement required BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP to 
reimburse the City of Stoughton for taxes the city is required by law to pay the Town of Rutland within 30 
days of request; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton paid $3,769.11 and $1,575.11 to the Town of Rutland for taxes payable 
in 2020 for BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP’s properties; and 
 
WHEREAS, BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP were invoiced by the city for 
the town taxes on February 7, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP have not paid the invoices 
despite requests by city staff to do so in August 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton’s attorney had recommended in 2019 small claims action against BUD-
MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE Investment Company LLP as the avenue to collect on the invoices for a 
similar situation: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton authorizes city staff to pursue a small 
claims lawsuit against BUD-MAR LLP for $3,769.11 plus other costs permitted by law and BEEANDBEE 
Investment Company LLP for $1,575.11 plus other costs permitted by law. 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





		12a-R- -2020 - Annexation Small Claims Resolution

		12b-R- -2020 - Annexation Small Claims Resolution






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating subsection (82) relating to 


No Parking Anytime on the west side of Hoel Avenue between Otteson and Odegard Drives. 


Committee Action:    Public Safety committee recommends approval 5-0 on October 27, 2020 


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O-25-2020 First Reading: 


Second Reading: 


November 10, 2020 


November 24, 2020 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Section 1. Sec. 70-176 (82) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is created as follows:  


 


         Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 


No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of 


and while actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers 


and while the vehicle is attended by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in 


case of an emergency or to avoid obstruction of traffic, upon any of the following highways or 


parts of highways:  


(82) No Parking Anytime on the west side of Hoel Avenue between Otteson & Odegard Drives.  


 


 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Holly Licht, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to Suspend Ordinance 70-186, Downtown 2 


Hour Parking Regulations, from November 30th 2020 to January 1st, 2021. 


Committee Action: Public Safety  
 
Fiscal Impact: None 
 
File Number: 


 
R-171-2020 


 
Date Introduced: November 10, 2020 


 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be hereby 


directed and authorized to suspend enforcement of Ordinance 70-186, the Downtown 2 Hour Parking Ordinance, 


between November 30th to January 1st, 2021 for a celebration of a Special Downtown Parking Holiday; 


 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton wants to encourage Holiday Festivities occurring in the Downtown 


area during the holiday; and  


 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton recognizes that Downtown shoppers may spend more time in the 


downtown area during the holiday season; and 


 


 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council that the 2 Hours Parking 


Ordinance be suspended in the Downtown area, which is described as Main Street and one block in each direction 


between S. Page Street and 7th Street during the time period of November 30th, 2020 to January 1st, 2021. 


 


Adopted this 10th day of November 2020 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote   _______ 


 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589 
 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving designated Snowmobile routes in City right of ways  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Public Safety Approved 5-0 on October 28, 2020 


 
Fiscal Impact: None 


 
File Number: R-172-2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
November 10, 2020 


 


WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to approve a request from the Viking Snow Drifters 


Snowmobile club to continue use of the trail to access BBG’s, Culvers, Arby’s, Deaks KFC and 


Kwik Trip located along HWY 51 within the City limits; and  


 


WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee met on October 28, 2020 to consider the terms of the 


request from the Viking Snow Drifters and recommends approval; now therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby directed and authorized to approve the request for continued use of the 


snowmobile trail leading to the above stated businesses.   


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 
 





























































		15a-Approving Snowmobile Routes in the City

		15b-Snowmobile Routes






Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open 


at 6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 


7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 


COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/171226893. You can also dial in using your 


phone: +1 (571) 317-3129 . Access Code: 171-226-893 .  


 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, 


Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, and Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend 


the meeting, please  notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us  
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 Election Update 


 


2. Minutes and Reports: 


Finance (10/13/20); Public Safety (9/23/20); Personnel (5/4/20, 8/19/20) Police and Fire 


Commission (12/13/19, 4/27/20, 6/4/20, 8/5/20) 


 


3. Public Comment Period: 


 If you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and 


submit it by 6:30 p.m. on November 10, 2020. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 


4. Consent Agenda 


A. October 27, 2020 Council Minutes 


B. R-165-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to 


various applicants. 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. O-22-2020- To amend Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and create Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of 


the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the placement of water metering facilities and 


the replacement of inaccessible metering facilities. (Utilities recommended approval 7-0)   


          SECOND READING 


 


6. O- 23- 2020- To amend Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and create Sections 74-2 (g) of the City of 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA-AMENDED (2) 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/171226893

mailto:hlicht@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the replacement of indirect service lateral connections. 


(Utilities recommended approval 7-0)    SECOND READING 
 
 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


7. PUBLIC HEARING: 2021 City of Stoughton Operating Budget  


 


8. R-166-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to adopt the 2021 City of 


Stoughton Budget (Committee of the Whole recommended approval 12-0)  


 


9. R-167-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of Stoughton 


five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) (CIP recommended approval September 24, 


2020) 


 


10. R-168-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Stoughton Utilities 


2021 budget and five-year (2021-2025) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). (Utilities recommended 


approval 7-0. And Committee of the Whole recommended approval 12-0)  


 


11. R-169-2020-Setting a Special Charge for Garbage and Recycling Collection Fees for Calendar Year 


2021 (Finance Committee recommended 5-0 on October 27, 2020) 


 


12. R-170-2020- Authorizing a small claims lawsuit against BUD-MAR LLP and BEEANDBEE 


Investment Company LLP regarding unpaid annexation agreement town tax reimbursements 


(Finance recommended approval 5-0 on October 27, 2020)  


 


13. O-25-2020-Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating 


subsection (82) relating to No Parking Anytime on the west side of Hoel Avenue between Otteson 


and Odegard Drives. (Public Safety recommended approval 5-0 on October 28, 2020)  


 


14. R-171-2020 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to Suspend Ordinance 70-186, 


Downtown 2 Hour Parking Regulations, from November 30th 2020 to January 1st, 2021. (Public 


Safety recommended approval 5-0 on October 28, 2020) 


 


15. R-172-2020-Approving Designated Snowmobile routes in City right of ways (Public Safety 


recommended approval 5-0 on October 28, 2020) 


 


16. R- 173-2020- Approving a Class B Winery License Transfer for Mershonian Cidery, LLC from 108 


Business Park Circle #7, to 124 W Main St. (Public safety recommended approval with 


contingencies on October 28, 2020)  


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch  


 








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Approving a Class B Winery License Transfer for Mershonian Cidery, LLC from 108 Business Park Circle 


#7, to 124 W Main St. 


Committee Action:      Public Safety recommended approval 5-0 with contingencies on October 28, 2020 


Fiscal Impact: $10 License Transfer Fee; License Fee $500/annually  


File Number: R-173-2020 Date Introduced: November 10, 2020 


WHEREAS, the City Clerk’s office has received an application for a transfer of a Class B Winery 


License currently issued to Mershonian Cidery, LLC located at 108 Business Park Circle #7 


WHEREAS, the licensee is requesting to transfer the license to their new premises, located at 124 


W Main St.  


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on October 28, 2020 to consider the terms of the 


license application and recommended approval with the following contingencies: the effective date 


shall be November 26, 2020 and the premises description shall be updated, now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorize and directed to approve a Class B Winery license transfer for 


Mershonian Cidery, LLC from 108 Business Park Circle #7 to 124 W Main St.  


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 







Applicant has  amended the effective date to 12/4/20. HL















Alcohol will be served in the SouthEast corner of the building with additional seating along the 
East Side of the building. Storage and coolers are located in the Mershons production area and 
in the lower level directly below the bar. 





		16-R-173-2020 Approving a License Transfer for Mershons Cidery

		16-R-173-2020 Approving a License Transfer for Mershons Cidery

		16-aR-173

		16b-Mershon Cider License Transfer



		cinemafloor_firstBar



		TastingRoomDescription






 


 


Date:  November 9, 2020  


To:  Common Council 


From: Holly Licht, City Clerk  


Re: 2020 General Election Statistics 


 


The following are voter statistics from the 2020 General Election in the City of Stoughton:  


Participation:     93.7% registered voters 


Registered voters:  8973 


Ballots cast: 8235 


Absentee Ballots Counted: 5741 (70% of all ballots cast)  


Absentee Via mail:  4472 


In-Person Absentee:  1269 


Absentee Ballots not returned: 187 


Absentee Ballot Return Method: 


Drop box: 2970  


Mail: 1502 


 


Unofficial election results are published on the Dane County Clerk’s Website: 


https://elections.countyofdane.com/Election-Result/124.  


 


 


Please let me know if you have any questions.  


 


 


 


 


 



https://elections.countyofdane.com/Election-Result/124





 








October 13, 2020 Finance Committee Meeting 
 
Members Present: Brett Schumacher, Lisa Reeves, Greg Jenson, Ozzie Doom, Tim Swadley 
 
Absent and Excused: None 
 
Call to Order: 
Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Communications 
None 
 
Reports: the following reports were entered into the record.  


• Contingency Report 
• September 2020 Financial Report 


 
Approval of the September 22, 2020 Finance Committee Minutes 
Motion by Reeves, second by Jenson to approve the September 22, 2020 Finance Committee 
Minutes. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Resolution approving a revised financial agreement between the State of Wisconsin and the 
City of Stoughton for costs for the construction of roundabouts on US Highway 51 at 
Hoel/Silverado, STH 138 and Roby Road scheduled to be constructed in 2022 
Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to recommend that council approve. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding adding $50,000 to the 2021 Sidewalks CIP budget  
This money would be used for repairs/replacements. Motion by Doom, second by Reeves to 
recommend that council approve. Motion carried 5-0.  
 
Discussion and possible action regarding Senior Center Annex space needs and existing lease 
agreements 
On average we collect $30,000/year from the lease agreements. We would need to give the tenants 
60 days’ notice if we were not to renew the lease. Senior Center McGlynn stated that the space would 
be renovated with fundraising money. She added that the space would be used for programming—no 
office spaces would be moved. Reeves and Schumacher stated that they would like to give more 
notice to the current lessees and have more financial information for making a decision. The 
committee took no action. It will be back on October 27th.  
 
Discussion and possible action regarding the 2021 Stoughton Opera House operating budget 
In order to accommodate the Opera House request, Finance Director Friedl said the start date for the 
Public Works employee could be pushed back to 2/1 and we could reduce the insurance deductible 
amount by $5000. Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to recommend that committee of the whole 
approve. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Discussion regarding progress to date on the 2021 operating budget 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  







 
- Future Special Assessments/Transportation Utility 
- 2021 Refuse and Recycling Rates 
   
Adjournment: 
Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to adjourn. Motion carried 5-0. 
 







PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MINUTES 


September 23, 2020 @ 6:00  


GoToMeeting 


 


Present: 


Jenson, Ligocki, Doom and Mayor Tim Swadley. Mayor Swadley left the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 


Also Present:  


Police Chief Leck, Clerk Licht 


Call to Order: 


Jenson called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m.  


Discussion and possible action regarding a resolution in support of the Stoughton Police Department 


Ligocki stated she would like to do a message of support to the community and the police instead of the 


resolution. Jenson proposed taking out the language “at this time”. Motion by Doom, second by Jenson 


to recommend that council approve the resolution with the language change. Motion carried 4-0. 


Motion by Doom, second by Jenson to recommend to council the resolutions that Ligocki will present to 


the committee 3-0.  


Communications:  


Jordan Tilleson stated there is an apartment that is proposed to be developed next to his doggy daycare 


and is concerned that the apartment would complain about nose. Apartment does not want to include a 


barrier and has torn out the natural barrier.  


Approval of the August 26, 2020 Public Safety Committee Minutes 


Motion by Ligocki, second Jenson to approve the minutes. Motion carried 4-0. 


Discussion and possible action regarding approving an operator license for Robert Cupery 


Motion by Doom, second by Ligocki to recommend denial of the license. The applicant did not appear 


before the committee. Motion carried 4-0.  


Discussion and possible action regarding Amending Chapter 70-183 of the City of Stoughton Municipal 


Code; relating to No Parking 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on School Days on the north side of the 1900 Block 


of Jackson Street. 


Motion by Doom, second by Ligocki to recommend that council approve Amending Chapter 70-183 of 


the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; relating to No Parking 7:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on School Days on 


the north side of the 1900 Block of Jackson Street. Motion carried 4-0. 


Adjournment:  


Motion by Ligocki, second by Doom to adjourn at 7:23 p.m. Motion 3-0.  


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Holly Licht, City Clerk  







PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, May 4, 2020 @ 6:00 pm 
Remotely Via GoToMeeting 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Fred Hundt (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma, Mayor Swadley and  


   Director Gillingham  
 


Absent and excused: Thomas Majewski 
 
Also in attendance: Director Friedl, Chief Leck and Director Scheel 
 
 


1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:04 pm. 
 


2. Approval of the Minutes of the Monday, February 3, 2020 Personnel Committee meeting 
minutes. 
Motion to approve Boersma, second Swadley, Approved 4-0 
 


3. Election of Chair 


Boersma motion to nominate Reeves, Reeves asked three times if there were any other 
nominations to no response, second Hundt, Approved 4-0 
 


4. Election of Chair 
Boersma motion to nominate Hundt, Reeves asked three times if there were any other 
nominations to no response, second Reeves, Approved 4-0 
 


5. Communications/Updates 
• Director Gillingham stated she has been trying to keep them updated by sending out a 


weekly update regarding what is going on with each department while the Safer at 
Home order is in place. 


• Human Resources has continued with recruiting and hiring. Hiring has been limited to 
seasonal employees for the Public Works & Recreation Departments. They have been 
given conditional offers of employment so that when the order is lifted we will have 
seasonal staff lined up and ready. Some positions that we have already recruited for 
have been on hold since the order went into effect. Those positions include the Police 
Department Office Manager, the Planning Department Engineering Technician and the 
City Custodian. Other positions that are being recruited for at this time include two 
Journeyman Lineman positions and we are still doing some recruiting for the 
Engineering Technician. 


• Last Fall the Human Resources & Risk Management Department sent the updated Work 
Rules to the attorney. We received them back earlier this year. Generalist Skarda and I 
were tasked with reformatting the Work Rules into a format that the attorney suggested. 
We have been working diligently on getting this accomplished. Once finished, it will go 
back to the attorney for approval. 


• For Human Resources & Risk Management, working remotely, it is pretty much business 
as usual. We are still recruiting. At this time, we are working on the hires for four full time 
positions. 


• Some liability claims have come in and we have had some minor employee injuries that 
we have had to report. 


Chair Reeves stated that she would like to give kudos to Director Gillingham and Generalist 
Skarda for pulling together as a team, keeping the Human Resources & Risk Management 
Department running smoothly during this time. She further stated that it was an 
understatement to say that we have entered a time of uncharted waters and that during this 







time they have pulled together and brought us much confidence that the City has done an 
excellent job of taking care of the City staff while still taking care of City business.  


 
6. Review and possible action regarding Covid 19 Compensation 


Director Gillingham reminded the committee that Mid-March the Mayor made an Emergency 
Declaration and had authorized and implemented a compensation plan that pays all regular 
full time and part-time employees their regular pay. She stated that many employees are 
working remotely while some are at work, including Public Works and Utilities, but working in 
shifts or alone and are practicing social distancing. She stated the City has brought some 
employees back to work while adhering to the Safer at Home order. Regarding essential 
services, she stated that they have set in place mechanisms to ensure that there is no 
exposure. She stated there had been one exposure early on and that that individual had self-
quarantined for 14 days before returning to work. Director Gillingham informed the committee 
that the Library has its own emergency policy that requires them to pay their employee’s at 
100%. She stated that she would like to meet with the Library Board to discuss with them the 
possibility of changing that policy so that their policy would follow what the City decides for its 
other employees.  
Reeves stated that the situation is a moving target and it’s good that we have a plan in place 
until the Safer at Home order is lifted or Council decides that the employees should return to 
work. Boersma stated that he believed Personnel should have a plan for what the guidelines 
will be when the order is lifted. Swadley stated that during the meeting he had had with 
leadership today, they had discussed that each building should have a plan in place for when 
that happens. He stated he has scheduled his first building meeting for tomorrow with City Hall 
building staff to discuss how a return would look. He stated that they would discuss the steps 
they would put in place to ease back into the return and to be able to provide services while 
not putting anyone at risk. He stated that the most difficult building would be the Senior Center 
because it is such a vulnerable group. Boersma stated he would like to see all City staff 
working by June 1st. Director Gillingham stated that most of the staff is already working even if 
it is remotely. 
Motion to approve Boersma, second Hundt, Approved 4-0. 
 


7. Discussion and possible action regarding the  2021 Compensation Budget 
Director Gillingham stated that she would like to know the expectations of the Personnel 
Committee on the 2021 budget. She stated that every year for the last few years she has 
worked to show a budget with right sizing included. She stated that because Director Friedl 
has started working on the 2021 budget, she would like to know if the committee wanted her 
to go ahead and do all of the calculations need in order to right size in 2021. Swadley stated 
that Friedl was just starting the process and would be sending something out to leadership 
around May 12th or 13th regarding the budget but that they would have to look at operations 
after the State makes its decisions on what will be available for us. Friedl stated that he was in 
the infant stages of looking at the 2021 budget and that it may be pre-mature to talk about 
this as he is just starting the process.  Director Gillingham explained that she is looking for 
direction in regards to working on right sizing, as it is a very time consuming process.   
Reeves stated she did not believe that it would be the best use of Director Gillingham’s time, 
especially while not knowing whether right sizing is going to happen. Boersma stated right 
sizing should be tabled for now. Friedl asked if it would create more work if she were to hold off 
for this year and pick it back up for 2022. Director Gillingham stated it would not create more 
work if she does not do it annually. Swadley stated that at this time, we do not know what the 
budget will be but if, come January, we find ourselves able to right size then we should go 
ahead and do so. 
Boersma - Motion to suspend the work on right sizing at this time, with the caveat that if we find 
ourselves in a position to do so then we will move forward, second Hundt, Approved 4-0 
 
 







 
8. Discussion and possible action regarding 2020 Hiring 


Director Gillingham stated that regarding the position Barb Veum had vacated in the Police 
Department, the title needed to be changed to Office Manager. She stated that the position 
description had been sent to Springsted and had been graded as such but that the title had 
not been changed. Director Gillingham also asked if she could move forward with the hiring of 
the Custodian and two Linemen. There was some discussion between Swadley, Scheel and 
Gillingham regarding the proper equipment for the new Custodian. Swadley stated to go 
ahead and order whatever equipment this person would need. Scheel stated that it does not 
change the position description. 
Boersma - Motion to approve moving forward with hiring, second Hundt, Approved 4-0 
Boersma -Motion to approve change to title of the Police Department administrative position to 
Office Manager, second Reeves, Approved 4-0 
 
 


9.   Future Agenda Items 


• Parks & Recreation Structure 


• Personnel Meeting scheduled for Labor Day 


• Work Rules – New Format 
 


Motion to adjourn Boersma, second Hundt, Approved 4-0. Meeting adjourned 6:37pm. 







PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, August 19, 2020 @ 6:00 pm 
Remotely Via GoToMeeting 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Fred Hundt (Vice-Chair), Sid Boersma, Thomas Majewski, Mayor Swadley  
               and Director Gillingham  
 
Also in attendance: Director Friedl, Director Scheel, and Director Ramsey 
 


1. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 


2. Approval of the Minutes of the Monday, May 4, 2020 Personnel Committee meeting minutes. 
Motion to approve Boersma, second Hundt, Approved 4-0 


 
3. Communications/Updates 


• Director Gillingham noted that she has been busy with renewals. 
• Generalist Skarda has been working on fillable forms for employee orientation and 


enrollments.   
• For Human Resources & Risk Management, working remotely and are functioning at 


100% in regards to duties and responsibilities. 
• Susan Eddy hired as Planning Dept. Engineering Technician position. 
• Upcoming 2nd interview -Journeyman Lineman position. Turnover in Electric division is up. 


Still recruiting for the position. There is a contingency plan in place if additional help is 
needed in the department. 


• Interviews were held for both City Custodian positions. We are waiting for the full time 
candidate to finish up contingencies. The part time candidate is ready to start.  


• Since Brandi Brandes resigned, her position at the Opera House has been left unfilled. 
We are now recruiting for a part-time LTE position to help staff the Opera House as they 
anticipate 2021 sales and need to be staffed and ready. There was some discussion 
over the need for this position. Director Gillingham asked if the Committee would like to 
make this an actionable item and a motion was made. 
Motion to approve hiring for this position Hundt, second Majewski, Approved 3-0 with 
Boersma voting nay. 


 
4. Process for 2021 Personnel budget requests  


Director Gillingham stated that with what occurred last year during the budgeting process was 
not based on need and should be changed.  Majewski stated he believes that requests should 
be looked at by Personnel and then moved forward to Council. There was some discussion 
regarding what the process should be. The decision was made to have each Director present 
to the Personnel Committee for their individual personnel requests. The Personnel Committee 
would then decide which positions would move forward to the committee of the whole. This 
process would be done in a timely manner leaving enough time for the budgeting process. 
Majewski motion to approve the process for personnel hiring decisions be brought to the 
Personnel Committee prior to introduction to full Council, second Boersma, Approved 4-0. 
 


5. **Compensation 2020/2021  
Boersma – Motion to move into closed session, Majewski second, all approved 4-0. Reeves 
read State Statute 19.85(1)(c) moving the meeting to closed session at 6:34pm. 
Boersma motion to return to open session, second Hundt, Approved 4-0 Moved to open 
session 6:56pm.  
Director Gillingham asked where the percentage increase would come from. We are sending 
mixed messages to the staff. What is important to the committee of the whole? 







Reeves asked if there was a recommendation from the Mayor & Director Gillingham. Director 
Gillingham stated they would like to see each Director present to the Personnel Committee for 
their individual personnel requests. The Personnel Committee would then review and decide 
which positions would move forward to the Mayor and Director Friedl and eventually Council. 
Motion to approve Hundt, Majewski second, Approved 4-0 
 


6. Hiring for positions during pandemic  
Director Gillingham stated that she would like to know what process the committee wants her 
follow with regards to hiring during the pandemic. Regarding the positions that are already 
budgeted for but have not been filled: does the committee want to have Director Gillingham 
bring each individual instance to the committee or do they just want her to go ahead with 
hiring for positions already budgeted for? There was some discussion on this subject.  It was 
decided that the Committee would like to have these instances brought them on an 
individual basis for need to fill.  
Motion to approve Boersma, second Hundt, Approved 4-0 
 


7. Future Agenda Items 


• Parks & Recreation Structure 


• Work Rules – New Format 
 


8. Motion to adjourn Majewski, second Hundt, Approved 4-0. Meeting adjourned 7:30pm. 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes         


Friday, December 13, 2020  


Utilities Conference Room- Ed Malinowski 


 


Members Present:   Jonathan Lewis (President), Martin Lamers (Vice-President), Doran 


Bradford, Peter Sveum, Amie Edgington 


 


Staff Present:   AJ Gillingham, Director of Human Resources and Risk Management,      


Chief Leck 


 


1. Call to Order 


President Lewis called the meeting to order at 1:00 pm.  


  


2. Communications 


None 


 


3. Interview candidates for the Police Sergeants Position 


Motion to move to closed session Lewis, Lewis read State Statute 19.85 (1, C), second 


Bradford, All in Favor 5-0. 


Interviews held. 


 


4. Discussion and possible action regarding recommendation for hire and eligibility 


list for Sergeants Position*** 


Discussion held. 


Motion to move to open session Bradford, Lewis second, All in Favor 5-0. 


The PFC recommended in no particular order: Kade Wilkinson, Carson Hoeper, Chad 


O’Neil to Chief Leck for hire as the Sergeant.   


 


5. Discussion and possible action regarding review of the Police Officer Applications 


to determine participates for the assessment center and who will be interviewed 


by the PFC*** 


Motion to move to closed session Lewis, Lewis read State Statute 19.85 (1, C), second 


Bradford, All in Favor 5-0. 


Motion to move to open session Bradford, Lewis second, All in Favor 5-0. 


It was determined that Director Gillingham and Chief Leck would review the 


applications with President Lewis and schedule the interviews and panel participants.   


 


6. Adjournment 


Meeting adjourned at 5:10 pm. 


 


 
Minutes submitted by Director Gillingham 


December 17, 2019 


 


 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes         


 Monday, April 27, 2020  


 Held Via GoToMeeting Teleconference 


 


Members Present:   Jonathan Lewis (President), Martin Lamers (Vice-President), Doran 


Bradford, Peter Sveum, Amie Edgington 


 


Staff Present:   AJ Gillingham, Director of Human Resources and Risk Management,      


Chief Leck, Chief Ripp 


 


1. Call to Order 


President Lewis called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.  


  
2. Approval of the Commission meeting minutes from January 9, 2020, January 22, 2020 


and February 6, 2020  


Motion to approve with the addition of adding the names of the Police Officer finalists 


to the meeting minutes for the police officer interviews.  Motion Edgington, Lamers 


2nd, All in favor 5-0 


 


3. PFC Reorganization 


Re-organization motion by Lewis nominating Lamers to be President, no other 


nominations, 2nd Edgington, all in favor 5-0 


Vice-President motion by Sveum nominating Edgington 2nd Bradford All in favor 5-0 


Secretary motion by Sveum nominating Bradford, 2nd by Edgington, All in favor 5-0  


President Lamers established the last Monday as the Quarterly meeting.   


 July 27 


 October 26 


 January 25 


 April 26 


 


4. Police Chief Quarterly Report 


Chief Leck reviewed his quarterly report with the PFC. 


Motion by Lewis to approve, 2nd Bradford All in favor 5-0 


 


5. Fire Chief Quarterly Report 


Chief Josh Ripp reviewed his quarterly report with the PFC. Recommendation by 


Lewis for more charts. Recommendation: by Sveum for current year versus prior year 


and what types of calls such as alarm vs structure.   


Motion to approve Edgington, 2nd Bradford All in favor 5-0 


 


 


 







6. Discussion and possible action regarding Fire Department recruiting timeline  


Chief Ripp and Director Gillingham discussed the recruiting process, which was just 


the framework to show the concept.   


Motion by Sveum approved the time lines only 2nd Bradford All in favor 5-0 


Ripp and Gillingham to complete the step-by-step process and bring to next meeting 


for approval. 


 


7. Adjournment 


Meeting adjourned at 6:30 pm. 


 


 
Minutes submitted by Director Gillingham 


May 6, 2020 


 


 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes 


Thursday, June 4, 2020  


 Fire Department Training Room 


Members Present:    Martin Lamers - President, Doran Bradford, Peter Sveum 


Members Present Virtually: Jonathan Lewis, Amie Edgington - Vice-President (attempted) 


Staff Present: AJ Gillingham, Director of Human Resources and Risk 


Management, Fire Chief Joshua Ripp 


1. Call to Order


President Lamers called the meeting to order at 6:43 pm.


2. Two panels will interview candidates for Volunteer Firefighter Positions**


Motion to close Sveum, 2nd Bradford, All in favor 4-0


Motion to close read by Sveum


Candidate was interviewed during closed session.


3. PFC Members post-interview deliberations**


Deliberations.


Motion to move out of closed session Sveum, 2nd Bradford, All in favor 4-0 


Decision to approve Michael Walters as a hire for the Fire Department.


Contingencies to include: background check, pre-employment physical and drug


screen.


4. Adjournment


Motion to adjourn Lewis, 2nd Sveum, All in favor 4-0 


Meeting adjourned at 7:55 pm.


Minutes submitted by Director Gillingham 


June 5, 2020 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes         
 Wednesday, August 5, 2020  
 Held Via GoToMeeting Teleconference 
 
Members Present:    Martin Lamers (President), Amie Edgington (Vice-President), Doran 


Bradford, Peter Sveum, Jonathan Lewis 
 
Staff Present:   AJ Gillingham, Director of Human Resources and Risk Management,      


Chief Leck, Chief Ripp 
 


1. Call to Order 
Vice-President Edgington called the meeting to order at 5:38 pm.  


  
2. Approval of the Commission meeting minutes from December 13, 2019, April 27, 2020 


and June 4, 2020 
Motion to approve Sveum, Bradford 2nd, All in favor 4-0 


 
3. Police Chief Quarterly Report 


Chief Leck reviewed his quarterly report with the PFC. 
Motion by Lewis to approve, Sveum 2nd, All in favor 4-0 
 
President Lamers joined the call and assumed the role of running the meeting. 
 


4. Fire Chief Quarterly Report 
Chief Josh Ripp reviewed his quarterly report with the PFC.  
Motion to approve Sveum, 2nd Bradford, All in favor 5-0 
 


5. Interview candidates for Volunteer Firefighter Positions  
Interviews began at 6:15pm. Officers Mark Miller, Mark Hale, Paul Updike, Bradley Rask, 
Chief Josh Ripp and all PFC members interviewed the four candidates. At the end of 
interviews, the PFC received feedback from the Officers and Chief Ripp. Officers 
excused at 7:36pm. 
 


6. Post-interview deliberations  
The PFC discussed the candidates and recommended the following candidates to the 
Chief for consideration: Ashley Ludlum, Anna Wendt, Kari Drifke and Benjamin Zubke. 
Motion by Lewis, 2nd Lamers, All in favor 5-0 
 


7. Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn Sveum, Edgington 2nd, All in favor. Meeting adjourned at 7:53pm. 
 


 
Minutes submitted by Director Gillingham 
August 5, 2020 





		01-October 13, 2020 Finance Minutes

		02-Public Safety Minutes 9-23

		03-PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 05-04-2020

		04-PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 08-19-2020

		05-PFC Minutes 12-13-2019

		06-PFC Minutes 04-27-2020

		07-PFC Minutes 06-04-2020

		08-PFC Minutes 08-05-2020






Meeting of: MEETING OF COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 


STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Tuesday, October 27, 2020 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open at 


6:50 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 


7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 


COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/940839389. You can also dial in using 


your phone: +1 (571) 317-3116 . Access Code: 940-839-389.  


 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, 


Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 


Reeves, and Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky 
 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations: 


Tim Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.  


 


Clerk Licht called the roll and 12 alders were present. 


 


Minutes and Reports:  the following minutes were added to the record.  


Utilities (8/17/2020); Plan Commission (9/14/20); Public Works (9/17/20); Tree Commission (9/10/20); 


Parks & Rec (9/15/20); Whitewater Park (7/20/20)  


 


Public Comment Period: 


 Sharon Folbrecht, 2300 Buckingham Rd, registered in opposition of the Whitewater Park. Her 


comments were read. 


 Cheryl Learn 1108 Furseth Rd., registered in opposition of the Whitewater Park. Her comments 


were read. 


 Jim Carrano, 1729 Oakview Dr. registered in opposition of the Whitewater Park. His comments 


were read. 


 Jennifer Wendt, 2714 Yahara Rd., registered in opposition of the Whitewater Park. Her 


comments were read. 


 Sharon Mason-Boersma, 243 E McKinley St., spoke in opposition of the Whitewater Park.  


 Katharin Foster, of Stoughton spoke in opposition of the Whitewater Park.  


 Mark Hale, 2703 County Road B, spoke in opposition of the Whitewater Park.  


 Dennis Kittleson, 109 E Taft St., spoke in opposition of the Whitewater Park.  


 


Consent Agenda 


A. October 15, 2020 Council Minutes 


B. Stoughton Utilities August Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities September Payments 


Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities July Financial Summary; Stoughton Utilities August 


Financial Summary; Stoughton Utilities July Statistical Report; Stoughton Utilities August 


Statistical Report 


  


  


 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/940839389

tel:+15713173116,,940839389





Motion by Reeves, second by Heili to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 12-0 


 


OLD BUSINESS 
 
 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


O-22-2020- To amend Sections 74-15(a) and 74-15(b) and create Sections 74-15 (c) through (e) of the 


City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the placement of water metering facilities and the 


replacement of inaccessible metering facilities. 


 


Jenson read O-22-2020 for the first reading. It will be back before the council on November 10th.  


 


O- 23- 2020- To amend Sections 74-2(a) and 74-2(b) and create Sections 74-2 (g) through (h) of the 


City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to the replacement of indirect service lateral 


connections.  


 


O-23-2020 Jenson read O-23-2020 for the first reading. It will be back before the council on November 


10th.  


 


R-160-2020-Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to authorize Stoughton Utilities to 


apply for the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Private Lead Service Line (LSL) 


Replacement Program Funding Grant on behalf of the City of Stoughton  


 


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to approve R-160-2020 Authorizing and directing the proper City 


official(s) to authorize Stoughton Utilities to apply for the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 


Private Lead Service Line (LSL) Replacement Program Funding Grant on behalf of the City of 


Stoughton. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


O-24-2020- Amending Section 64-9(f) of the Stoughton Municipal Code relating to Sandwich Board 


Signs  


 


Majewski read O-24-2020 for a first reading. It will be back before the council. Boersma stated that it 


should define if the signs are permanent or temporary.  Motion by Reeves, second by Hirsch to waive 


the rules and allow for the council to vote on the item tonight. Motion carried 11-1 with Boersma voting 


‘no’. Motion by Hirsch, second by Reeves to approve O-24-2020 Amending Section 64-9(f) of the 


Stoughton Municipal Code relating to Sandwich Board Signs. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R-161-2020- Approving a REVISED financial agreement between the State of Wisconsin and the City 


of Stoughton for costs for the construction of roundabouts on US Highway 51 at Hoel/Silverado, STH 


138 and Roby Road scheduled to be constructed in 2022.  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-161-2020 Approving a REVISED financial 


agreement between the State of Wisconsin and the City of Stoughton for costs for the construction of 


roundabouts on US Highway 51 at Hoel/Silverado, STH 138 and Roby Road scheduled to be 


constructed in 2022. Motion  carried 12-0. 


 







R-162-2020- To authorize the proper City official(s) to amend all existing Senior Center Annex lease 


agreements to have the same termination/renewal date (September 30th)  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-162-2020 To authorize the proper City 


official(s) to amend all existing Senior Center Annex lease agreements to have the same 


termination/renewal date (September 30th). Majewski and Boersma spoke in opposition of amending 


the agreements. Motion carried 7-5 with Boersma, Heili, Hirsch, Hundt and Majewski voting ‘no’.  


 


R-163-2020 Authorizing the appropriate City Officials(s) to enter into an agreement with Ehlers to 


begin the process to amend TIF 4 to allow for sharing with TIF 5 and TIF 8 (“Project”)  


 


Motion by Hirsch, second by Reeves to approve R-163-2020 Authorizing the appropriate City 


Officials(s) to enter into an agreement with Ehlers to begin the process to amend TIF 4 to allow for 


sharing with TIF 5 and TIF 8 (“Project”). Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R-164-2020-Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into the First Amendment to 


the Access Agreement with Uniroyal Global Engineered Products (“Uniroyal”)  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve Authorizing and directing the proper City 


official(s) to enter into the First Amendment to the Access Agreement with Uniroyal Global Engineered 


Products (“Uniroyal”). Motion carried 12-0.  


 


Discussion and possible action regarding funding up to $20,000 from Contingency for legal 


representation for liquor license proceedings and authorizing the proper City Officials to hire 


Attorney Al Reuter  


 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve the funds and hire Al Reuter. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


Consideration and possible action authorizing the City Clerk to issue a summons in regards to the 


complaint filed by Police Chief Greg Leck in the Matter of the Consideration of the Revocation of 


the “Class B” Reserve Combination License Held by Shakers Saloon, LLC 


 


Motion by Ligocki, second by Jenson to approve the issuance of the summons. Motion carried 12-0. 
 


ADJOURNMENT  


Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to adjourn at 8:19 p.m. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Holly Licht, City Clerk  





